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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
9:30 a.m

MS. MEHLERT: Would you like to nove to the
next case?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Let me help out a little
bit, just alittle bit, and Ms. Pourciau, let ne
know when I'minterfering too nuch.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: No, | appreciate that.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Now, we’'re going to go into
our hearing action, am| correct, Ms. Mehlert?

MS. MEHLERT: Correct.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. So, now you want to
call the first case for under hearing action and
then we can go fromthere?

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Ckay. Am| -- yes,
so, | believe we're going to our first case, which
I's Application Nunmber 21405 of Azanach Haile, and
it’s a special exception use alley lot, they're
| ooking for a release of --

MS. MEHLERT: If | can just interrupt,
sorry, Chairman, | can call the case and nention any
prelimnary matters. And then, during that tine,
the witnesses wll conme in, and then I'I| turn it
over to the Board.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. (Ckay, excellent, thank
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you.

M5. MEHLERT: So, the first case in the
Board' s hearing session is Application Nunber 21405
of Azanach Haile, as anended. This is an
application pursuant to Subtitle X Section 1002 for
area variances from Subtitle C, Section 306.1 A and
Bto allowtwo new alley record |ots not having
frontage along a public alley at |east 24 feet w de
or access to a public street through a public alley
at |least 24 feet w de.

And pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901 for
speci al exceptions under Subtitle U, Section
601. 1(f) to allow residential use on two alley lots
not neeting the requirenents of Subtitle U, Section
601. 1(f)(4) and under Subtitle B, Section 50.1.3.
And the side yard requirenents, that's Subtitle D
Section 61.1(d).

This project is the subdivision of the
existing alley tax lawto create two new al |l ey
record lots with a new two-story attached princi pal
dwel | ing on each new record lot. It’'s located in the
RF-1 Zone at 3207 6th Street, Northwest, Square
3046, Lot 808.

And just as a prelimnary matter, the

applicant submtted a notion to waive the 30-day
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filing deadline to file additional photographs sent
to the record which are in Exhibit 40.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. |'’msorry, would you
repeat that please?

M5. MEHLERT: Oh, no, I'mjust going to
turn it over to the Board.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. (Ckay, thank you.

So, can | call the first w tness now?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ms. Pourciau, we're going
to call the applicant up and | et them begin
presenting their case to us. |’'|ll give them nmaybe
about 10 to 15 m nutes.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Ckay.

M5. PYNE: Hi, good norning. Good norning,
Ms. Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Good nor ni ng.

M5. PYNE: Good norning. Good norning, M.
Chair, menbers of the Board. M nanme is O usola
Pyne, but you can call ne Sola. |'mthe authorized
agent for the owner, Ms. Azanach Haile. She's the
property owner of 3207 6th Street, Northwest, at
cross sections Lot 808 and Square 3046. She is also
here on the call. She is wlling to speak, if
needed, but will prefer not to as English is her

second | anguage.
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This is an application to subdivide one
existing alley ot into two alley record lots and to
build a two-story basenment road dwelling on each
W' re requesting two special exceptions and an area
vari ance.

| can briefly describe the property as they
expl ai n why each request neets the Board standards.

And | apol ogize, | realize |I'’mnot on
vi deo.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, please
proceed.

M5. PYNE: Good norning, again. Al right,
the subject of property in the RF-1 Zone is served
by the public alley systemin the interior of the
square. The lot currently is vacant and used as
addi tional parking for the nei ghborhood and
resi dence next door. The surroundi ng square
contains primarily existing two to three-story
dwel ling units and a few sprinklings of apartnent
houses.

Qur proposal to subdivide the alley and
construct on each one |ot, one principal road
dwel ling and the design is shown in the plans and
el evation already in the record at Exhibits 28 and

31.
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The special exceptions for alley |ot
residential use and access under Subtitle U, Section
601.1(f)(4), and for the side yard requirenents
under Subtitle E, Section 5100.1(d) are judged under
Subtitle X, Section 901. 2.

And | know the grant -- the Board may grant
t hem where the request is in harnmony with the
general purpose and intent of the building
regul ations. So, we do believe we have the harnony
with the purpose and intent.

The RF-1 Zone is intended for |ow density
residential road dwellings. Qur proposal is exactly
that at a scale consistent with the surrounding
square.

Second, we do not have no adverse effect on
t he nei ghboring properties. The dwellings maintain
adequate light and air to neighbors, the alley
provi des safe access.

W have no objection from FEMS and DDOT. There is
no in traffic or parking burden, as we will provide
an of f-street parking space for each dwelling. And
no nei ghboring properties |awful use is inpaired.

And | guess, third, the specific conditions
In Subtitle Ufor alley lot dwellings, the alley | ot

has no frontage on a public street and access
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exclusively fromthe public alley within an existing
i mproved width of 10 feet, which is | ess than the 24
feet.

However, of course, depending ZC case text
anmendnent, proposed revised yard requirenents for
alley lots in the RF Zone that woul d substantially
reduce the side yard requirenent relative to the
current standard, and we showed this recogni zes that
al l ey | ock devel opnent warrants different yard
treatnments and street facing |lots.

And the relief that we’'re requesting here
Is consistent wwth the direction in which the zoning
regul ati ons are being updated and with the stated
intent to facilitate alley | ock residential
devel opnent .

For community and conpatibility, Ofice of
Pl anni ng has recommended approval of the requested
relief in this report, | believe it’'s Exhibit 37.
The ANC revi ewed and supported the project at its
January 28th neeting. The ANC voted yes in support
of the application as originally submtted.

We did have a revised BZA neno originally
when the project was reviewed. It wasn't caught
that we al so needed an area variance and so, there

was an updated BZA neno that was submtted.
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The ANC has been updated conpl etely al ong
the way, but we -- they are schedul ed to consider
the revised plan at a June 10th hearing. However,
we are hoping that, considering that there is no
substantial change to the design, instead of single
famly hones, we’'re now presenting themas road
dwel | i ngs.

There’ s no substantial change and hope
that, of course, that the ANC wll continue to
support the project. W do have petition upl oaded as
well froma |lot of the neighbors and sone that are
i n support of the project as well.

W di d have one objection letter. However,
the itens that were called out within that, |
bel i eve, can be addressed through the intended
design. Qut of respect, of course, for the ANC s
process, we have no objections to the Board hol di ng
the record open for a supplenental ANC report.

However, considering that they have been
noticed and inforned at every step and have
expressed no objection to the revision yet, we do
respectfully ask the Board to proceed with the
application consistent with their support and the
Ofice of Planning s recommendati on.

The notion that was submtted to enter the

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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t hree phot ographs of property into the record are
not very different fromthe initial photograph,
however, they just give nore views of the vacant
alley |ot.

In summary, | would say the two speci al
exceptions are in harnony wwth the RF-1 Zone and
create no adverse inpact on the neighbors. The area
variance responds to a genuine pre-existing
condition of the alley lot to relieve a rea
practical difficulty and contain no substantial harm
to the public good or to the zone plan. O course,
OP, again, has reconmmended approval, ANC has
supported the project and has raised no objection to
t he design as revised yet.

| guess that’'s all | have, thank you, |'m
very happy to answer any questi ons.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so much, M.
Pyne.

|’d like to ask the Board if they have any
questi ons.

M. CGoldstein, did you have sone questions
on this case, please?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, |’m happy to
start. | do wonder if we need to resolve a l|ate

notion filing first and ask, Madam Chairperson, if

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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you are supportive of the acceptance of the |ate
not i on.

| have no objection to it. |t doesn't |ook
like it’s changing any material facts of the case,
It's just providing sonme nore photos of the
property, which | think are hel pful.

So, | have no objection to allow ng the
late filing, just want to nake sure that you concur

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU:  Yes, | -- it seened to
be in keeping with what was in the file already, so
t hank you for that.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Okay. And if anyone
el se has any objections, you know, please feel free
to say that.

Not hearing that, 1'd really like to ask
the applicant a few questions, and | really -- |
t hank you for the excellent presentation. | think
you did terrific job. But | would like to ask you
toreally drill down a bit nore on the variance test
and what nmekes this property uni que or exceptional,
what the practical difficulty is, and then, you
know, harmto nei ghboring property or the public or
zone pl an?

So, if you could spend sone nore tine

tal ki ng about those itens, please?
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M5. PYNE: Thank you, definitely. |'m
going to open up sone nore of my notes specifically
about the variance if you don’'t m nd, give ne one
second.

Al right, yes, okay. So, | guess the
practical difficulty -- so, the strict application
of that 24-foot alley wdth requirenent woul d
essentially kind of render this property permanently
undevel opabl e.

The alley -- existing alley wwdth is fixed
public infrastructure, it can’'t be changed to neet
the regulatory mninum There’'s no real, |ike,
engi neering solution, no redesign of the proposed
bui | dings, and no real nodification to the |ot
configuration that would change the width of the
public alley.

| guess if the variance is denied, the
property remains vacant in perpetuity, not because
the owner | acks the neans or desire to develop it,
but because the zoning regul ations, as witten,
requi renent that is inpossible to satisfy.

This is, | guess, the case for variance
relief, the practical difficulty is not a matter of
econom cs or preference, it's a matter of

i npossibility. A property that can’'t be devel oped
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under any scenari o where no redesign, no
reconfiguration, no investnent can achieve
conpl i ance.

It kind of exenplifies the kind of
exceptional hardship that area variance relief is
designed to address under Subtitle X, Section
1000. 1.

The requested vari ance app owned that the
Board acknowl edged that the existing physical
reality of the alley right-of-way, the proposed road
dwel lings are otherwise fully conpliant and nodestly
scal ed, and the variance represents the m ni num
relief necessary to allow any beneficial use of this
property at all.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Thank you for the
explanation. | want to continue to talk about this
alittle bit nore.

M5. PYNE: Sure.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  So, first, you know,
| think it’'s helpful to start with what nakes it
uni que or exceptional. So far, |I’ve heard the
argunent that it’s because the alley’s too narrow
and there’s no ability to change the wdth of the
all ey.

One issue that | have, or one concern

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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have about the argunent is that there’'s |lots of
property, narrow alleys is a feature of life in the
District. There are many, you know, properties
along alleys that are 10 feet wde or 15 feet w de.

Cenerally, | don’'t believe it’s accepted
that the alley width al one nakes your property
uni que, that you don’'t neet the regulations, so
therefore, you re unique. It’s alittle bit
circular, the argunent here.

Wul d you talk nore to what about this
property is so unique, not just that it’s, | think
that’s a factor that it’s an alley lot on a narrow
all ey, but what about this property truly nmakes it
exceptional or unique so that not every property
along an alley is simlarly considered unique alley
lot, at least unique in the sane way, what is it
about this property that makes it exceptional ?

M5. PYNE: | would say, for this property
to be unique, of course, it has two alley lots --
two alleys that are down this lot, one is 10 feet,
the other is 15.

On the opposite side of the alley, |
bel i eve 526 Lanont Street, because that property has
street frontage, they were able to create kind of

| i ke an apartnent house that majority of their units

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N T N I T S R N I R R T e o
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N P O

face the sane alley.

So, we are not kind of |ike making this | ot
with alley frontage for new alley lots to be any
different than what is already existing.

So, | would say to that is denying this
application, it kind of defeats the purpose of
continuing with what that 526 has already started to
create with beautification of alley lots in the way
that are just sitting vacant with no use and
undevel opable in a way.

Yes, that’s what | would have to say
t owar ds that.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Let nme ask a few
nore questions if | can, and I’mgoing to ask the
Ofice of Planning about this as well. Are there
other alley lots in the square or nearby?

M5. PYNE: Nearby, yes, | believe they're
nearby, not in this exact alley. However, there are
units that frontage the alley, but they are not
considered alley lots since they were built off of a
street facing |ot.

Does that answer your question?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  So, | think the one
you're referencing, | don’t know the details of it,

but were those alley lots or they had street

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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frontage, but they have sonme properties that front

on the alley, sone aspects of their devel opnments

that front on the alley?

M5. PYNE: Correct, yes.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay.

M5. PYNE: The main property does have
street frontage, however, the way they built the
property back towards the alley, the rear units all
face the alley, if that makes sense, if |I'm
explaining it correctly.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N Yes.

M5. PYNE: But, yes, the nmain structure
does have street frontage.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: How does the size of
the alley ot conpare to RF properties or the
residential properties that are in the square?

M5. PYNE: Currently, as it is, this lot is
very large, it's over 3,000 square feet, it's --
yes, it’s over 3,000 square feet. Qur proposal to
split it in half so that it -- with residential
structures, would kind of like fit into nore of the
exi sting row honmes that are in the nei ghborhood.

But this ot is extrenely |arge.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay. To that

point, 1'd also like to nove to your practical

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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difficulty argunent. The argunent that you nade was
that, if not granted, | think, the variance relief,
because we’re tal king about the variance test, that
the property would remai n undevel oped, it would be
undevel opabl e.

And | just want to tease this out a little
bit. You probably have one alley |lot, and the
proposal is to nake two. So, are you suggesting
that there’s sonethi ng about naki ng the second one
t hat nakes a devel opnent feasible, whereas a
devel opnent could not occur just with one building?

M5. PYNE: No, no, not necessarily.
However, we would still need an area variance, even
if it was just one hone on the existing |ot,
considering that lot as a stand still does not have
street facing frontage.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | don’t believe
that’s correct, it’s an existing alley lot, it's
exi sted, and you can correct ne, since prior to
1958. |I'msurprised to hear that said that | think
it’s an existing situation, so |’mnot sure why you
woul d need a variance relief.

You would so likely need special exception

MS. PYNE: Yes, correct.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN.  -- relief for the
residential use, but | don't think you would need
vari ance relief.

So, is the argunent that, | guess I'm
hearing you say it isn’t, but you could not just
develop it with one hone by special exception.

Rat her, you need to subdivide it, get area
vari ances, and build it for two hones to nake the
proj ect sonehow happen.

| s that the argunent?

M5. PYNE: Yes, in a way, and you're
correct, and | apol ogi ze for m sspeaking, | was
t hi nki ng speci al exception, but |I said variance, but
you were definitely correct.

We technically would not need an area
variance if we chose to just build one. However, |
don't feel like it would fit in the character of an
RF- 1 nei ghbor hood, considering that these are
rowhones. A rowhone technically has to go expand
fromlot to |ot.

This |l ot size being over 3,000 square feet
attached to other lots that are generally in between
22 to 25 feet wide, it would -- to ne, it would | ook
out of place.

It would not fit in wth the character of

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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t he nei ghborhood at all to have one super |arge
structure expandi ng over this 3,000 square foot |ot
In this neighborhood.

It can be done. However, | do agree with
that, it can be done, but it would not fit in wth
t he character of the nei ghborhood.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Wuld the -- so, you
woul d still need to get water to the property, |
don't know if it’s already laid down piping to get
there. |I'msure there’s sonme financial costs to
creating residential units on this property.

What ki nd of costs are you anticipating?

M5. PYNE: W' ve gotten just one quote from
a master plunber who opted -- who gave us two
separate options. The property owner does co-own the
nei ghboring property that does have -- she could
find a way to kind of get a covenant so that the
water line is kind of |ike attached to that hone and
split off into new branches or dig new |lines
connections fromthe alley. That would be the nore
substantial cost.

However, the owner and her husband are
still very, very willing to take on that burden.
This is, in a way, kind of alnost |ike a very

significant famly project for them and they are
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wlling to take on that financial burden if it
presents. But they do have, | guess, the option of
trying to pull the water lines off the street
frontage from 3213 6th Street as wel|.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N: Ckay. Madam
Chai rperson, | have maybe one or two nore questions,
| don’t want to nonopolize all the tine. |[If | can
just kind of proceed with ny |ast questions here?

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Yes, that would be
great. Thank you.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. | think
that you had nentioned there’'s a letter in the
record that raised a nunber of points, and | was a
little bit -- | was interested in you kind of
addressing that a little bit nore specifically.

And then | think the Ofice of Planning
al so raised a design point in their report. They
can al so speak to that about the facade and details.

And |’ m curious how you' re thinking of responding
to the Ofice of Planning as well on that?

M5. PYNE: Definitely, definitely. First,

| can speak to the opposition letter fromthe

nei ghbor, M. Lloyd Leeman. | guess his main
concern -- his first set of concerns are about
safety, just nmeking sure that -- about the nain
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entrance opening directly into the narrow all ey,

D.C. DPWs trash trucks having difficulty, and the
design showing very little internal storage.

So, speaking to that, yes, of course, that
this -- we are proposing that these single famly
honmes rel ease directly into the alley. However, we
do not believe that this is a safety concern.

There -- like | discussed, on the opposite
side of the alley, there are also units that face
directly onto the alley. They have parking spaces
that abut right upon the alley. There have not been
any, you know, excessive accidents, any issues from
t hat property.

So, literally, less than 200 feet away, |
don’t see where that would be a concern here. W do
have support from FEMS when concerni ng about the
accessibility into the alley.

So, | do believe that the DPWtrucks have
not outrightly expressed any concern about not being
able to pick up any trash in that alley, so we woul d
not raise any additional neasures with that.

And his point about us showing little
I nternal storage, these honmes wll be quite, | would
say, not large, but they’'ll be slightly larger than

the other residential hones wth basenents.
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There is a place for internal storage.
There is space for a parking space outside as well
as trash area. So, | don’t think that the
I'i keli hood that personal property wll be stored
outside is a valid concern yet, it’'s nore
hypot heti cal .

On -- | know that he was concerned about
the north side of the property with bl ocked exit.
We woul d not be bl ocking any exits to the all ey.
There m ght be tenporary during construction, where
-- as they’'re bringing things onto the | ot
tenporarily, you know, access m ght be reconfigured.

However, we would do so safely with the
regul ati ons of the Departnent of Transportation.
know t hat he al so sai d about the nei ghborhood
character. Mst of the -- several houses in the
nei ghbor hood have built structures on about half of
the property and open yards, parking on the other
hal f. And newer devel opnents nake nore use of the
capacity, but each one of these is approved, the
roads, the character of the nei ghborhood.

Again, | disagree that the newer
devel opnents erode the character of the
nei ghborhood. It is true that they do try to take

on nore of the ot as the regulations allow. But we
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are also offering rear open yard as well to all ow,
of course, for additional space for entertaining or
t he parking space that is set, and also the plat of
space for trash trucks.

H s next point about inadequate or
conflicting design information, | believe he
submtted this prior to us updating per our BZA
meno. So, | know his treatnents for the east and
west side of the building, they may not exist now.

He did not submt, | guess, an updated
opposal letter after we had our revised neno and our
revi sed docunent submtted, but | guess only he
woul d be able to respond to that. The bunp-out that
he nmentioned wth no apparent purpose, that has been
renoved, so that is no |onger an issue. He said, |
guess, given the design, it appears that it [ooks to
be four units, not two, but that is not what we're
proposi ng.

W' re proposing two units on two separated
| ot s.

Hs last view, two total parking spaces for
two, three, four units seemunrealistic. |
di sagree. There are plenty of people -- | know a
| ot of people drive and even wth a partner,

everybody has their own car, but | think it is
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reasonable to assune that there may be a famly that
j ust shares one car.

And | ack of a yard and mnimal interior
storage creates concerns for problematic overfl ow
onto both the 15 and 10-foot alley. And the
bui | ding exterior surface appears to be brick, but
is not specified, |leaving wide latitudes for quality
and vi sual effect.

As for the interior storage, | spoke to
that. And the exterior surface, this is sonething
along with what you nentioned about OP's concern
about the front facade of the structure. This is
sonething that we definitely wanted to del ve nore
into them when we actually reached the permt review
process to be able to design this property in a way
that would blend in seamessly with the character of
t he nei ghborhood to match kind of Iike any
ornanental art, you know, on the front space of the
facade, any lentils, any colums, anything that is
existing wth the existing single famlies that we
would mmc that in a way.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  The nei ghbor to the
north, so the side yard relief is for the northern
side yard. Have they expressed any feedback to you

about their proposal?
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M5. PYNE: The owner, Ms. Azanach Haile, is
co-owner of that property so --
VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  On, okay.
MS. PYNE: Yes.
VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay, all right,

t hank you.
So, they don’t object to their own plan?
M5. PYNE: They don’'t object to their own
plan. They -- | nmean, they do have sone designs to
what to do with that wall, of course. There are

exi sting wi ndows that would now end up facing a
brick wall.

So, they are also considering, you know,
either if they want to nove that property out, that
woul d be a conpletely separate application so that
they share a property wall. So, they would all be
row hones instead of two row hones and then, instead
of anot her row hones.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay, thank you
|’ve got two | ast quick ones.

M5. PYNE: Ckay.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | see the two
parking spots, and | just want to nmake sure they're
bot h conpliant parking spots that you've shown?

M5. PYNE: They definitely should be. The
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9 by 19, yes, the -- that is our -- and we're not
opposed to bringing the properties in alittle bit
to actually expand on that rear area.

W just know, in this zone, with the
updat ed zoning that 80 percent of the lot is allowed
to be occupied, we’'re not taking the full 80
percent, but it is pretty close, it’s higher than
the normal 60 percent of the |ot.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. kay. | just wanted
to make sure, one of themlooked a little tight, so
| wanted to make sure that you’ ve got that on your
radar .

And then, you nentioned about the ANC. Are
they -- you've alerted themto the change in the
pl ans and there’s an expectation that they re going
to be nmeeting again to consider your plan, is that
right?

M5. PYNE: That is correct. There were no
real substantial changes in the two designs. O
course, it was already single famlies and now
t hey’ re row hones.

W -- they supported -- we went to ANC and
t hey supported our original design on January 28th.

| believe their support letter is in the record as

wel | .
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Once we revised the design with the BZA
meno, everything was upl oaded into record, and al so
sent directly to them Unfortunately, due to a |ot
of scheduling conflicts, especially on nmy part, a
| ot of things were going on, | could not neet at the
time that they wanted to nmeet in My.

And so, they put up on the cal endar for
June 10t h.

However, they have had access to the file since
early May and have not rai sed any objections.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN.  And how I ong has it
been upl oaded, just to know?

M5. PYNE: | can give you the exact date.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  And that’s al so the
time that you forwarded it to the ANC at the sane
time it was upl oaded?

M5. PYNE: Yes, it was upl oaded on 3/27,
March 27t h.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Ch, March 27th?
Ckay, thank you, thank you very nuch.

M5. PYNE: You' re very wel cone.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so nmuch, M.
CGol dst ei n.

M. Hood, do you have any questions?

ZA CHAIR HOOD: | do, I'"mjust -- 1’m not
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going to be as detailed, but | do -- wll say that,

Il will et Ms. Lindsjo go first, and I will go |ast,

If she would like to have any questi ons.

| don’t -- since |I’mthe Zoning
Commi ssioner, | wll yield and I wll go last, if
you don’t m nd?

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so nuch,
t hank you.

Ms. Lindsjo, please?

MEMBER LINDSJO | don’t have any questions

at this tine. Thank you.
ZA CHAIR HOOD: (Ckay, so | do, unless you

have sonet hi ng, Madam Chair.

Let me nmake sure, how do you pronounce your

| ast name? Ms. Pyne? Payne?

M5. PYNE: Pyne, yes.

ZA CHAIR HOOD: Ms. Pyne. First of all,
| et me just say, you handl ed those questions very
prof essional ly.

M. Coldstein, and you did very well.

Every question he asked, you gave it back
to us, so, you did a great job.

M5. PYNE: Thank you.

ZA CHAIR HOOD: Only thing that | have a

concern about is the ANC process, and | know t hat
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you feel like it’s a slamdunk for them but even
t hough they seemto basically the higher hurdles,
I’ mal so big on engagenent.

And | have a concern, the only thing that
woul d hold ne up, it looks like I think you neet the
test and the request that you' ve asked for. But the
problemis, the ANCis neeting on this June the 10th
and we’re neeting on June the 3rd. So that’s an
I ssue for ne.

We may have to kick that -- it depends on
the rest of the Board nmenbers, the other nmenbers, we
may have to kick this down the road until we get
si gned, seal ed concurrence on nmaking sure that they
are in support as their previous letters did with
t he updat es.

The only other question | do have is, and |
think -- and | appreciate the question of Board
Menber Gol dstein, because the uniqueness of this
property, and | think you' ve explained that well.

But | was trying to get that, what -- but | think
you explained to us, so | won't go there.

| do have one other question, but it’'s been

such a while, | was, it was the Leeman’s letter, and
you responded to us. So, |I’mjust curious, have you
all shared the updates? | know you said sone of the

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N T N I T S R N I R R T e o
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N P O

31
design solutions will take care of sonme of their
| ssues.

Have you had a conversation with them the
Leeman fam|y?

M5. PYNE: | have not personally. However,
t he owner, Ms. Azanach Haile, has. She has spoken
to this gentleman, the neighbor, several tinmes prior
to even filing her BZA case for this.

So, she had spoken with him He -- | nean,
it would be her testinony, but she told ne that he
actual ly congratul ated her, but he was
congratul ati ng her, basically, on sone of the
changes that were comng in the zoning text
amendnent that she would, you know, be able to nove
through a little bit quicker with her proposal.

But | did not hear that firsthand, that was
bet ween the owner and she just basically told ne
about it.

ZA CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. | don’t have any
ot her questions, | just want to nmake sure though,
|’ mnot sure which direction the Board is going to
go in as far as whether they're going to deal with
what your request was. Because you would prefer for
us to vote on this or do you want us to hold off

until the ANC seals their deal ?
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M5. PYNE: So, | do respect the ANC s
process. |If it is fine with the Board, I'mwling
to hold off rather than the application being
rejected, of course. | would just -- | didn't know
I f someone representi ng ANC was on B=board and could
speak to it.

|f so, then yes, of course, | would prefer
to nove forward today, but if it’s going to lead in
a negative outcone, then | would prefer to wait.

ZA CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. Thank you, Ms. Pyne,
| appreciate you responding to all those questions.

And thank you, Madam Chair, | don’t have
any further questions.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. Hood,
and nenbers of the Board, those were great
qguesti ons.

| think we’'ll go on to the report and
recomrendations fromthe Ofice of Planning. |Is
there soneone fromthe O fice of Planning to speak?

MR. BEAMON:  Yes, and good norning, Board
menbers. For the record, |I’m Shepard Beanon with
the O fice of Planning.

The O fice of Planning has reviewed the
application for the request of special exception and

variance relief fromthe alley lot requirenents to
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allow two row dwellings on two alley record |ots.
And we found that the request neets the criteria for
Subtitles C, E, U and X

OP has determ ned that the applicant is
faced with an exceptional situation that woul d
result in practical difficulty, as the applicant
woul d not be able to devel op the property with two
units or two dwellings w thout variance relief due
to the existing 10-foot width of the alley.

We do not believe that the proposal would
conflict wwth the intent of the zoning regul ati ons
nor shoul d adversely inpact nei ghboring properties.

Therefore, we’'re recomendi ng approval, as stated
I n our report on the record.

And wth that, I'lIl conclude OP testinony.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so much, M.

Beanon.
Are there any questions for Ofice of
Pl anning from Board nenbers? Wy don’t we take M.
Li ndsjo first?
Not hi ng for you? Thank you.
M5. LINDSJO. Nothing for ne, thank you.
BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: G eat.
How about M. GCol dstein?
VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, | do have sone
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questions. Thank you. And thank you, M. Beanon,
for your report.

You’ ve been follow ng along the testinony
of the applicant’s, who | would like to echo,

Chai rman Hood, the terrific answers to the
questions, but | really would Iike to ask nore about
t he variance argunent here and would |ike to hear
you articul ate what makes this property exceptional
and that relief granted woul d cause a practi cal
difficulty to the owner?

MR. BEAMON. Right, and to your point, you
know, there are a nunber of alleys that do not neet
the mnimumalley width requirenent. But | think
the applicant -- that there would be sone difficulty
in ternms of cost and just devel oping one dwelling as
well as with the current requirenents, again, there
woul d be additional difficulty in devel oping the
property as proposed.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. Let’'s --
can we unpack that just a little bit nore? Wat
about this property in your view is exceptional?

MR. BEAMON: Again, this is not necessarily
a standal one property with this condition throughout
the District. However, we have had a nunber of

cases simlar to this in the past where the Board
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has determned that the alley width has been a
difficulty, perhaps, not unique.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Is there -- can you
-- are you able to sort of address howthis alley
log is different or simlar to other properties
around it?

MR. BEAMON: There are no other ones around
it, a specific alley like this one in the innmedi ate
ar ea.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN.  Are there any
properties in the i medi ate area of the size of this
property?

MR BEAMON: That |’ m not sure of, and even
with that, there may be properties that are |arger,
but they may have a different configuration.

It may be larger in depth, but this site
m ght be -- and again, |'mnot a hundred percent
sure, but in just |looking at the parcel map, this
appears to be one of the only lots that has nore of
a larger area in terns of length and w dth versus
the lots around it which have, you know, your
standard 20-foot w dth and have a much | onger depth.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. So, you're
testifying that the shape is unusual conpared to

surrounding lots --

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N T N I T S R N I R R T e o
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N P O

MR. BEAMON:  Yes.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. -- is that correct?

MR. BEAMON: Correct.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN.  For the practi cal
difficulty argunent, are you agreeing with the
applicant that there’'s sone practical difficulty

related to only having one |lot instead of two |ots?

MR. BEAMON. O course, the applicant could

develop that ot with one standal one house, but as
t hey nentioned before, this would not fit in with
t he character of the surrounding area.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: There’s no -- yes,
l"msorry, | don’t nmean to interrupt, please
conti nue.

MR. BEAMON: No, that was it. You can go
to the next question.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Yeah, no, | just
want to tease that out a little bit nore. Could you
-- to expand on how one devel opnent woul d not be
characteristic of the surroundi ng nei ghborhood?

MR. BEAMON. Right, yeah. So, the
nei ghborhood is primarily row dwellings, which is
what the applicant is proposing. And scale and
hei ght of the proposed dwellings would fit in with

t he character of the surrounding area.
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But, as nentioned in our report, we just
recomrend incorporating sone architectural details
that would help the dwellings better blend in with
t he surroundi ng area, which the applicant has agreed
to.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  And woul d the row
dwel | i ngs neet the devel opnment standards ot her than
the specific area of relief being asked for the side
yard? Wuld they be -- they' re otherw se conpliant
dwel | i ngs except for the use needing to be
permtted, the side yard that’s referenced, and j ust
obviously the creation of the alleys? But the
bui | di ngs thensel ves woul d be conpliant as well as
the lot area and lot width, is that correct?

MR. BEAMON: Correct, for a row dwelling,
yes.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  For a road dwel ling
or the zone? Kkay.

Thank you, those are all ny questions.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.

CGol dst ei n.

M. Hood, do you have any questions for M.
Beanon?

ZC CHAIR HOOD:  No, | don’t think | have

any questions for M. Beanon.
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M . Beanon, thank you for your report, as

al ways.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you. M.
Mehlert, | need your -- a little help fromyou right
here, I'mnot sure if | go to the next report now or

if there’s another item | do that.

M5. MEHLERT: | don’t believe any other
agencies are here. So, next, you could go to the
ANC. And if the ANCis not here, then you can go to
see if there are any public w tnesses.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Ckay. So, is the ANC
present? Do we know?

MR. YOUNG They are not.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. They are not? Ckay,
thank you. Are there public witnesses for this
appl i cation?

MR. YOUNG W do not have anyone signed up
to testify.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay, thank you. And
it’s no support or opposition. At this point, |
believe | just want to point out that | |ike the
questions that were asked and the answers given.

| think there's been a |ot of description

on howthe lots will work as well as, you know, the
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I ssue of -- in developing as one unit instead of
two, it won't fit in with the | ook and feel of the
nei ghbor hood and the consi stency.

| share the concern about the ANC s i nput,
It has been positive, and | hope that and expect
that it mght continue to be, but we don't know
until we hear fromthem

And so, at this point, | don't -- | believe
| may ask the applicant if there’ s any additional
information you' d |like to provide for the record?

M5. PYNE: No additional information to
provide, but |I do want to thank you, Madam Chair,
and all nenbers of the Board, this was nmy first
presentation before the Board.

| definitely thank you, M. CGoldstein, very
much for just making sure that |'mconfident in all
of ny answers. So, | appreciate the anmount of
questioning | received, but |I have no other coments
towards this. But again, | amopen to tabling this
if -- to respect ANC s process.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. And so, with that, M.
Pyne, | want to congratul ate you because you, for
your first tinme, you were exenplary.

M5. PYNE: Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: And | do believe that
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we shoul d continue this hearing so that we can have
the benefit of the ANCC. And I'd Iike to al so have
the opportunity to discuss it a little nore.

And so, with that, Ms. Mehlert, can you
take us to the next step?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair, | don’t know
about continuing the hearing. | think, unless M.
Gol dstein or Ms. Lindsjo or yourself has issues --
and Il tell you what, | think this -- once we get
the information, fromny standpoint, once we get the
information fromthe ANC, | think it would -- |
think it will be good for us to deliberate on what’s
goi ng on, unless we have additional questions.

And Ms. Pyne can always submt to the
record if we have additional questions, but that’s
the way | would nove. But let’'s see, whatever you
all decide is, you know, you’'re on the Board, but |
just was trying to nove -- because we say additional
heari ng, that neans | have to cone back.

So, that nmeans | can cone back for another
hearing. But | don't knowif this rises to the

| evel of another hearing, it just rises to the

subm ssions and I’'ll go fromthere.
But |l et nme hear fromeverybody. [|’'Il turn
it over to Ms. Mehlert and | et her opine -- | nean,
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| et you, Madam Chair, opine on how you all proceed
to proceed.

That was -- that’s nmy two cents. Thank
you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. Hood.

And so, | do need clarification on next
step, you know, having a full additional hearing may
not be warrant ed.

But, Ms. Mehlert, can you give us advice on
t he various options of noving forward?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes, absolutely. So, if
there are no -- if there’s no additional information
that the Board needs fromthe applicant, you could
close the hearing in the record, and just |eave the
record open for the ANC report, and schedule it for
a decision at a later decision neeting where you
woul dn’t take any testinony. You woul d just
del i berate and vote on the application.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. M. &oldstein, |I'd
like to ask, | know we want to wait on the ANC
comments, | want to -- |’ mwondering of your confort
| evel with what you’ ve heard, and if you believe
that what’s on the record now, and assum ng the
positive feedback fromthe ANC, that a decision vote

woul d be adequate at this point?
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VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Thank you for the
question. | think I've evolved a bit during this
di scussion. At first, |I was not sure about the
variance argunent, but | think a nunber of ny
questions have been addressed.

| think | could see a path where we ask for
sonme additional information about the lot relative
to others, but | think I may be confortable, based
on sone of the testinony provided.

|"d love to ask for sone other Board
menbers, if they feel as if nore is needed or if
they’ve had -- if they ve heard enough to satisfy
themin the review that those topics have been
covered. |'mof mxed mnd on that one.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ms. Lindsjo, could you
wei gh in, please?

MEMBER LINDSJO  Sure, | feel confortable
voting today on this matter.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Ckay, so, |
bel i eve, then, what |I'’mhearing is that a deci sion
meeting would be in order for this versus a
continued hearing, and that that wll be contingent
on recei pt of positive feedback fromthe ANC. And |
guess - -

M5. MEHLERT: | just want to clarify a
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coupl e of things.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Yes?

M5. MEHLERT: | know the applicant, you had
mentioned that you' re scheduled for the ANC neeting
next Wednesday, June 10th, is that correct? |[|s that
t heir Zoning and Econom c Devel opnent Conmittee
meeting or the full ANC neetings? Because |I'm

seeing 1E on June 24th for their full neeting.

M5. PYNE: Well, if | go back to -- that’s
what | was invited to by M. -- let ne see, Dmtri
McDaniel, well, yes, Zoning Econonm c Devel opnent

nmeeting is June 10th and that’s when he wanted ne to
present our updated design, | guess, to the Board.

M5. MEHLERT: kay. So, | think what that
means is that that's their zoning commttee and then
it would go, I'"massumng, thisis how!l -- the
other ANCs do it, that it would go to the full ANC
for their full neeting on the 24th. So, it |ooks
| i ke they neet on the fourth Wdnesday of every
nmont h.

So, if that's the case, then, we could
schedule this for decision on -- at the July 1st
meeting and ask for the ANCto word prior to that,

If they are taking the vote on June 24th.
VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | would |ike to ask,
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t hough, if the ANC, for sone reason, doesn't neet or
the report doesn’t conme inin a tinmly way, how has
that been managed in this simlar scenario in the
past ?
ZC CHAIR HOOD: Well, nost of the tine,
t hat doesn’t usually happen, Board Menber Gol dstein.
So, | nean, we can put a |lot of what ifs,
and anything, but we go with what we -- did you cut

your canera off? You want to see ne?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | hit the wong
but t on.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: So, and here’s the thing, |
mean, | think that was a good question, but if it

doesn’t happen, then the Board can adjust. But,
right now, this is -- we're going to go out there --
| think the Board should nove in the fashion what'’s
descri bed by the Chair.

But if sone of those things happen, then
we’' ve al so kicked the can down the road. W don’t
like to keep kicking it down the road, but we al so
will kick it down the road until those things are
t aken care of.

But, typically, if the ANCis scheduled to
nmeet by law, they usually do, that doesn’t usually

happen. |’ m not saying we can't, because you may be
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right, but it doesn’t usually happen. | think M.
Mehl ert’s direction, | think, is going in the right
di rection, mny opinion.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Can | ask a question
about continuance and the quorum and the
participation? |If there are four of us here today,
which is fabulous, if at least three of us was in
that continuance, it would have to be the sane three
that are here, would that be acceptable or does it
have to be all four nenbers that are here today?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: It can be just three, but
let nme just say, the reason | said | have to cone
back is because there’'ll be a Board -- another Board
-- whenever it’s reschedul ed, nine tines out of ten,
it’ll be another Zoning Comm ssioner here.

For me, and this is just nme, and | think
the evidence, especially wwth the questions that M.
&ol dstein had, and if he's not confortable, then I
woul d put a pause on it, but sounds |ike he said,
after discussion it is he --
we coul d probably go ask about a lot of alleys in
the city, but that’s not what’s in front of us.

VWhat’s in front of us is this particular
property only, and that’s what we have to deal wth.

That’s why we have to | ook at whether it’s unique,
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practical difficulty on this particular property
only, not all the ones across the city, because all
of themrise to sonme kind of |level as M. Beanon has
al ready nenti oned.

But | think that the issue is, | don't
think this rises to the I evel of a continued
hearing, and | just don’'t see it, but others nmay.

That’s why we need to have that discussion,
If M. CGoldstein, since you asked the majority of
questions, which are good questions, if you think it
rises to the |evel of continued hearing, | just
don’t want us to waste people’ s tine and waste our
tine.

When we -- | think we’ve exhausted what we
do here today and we can kind of be asked to nove
forward

Those are nmy comments, Madam Chair.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. M. oldstein, |I'd
like to take it back to you. Based on what we’'ve
heard, what woul d be your recommendation at this
poi nt ?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | think |I’ve heard
enough to make a deci si on.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay, thank you for

that. So, we'll nove this to decision neeting.
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Ms. Mehlert, let us -- would you gui de us
to the next steps, please?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes, so, if the Board does
not need anything el se and just would |ike the ANC
report, then we would close the hearing in the
record, with the exception of the ANC report, and
schedule this for a decision neeting on July 1st.

So. yes, so that would be your next step.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU: Al right. So, | wll
close this nmeeting with the action that we'll have a
deci sion neeting on July 1st with information from
t he ANC.

Thank you so much, Ms. Pyne, and others who
presented. This was our first case and | think --
wel |, second, but | think it went well. Thank you.

M5. PYNE: Thank you, Madam Chai rman and
all nmenbers of the Board, | truly appreciate you
allowng ne to present today. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  You're wel cone.

| was hoping we mght take a five-mnute
break or less, is that okay?

ZC CHAIR HOCD: That’'s fine, five m nutes,
we' | | be back.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Al right, thank you.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Thank you.
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(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went
off the record and resuned following a brief
recess.)

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay, it |ooks like we
have all returned. W wll continue our session and
proceed on to Agenda |tem Nunber 2.

Ms. Mehlert, would you introduce the item
pl ease?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes, the Board is back froma
qui ck break and returning to its hearing session.

The next case is Application Nunber 21406
of Consys, Inc. This is a self-certified
application pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901. 2,
for special exceptions under Subtitle A, Section
207.2, to allow extension of regul ations applicable
to the portion of a split zone lot located in the
| ess restrictive use zone to the portion of the | ot
in a nore restrictive use zone. And under Subtitle
C, Section 703.2, fromthe m ni num vehicl e parking
requi renents of Subtitle C, Section 701.5

This is for a new four-story detached
building with 36 dwelling units of ground fl oor
retail use, with penthouse, and roof deck on a split
zone lot. It’s located in the MJ}4 and RA-1 Zones
at 2502 Martin Luther King, Jr. Avenue, Southeast,
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Square 5868, Lot 175.

And, as a prelimnary matter, 1’|l note
that the applicant has proffered three expert
wi t nesses, Dani el Sol onon, as an expert in
transportation engineering, who is in the wtness
book, Kal oyan Yordanov as an expert in architecture,
that’s not been recogni zed by the Board, and Sean
Pi chon as an expert in architecture, who is in the
W t ness book.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. So, w ||
we hear fromthe witnesses with the applicant with
the tinme provided.

Who w Il speak first fromthe applicant,
pl ease?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair, | have a
guestion before we get to that.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  kay.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: W have three expert
W tnesses, | think Ms. Mehlert said one of them has
not been accept ed.

Ms. Mehlert, could you help nme with that,
pl ease? One of them has not been accepted?

M5. MEHLERT: Correct, Kaloyan Yordanov is
an expert in architecture, and the resune is in

Exhi bit 20C2.
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ZC CHAIR HOOD: So, typically, we review
t he resunmes and see whether or not they get expert
status, and we already have two that are in the
book, M. Pichon and M. Tenplin, | believe.

So, let’'s see, M. Yordanov, and | know I
m ssed your nane, | butchered that up, but he -- we
need to make sure that he has expert status.

And once we review his resune, M.

Gol dstei n, Madam Chair, and Ms. Lindsjo, then we can
proceed. W want to give himexpert status first,

gi ven himexpert status, the other ones we can

conti nue because they’ve been given expert status in
front of the Board previously.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Today, is that the
out cone of that?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes, yes.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Ckay.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Al we have to do is review
his resune and then we decide -- we | ook at his
resune and deci de whet her we give himexpert status
in architecture.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay, at a |l ater date,
not right now, right?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: We want to do that right

now, at the very beginning of the hearing, yes.
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BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay, so --

ZC CHAIR HOOD: What exhibit, Ms. Mehlert?

M5. MEHLERT: Exhibit 20C2.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Let’'s just look at his
resunme, |ooking, you know, let ne -- M. Tenplin, is
M. Yordanov, is he registered architect in the
District of Col unbi a?

M5. TEMPLIN. | believe, M. Yordanov --
|’ mnot sure you're not -- are you registered in
District of Colunbia?

MR YOUNG He was a little nuffling.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes, | couldn’t hear you.

M5. TEMPLIN. Okay. Yes, if you're
registered in the District of Colunbia?

MR. YORDANOV: | amregistered. | couldn’t
hear you again, but | amregistered in the District
of Col unbi a.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. Madam Chair --

(Si nul t aneous speaki ng.)

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  |'msorry, go ahead.

| was just saying, |ooking at your resune,
| have no objection to recognizing himas an expert
in architecture.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | agree, Madam Chair, |

have no objection as well. So, that’s it, unless we
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hear from Ms. Lindsjo, and she has an objection and
yourself, and then that’s it. Then, we nove into

t he case.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thanks.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Sorry for interrupting.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you.

M5. TEMPLIN. Okay, thank you very much.

Good norning, Chair Pourciau, and nenbers
of the Board. M nane is Lee Tenplin of Goul ston &
Storrs, land use counsel, on behalf of the
applicant, Consys, Inc. W greatly appreciate the
opportunity to present to you today BZA Case Nunber
21406 for 2502 Martin Luther King, Jr. Avenue,

Sout heast .

M. Young, if you could please pull up the
presentation? ay, thank you.

So, I'd like to start off by introducing
our team |’'mjoined today by ny coll eague Jeff
Uz, as well as Jay Narain, President of Consys,
Inc. On behalf of the design team M chael G aves
Architects, we have Sean Pichon and Kal oyan
Yordanov. Finally, Daniel Sol onon of Gorove/ Sl ade
Is the project transportati on expert.

Next slide, please. W are excited to

present to you a new m xed-use nulti-famly building
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| ocat ed just southeast of the Anacostia Metro Rai
Station. The application seeks the approval of two
speci al excepti ons.

First, the property is split zone, with the
majority of the property located in the MJ4 zone
and a small portion in the RA-1 zone. The
application sees a special exception pursuant to
Subtitle A Section 207.2 for an extension of the
MJ 4 zone boundary |ine by approximtely 24 feet
into the RA-1 zone to allow the height and the bul k
of the building to acconmpbdate a nore rational and
efficient floor height, particularly for the
residential units.

Second, we are requesting a speci al
exception pursuant to Subtitle C, Section 703.2 from
the mnimumrequired five vehicle parking spaces due
to the irregular and narrow shape of the | ot
| ocation at the intersection of several streets and
has great access to that canpus.

Before we dive into our presentation, |11
mention that we are pleased to have the support of
OP at Exhibit 26 of the record, and ANC 8C at
Exhi bit 33, along with a report of no objection from
DDOT at Exhibit 27.

W appreciate the feedback fromthe
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agencies which resulted in changes to the project,

i ncl udi ng additional commercial area on the ground
floor, and a revised unit |ayout based on OP Harnon.
And buil ding back approximately four feet in public
space to provide a nore useful sidewal k and nore
robust public space based on our request to DDOT.

As a note, we did also engage with ANC 8A
as an affected ANC across Martin Luther King Avenue,
and they infornmed us that it was their preference to
defer to ANC 8C at the ANC in which the property is
| ocat ed.

"Il turn it over to M. Narain to give a
bit nore background on the project. M. Pichon wll
then wal k through the plans. And M. Sol onon wl |
speak to the transportati on considerations of the
project. I’'Il then briefly wal k through the speci al
exception standards to cl ose.

And, with that, I’'Il turn it over to M.
Nar ai n.

MR. NARAIN. Good norning, everyone.
Congrat ul ati ons, Madam Chair, and to you, M.

ol dstein. M nane is Jay Narain. |’mthe
presi dent of the Consys, Inc. |’ve been a nenber of
this community since the late *70s -- ‘79, to be the

exact. So, having the opportunity to do one nore
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project, | guess, in this neighborhood beside ny two
children woul d be a great opportunity for our
conpany and our team

The uni queness of this property, it’s been
sitting for a while, and we were given this
opportunity to do sonething great with it within the
sane facade that all the new buildings that are
going up around us. W are able to conpl enent what
t he new Anacostia is all about, and we would like to
be part of it. And since |'ve been in the community
for such a long tine, it’s an honor to do that.

The uni queness of this property, you know,
we're quite unique here, M. Goldstein. W’'re
sandwi ched between Dr. King Avenue, Suitland
Par kway, and Sheridan. W’'re a footstep or two to
the Metro, and taking advantage of these new bus
route | anes and bi ke lanes. They're nore than
adequate, | think, for the need of our new residents
and the new occupants of this building, should you
allow us wth those two variants, two m nor requests
for relief of parking requirenents, and the m nor
extensi on of the zone boundary I|ine.

We have parkl and behind us. The parkway
ext ends behind us, so we’re not inpedi ng anyone

where we’re going to be renoving sone of the curb
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cuts, because this used to be, at one point, an old
gas station, so, we can give greater access for
traffic.

| do believe this project, should you all ow
It to go ahead, will contribute to the housing that
Anacostia surely needs. W do have the 36 | arge one
and two-bedroomunits, including four affordable
units at a 60 percent for the nedian famly incone
di scount .

It’s a great opportunity for Consys, Inc.,
and the District of Colunmbia, for the city, which
has been a great part of building sone of the
things, and this would be just sonething that our
community really needs, | think. And being a |ocal
builder, | would really appreciate any input you may
have and what you can do to help us get this done.
Thank you.

And thank you again, madam for your new
position, and M. Goldstein, sane to you. And the
rest of the nenbers of the Board, thank you very
much for hearing us out and | hope you give us a
t hunbs up. Thank you.

MR. PICHON: Thank you. | guess |’ mup
next. Can we go to the next slide?

Good norni ng, Chai rwoman, nenbers of the
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Board. My nane is Sean Pichon. |[|'’ma principal

here at M chael Graves Architecture D.C. office,

| eading the multifam |y housing sector.

Thank you for that great intro, stealing a
little bit of ny thunder. He did a great job of
explaining a lot of the nerits of the site. |I'm
going to run through this pretty quickly to not
duplicate too much of what was already said.

As you can see fromthis slide, we are a
triangul ated site, bounded by Martin Luther King,

Jr. Avenue, Sheridan Road, and Howard Road, and

t hen, of course, Suitland Parkway down bel ow, and
the parkway below. W’'re a quarter mle away from
the Anacostia Metro Station, so well w thin walking
di st ance.

Next slide, please. So, we’re neighboring
several new projects that have been recently built,
the new Bridge Apartnents along Martin Luther King
Avenue, Sheridan Station Apartnents, and of course,
Bet hl ehem Bapti st Church. And then the two school s,
Thur good Marshal |l Acadeny and Excel Acadeny Public
School .

Next slide, please. These are existing
conditions as it sits today. There is a current

office trailer on the site now that Consys, Inc.
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Construction Conpany occupies and is surrounded by
surface parking. So, the new devel opnent will be a
vast inprovenent to what they’ve been using it for
to this point.

Next slide. As was nentioned, we are on a
split zone site, MJ4 and RA-1. Qur building wll
propose building footprint, as you see in the
hat ched area there, we’'ll be spanning nostly on the
MJ 4, but we are seeking the exenption for special
exenption to extend into the RA-1 and continue the
MJ 4 bul k and hei ght and ot her zoning regul ati ons
into that zone.

As nentioned al so, where you can see from
t he hatched area, we are through our discussions
with DDOT and the other agencies. W'’ve agreed to
push our building back into the site to allow for
greater public access along MK, to wi den that, and
make that sidewalk a little bit nore confortable
pedestri ans.

Next slide, please. So, we are a 36-unit
building, multifamly building, wth approxi mately
2,900 square feet of retail at the corner, the apex
of the site, and closest to the Metro and the foot
traffic that will be traveling along Sheridan, MK,
and Howard Road.
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Then, our main | obby, we have two options
for this, one entering off of MK and the other off
of Sheri dan.

Those are -- we're requesting flexibility for that,
but that is sonething that we're doing in response
to sone of the Agency comments, but we have provided
bot h options here.

And in our testinony, you'll see the second
option next. And then, above that, we have typical
floors of units.

And then, at the very top, a penthouse of four units
on the top of the building.

Next slide. In this scenario, where we
| ocate the | obby towards Sheridan Road, which, in
some cases, Will draw traffic, pedestrian traffic
away fromthe nore heavily trafficked MLK. It does
reduce the amount of retail that we're able to
provide down to 2,200 square feet, but we are
gai ning one additional unit in this scenario on the
ground floor, so up to 37 units.

Next slide, please. W are neeting all the
ot her zoning requirenents within the MJ4 zoni ng.

W are within the 50-foot height limt, plus
pent house. And our project is incorporating a

nunber of materials from masonry, cenentitious
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siding, and netal panels to nmake up the facade.

Next slide, please. This is a view from
t he Sheridan Road, continuing the sane materiality
and design intent around Sheridan Road, so, there is
no real backside of this building. The building
design waps all four sides, or all five sides in
this case, because we have nultiple facades around
the entire perineter of the building.

Next slide, please. These are renditions,
the next three slides of renditions is to show the
bui l ding in context which share an end station in
t he backdrop there. And then, this is a view
| ooking from MK intersection towards the property.

Next slide. This is a view |looking from
M_K, | ooki ng back towards the property, nore towards
the Suitland Parkway side.

And then, the next slide. This a view
| ooking fromthe Sheridan Road side of the property.

And, with that, I’mgoing to turn it over
to our traffic, and they' re going to go to the next
sl i de.

MR, SOLOMON: Thanks, Sean. Good nor ni ng,
nmenbers of the BZA Zoni ng Conm ssion and Chair Hood.

For the record, |I’m Daniel Sol onon, principal wth

CGorove/ Sl ade Associates, Inc. W’ve been working
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with the applicant and the project team of DDOT
related to the transportation aspects of the 2502
MK, Jr. Avenue, Southeast project. I|I’'mgoing to
touch on one of the -- on the highlights of our
revi ew and coordi nation with DDOT.

The project is situated within the
Anacosti a nei ghborhood with MLK Avenue to t he west,
open space in Suitland Parkway to the south,
Sheridan Road sout heast to the east, and Howard Road
southeast to the north. It’s located at a transit-
rich, increasingly bicycle and pedestrian
nei ghbor hoods, which m nim zes the need for personal
vehi cl es.

Specifically, the site is |ocated across
the street fromthe Anacostia Metro Rail Station
Wi th access to the Geen Line. And it’'s served by
12 Metrobus routes. There are nultiple existing bus
stops within a quarter mle of the site,
specifically along MLK and the Anacostia Avenue
Metro Rail Station, and MK includes bus-only | anes.

The project has access to several on-street
bicycle facilities, including shared | anes al ong
Howar d Road, M.K Avenue, and Sheridan Road, which
can be used to access off-street trails, such as the

Anacostia R ver Rverwalk Trail, and the Bull Lane
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Al r Force Base Bike Trail, as well as the Suitland
Parkway Trail as well.

There are two Capitol BikeShare stations
| ocated within the 10 m nutes wal k of the site,
offering access to 29 docks. The site is also
surrounded by a robust pedestrian network that
consists of well-connected sidewal ks and crosswal ks.

Next slide, please. Al existing curb cuts
for the property will be renoved as part of the
proposed devel opnent. No vehicul ar parking is being
proposed, and I’Il be discussing that in the next
sl i de.

Pedestri an and bicycle access and
circulation are shown on the screen in yell ow and
green, respectively. Pedestrian access to the ground
floor retail use is proposed at the northwest corner
of the project at the intersection of MK, Sheridan,
and Howard, and as well along the western frontage
of the site on MK

Pedestrian access to the residential use
will be provided by the primary buil ding entrance on
Sheridan or MK, depending on the floor option.
Based on our request from DDOT, the applicant has
shifted the building footprint back from MK to

provi de wi der sidewal ks.
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Short-term bicycle parking will be provided
on the northern frontage of the site, adjacent to
the retail pedestrian and entrance. Long-term
bi cycle parking is located in a secure bicycle room
accessed by MK from Sheridan. The applicant w ||
provide 16 long-termand 6 short-term bicycle
par ki ng spaces whi ch exceed zoni ng requirenents.

Additionally, at |least 10 percent of the
| ong-term spaces will have access to electrical
outl ets per DDOT guidelines. DDOT is supportive of
t he anobunt of bicycle parking that is being provided
by the project.

Next slide, please. Due to the small size
and narrow triangul ar shape of the lot, the
applicant is not proposing any parking on-site and
Is requesting relief fromthe five required parking
spaces.

As nentioned previously, the | ocation of
the siteis a transit rich, increasingly pedestrian,
and bicycle-friendly area that pronotes nultinodal
transportation and mnimzes the reliance on
personal vehicl es.

Not ably, to further support the devel opnent
and ot her uses along this segnent of Sheridan Road,

the applicant is proposing an on-street | oading
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zone.

Now, the streetscape inprovenents, which
may allow for the creation of on-street parking on
Sheridan Road, is supportive of the requested
parking relief.

In terns of |oading, the devel opnent is not
required to provide on-site building facilities, as
| ess than 50 dwelling units and 5,000 square feet of
resal e are proposed.

However, in order to accommobdate the site’s
antici pated | oadi ng needs, including service and
delivery vehicles, trash collection, and nove-in
routes, the applicant is proposing a seven-foot w de
cur bsi de | oadi ng zone al ong Sheridan, while
narrow ng the two existing 14-foot travel lanes to
approximately 10 and a half feet each to give
adequat e space for the spec’s | oading demand and to
preserve vehicular flow al ong the roadway.

As there is an existing bus stop along the
spec’s frontage on Sheridan, the applicant is
exploring a 60 to 100-foot curb extension fromthe
I ntersection of MK, Sheridan, and Howard to
physically narrow the travel |anes, enhance safety
and visibility for pedestrians and bus riders, and

prevent conflicts between the curbside | oadi ng zone,

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

65

and the bus stop.

As nmentioned previously, these streetscape
I nprovenents may allow for the creation of
approximately 80 feet of on-site parking along the
front of the site, which could al so be extended
about 600 feet southwards in terns of adding on-
street parking there, as well, towards Bowen Road,
ei ther along the western or eastern frontage of
Sheri dan Road.

The | ocati on and design of the curbside
| oadi ng zone and potential parking |ane will be
coordi nated further wth DDOT during the public
space permtting process.

Next slide, please. As the applicant is
proposi ng a curbside | oadi ng zone on Sheri dan Road,
Sout heast, the | oadi ng managenent plan is provided
as part of the project to help mtigate any inpacts
that the proposed | oadi ng configuration may have
within the public realm

Here, we have listed the highlights of the
| oadi ng managenent plan, which will ensure efficient
operations of the | oading zone through appropriate
| evel s of managenent and schedul ed operations. DDOT
I's supportive of the proposed | oadi ng managenent

pl an.
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Next slide, please. Here, we've listed the
hi ghli ghts of the Transportati on Demand Managenent
Plan that we coordi nated and agreed to with DDOI and
I ncl udes many of the typical conponents expected in
such a package.

W believe this TDM plan is appropriate for
this type of project to help encourage non-single
occupancy vehicle trips and non-auto trips as well.

Next slide, please. |In sunmary, for this
project, we perfornmed a transportation statenent
with the scope with DDOT. Qur study concl uded t hat
t he proposed devel opnent will not have a detrinental
| npact on the surrounding transportation network and
mnimze its inpact by providing a robust TDM pl an
and a | oadi ng managenent pl an.

Furthernore, the project proposes
significant streetscape enhancenents along the site
frontage, such as renoving all existing curb cuts,
noving the building footprint to increase sidewal k
wi dth, and providing a curb extension in tandemwth
bus stop relocation that will inprove pedestrian
experi ence.

Requested relief fromthe five to eight-
foot parking spaces is not expected to have a

detrinmental inpact on the |ocal transportation
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net wor K.

The site is surrounded by a very well -
connected existing network, transit, bicycle, and
pedestrian facilities that wll result in an
envi ronnent for safe, enjoyable, and effective non-
vehi cul ar transportati on.

The proposed curbside | oading zone and
potential parking | ane on Sheridan Road, as well as
an establishnment of a | oadi ng managenent plan, wll
further aneliorate any additional inpacts.

We have coordi nated extensively wth DDOT
during the review. W’re pleased to have their
support in the formof a no objection staff report.

DDOT" s report did include two conditions
whi ch require the applicant to i nplenent the TDM and
| oadi ng managenent plans, as included in the
transportation statenent, which the applicant has
agreed to do.

The applicant will continue to coordinate
with DDOT as part of the public space permtting
process. At this tinme, we have addressed all of
DDOTI’ s concer ns.

That will conclude ny testinony, and |’ 1|
be avail able to answer any questions. Thank you,

and Il pass it back to Ms. Tenplin.
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M5. TEMPLIN.  Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ms. Tenplin?

M5. TEMPLIN:.  Yes?

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: You are over the tine.

Thank you, M. Sol onon, for sonmewhat speedy
at the end. 1Is there nore you want to add?

M5. TEMPLIN. So, yes, | wanted to wal k
t hrough the special exception standards, but |'m
happy to rest on the record. The slides are there
and all in the record. | could just give a brief
closing if that woul d be preferable.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Yes, could you do
that? | don't know if you could get closer to your
mc, but youre alittle nuffled, so nmaybe -- or
speak a little | ouder maybe. Okay.

MS. TEMPLIN: Does this work? O | wonder

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Yes, that’s a little
better.

M5. TEMPLIN. Yes. So, to close, we
bel i eve the application neets all of the required
criteria for the two special exceptions. As |
menti oned, we have the support of OP and ANC 8C, and
a report of no objections from DDOT.

| would like to specifically express our
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gratitude to ANC 8C, we had numerous neetings about
the project. W are truly grateful for the tine and
care wth which they spent considering the
appl i cati on.

W' re excited for this much needed new
housing. The project will bring sone inportant
transit adjacent corner in the District, and we
real |y appreciate the Board s tine today. Thank
you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. That was a
good presentation. W -- 1'd like to open up the
floor to Board nenbers to see if they have any
guesti ons.

Again, |I'll start with M. Gol dstein.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. And |
think that was an excellent presentation, so thank
you all very nmuch. | do have a few questions, sone
alittle bit nore specific than the others.

The first is, | believe in the extension of

the zone line, it requires conpliance of A207. 1.
And one of the threshold questions of 207.1 is that
this is alot that was in single owership as of
1958.

Coul d you please just confirmthat for the

record?
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M5. TEMPLIN: Yes, | can confirmthat. W
do have a plat showing that it was sol e ownership at
that time previously. W provided that to the
Zoni ng Adm ni strator.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Ckay, thank you.
Concerning the TDM conditions, is there any daylight
between DDOT’ s report and recitation of conditions
and your TDM exhibit that’s been submtted?

MS. TEMPLIN.  Daniel ?

MR, SOLOMON:. Sure, sure. | don't believe
so. | think the only update we had fromthe
transportati on statenent was that the nunber of
| ong-term and short-term bicycl e parking spaces have
I ncreased fromwhat was included in the
transportation statenent.

So, they had supported it with fewer
parking -- bicycle parking spaces and we’'re
provi di ng even nore than what was included in the
transportati on statenent.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Okay. Concerni ng
t he | oadi ng managenent plan, this is sonething that
both you and DDOT are supportive of and want to nake
a condition of the order, is that correct? 1In spite
of the fact that there’s no loading relief in

conpl ex | oadi ng?
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MR SCLOMON: Correct, DDOT asked for the
| oadi ng managenent plan in order to better nanage a
per side | oading area.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. | have one
nore set of questions that I'd like to ask, and it’s
about the options that were put forward. And |
bel i eve the options rearranged, just my observation,
t hey rearranged the ground floor sone, including the
size of the retail, maybe the | obby, and there’s an
addi tional unit in one of the options.

| f we asked you to just pick an option, to
have as the option going forward, m ndful of the
Zoning Admnistrator flexibility that's built into
the system as well as |ikely changes brought by the
Omi bus, are you able to, on the spot, pick the
option that you prefer and go wwth that as the
recorded approved plan that you want?

M5. TEMPLIN. And yes, | think we have both
options in there to preserve flexibility based on
conversations with DDOT in terns of the entrance of
the | obby, that that the reason to show the | obby on
ei t her side.

| will leave it up to M. Narain to speak
to if he has a preference between the two options.

I think, you know, in our mnd, they are not major
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material changes, they're, | nmean, there' s the one
unit that the location of the |obby is all internal
changes.

So, M. Narain, | don't know if you have a

preference between the two or M. Pichon?

MR PICHON. | would say it’'s a matter of,
| mean, one, you get an extra unit versus smaller
retail. | think, if it were solely up to ne, |
woul d think that the entrance off of Sheridan Road
was a safer, nore conducive | obby |ocation.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. My concern,
generally, is that, at permtting tine, there
typically needs to be certainty of which plan the
BZA adopted, and | think alternate plans can create
some downstream questi ons.

In addition, the ZA flexibility is neant to
accommodate many of the flexibilities for an
approved plan. So, | ama little bit hesitant with
approvi ng alternates.

And ny own preference, and | leave it up to
t he other Board menbers to al so ask or make their
own j udgnent on, would be to go with one preferred
pl an and then, being mndful of what flexibility is
allowed in the future.

MR UTZ: Can | just nention -- sorry, Jeff
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Uz, with Goulston & Storrs, |[and use counsel on
behal f of the applicant.

The mai n reason that we were nmaintaining
that flexibility is so that we can respond to the
public design configuration that we wll, hopefully
hel p, evol ve, but we don’t know for sure. You know,
much of this -- the building s already setting back
fromthe street ot lines a couple feet to nake
t hose si dewal ks usabl e.

So, there’'s going to be a fairly rich
Interaction here wth the public space and the
permts that are necessary to kind of invest in
t hose spaces, including sone of the |oading al ong
the actual street right of way.

So, there’'s going to be this conplicated
set of steps that cone fromthis. So, the intent is
to allow the I obby to flex with wherever that ends
up, since it is -- there is sone gray areas to do
wi th how DDOT and the vari ous agencies review ng
those permts will want things going out.

So, that was really the point of -- it was
meant to be a fairly narrow set of flexibility
benchmarks that really woul dn’t change nuch about
the use, and the exterior is neant to flowin a

simlar way as wel | .
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So, | do think we would prefer to keep the
flexibility, if it’s not sonething that the Board
prefer, and clearly, we accede to your w shes, so
that is the -- | wanted you to understand a bit nore
about why we kind of ended up there.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. I'II let ny
col l eagues chinme in. One of the issues is adding

units, typically, is sonmething that A304.10 is

specific -- specifically addresses about projects
getting bigger. | understand there's kind of just
one unit at play. | think the rest of the ground

fl oor should just be flex. There's the flexibility,
but | don't want to prejudge that.

"Il let ny colleagues weigh in a bit. M
preference is to pick one, but | understand what
you're --this is a mnor anount of change that
you're proposing, all that's sort of allowed within
sort of the matter of right of the zone.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you, M.

ol dstein, and thank you for those answers.

Ms. Lindsjo, did you have any questions?

MEMBER LINDSJO | don't have any
guestions. Thank you for a great presentation. |
really appreciate the project, especially around the

TDM But | do want to kind of go wwth Goldstein. |
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do think it could be helpful to kind of decide which
way you're going with the entrance.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you so nmuch for
that. 1'd like to add sone questions about the
transportation report. There's a significant nunber
of provisions listed in that report -- well, not
significant, but alterations that woul d occur
dependi ng on the options. That gives ne pause, as
well. Can you talk at all about how you mght tie
down t hose options w thout selecting one
alternative?

MR SOLOMON: Do you want ne to take a
guess at that? | mght need clarification here from
other folks on the team But in terns of the
options being considered, it's just a ground fl oor
option, right? So it's either whether the entrance
Is on MLK or on Sheridan.

My understanding is that the TDM pl an t hat
we've commtted to, as well as the coordination wth
DDOT on the proposed streetscape inprovenents that
we' re making, are not contingent on either option.
So we're going to be nmaking those inprovenents
regardl ess and commtted to those TDM pl ans
regardl ess and as well the | oadi ng managenent plan

regar dl ess.
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DDOT' s preference was for access off of
Sheri dan because they believed it would be nore
i kel y, especially around pickup/drop-offs with
Ubers, Lyfts, cabs, et cetera. Their preference is
that it occur on Sheridan and not wthin the bus
| ane on MLK, which is why they nade the request, and
| think that option was provided.

But in ternms of the TDM plan and the
| oadi ng managenent plan we've commtted to, there
shoul d not be optionality within there. W've
commtted to those regardl ess of the ground fl oor
opti on.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:. M. Hood, do you have
questions, please?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes, | have a few
guestions. | would just caution the applicant to
listen to what M. CGoldstein says. |I'mnot famliar
wWth the ZA's office to that extent, but | wll tell
you that, as one conm ssioner for years who thought
that the ZA should not have any flexibility, we
m ght want to really listen to what M. CGoldstein is
sayi ng about keeping an option, but we'll see how
t hat pans out here.

M. Uz, | know you all have done this a

ot in these options, and | know that's happened in
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the past, but, M. Goldstein, that's one thing that
he brings very uniquely to this board now He knows
how sonme of those things work where sonme of us
don't, including nyself, and |'ve been around a
whi | e.

Let's tal k about the design of the
building. First of all, let nme just say this. |
really like the design of the building, but I want
to ask M. Pichon, there doesn't seemto be a bl ank
wal |, and it was very crappy. It remnds ne of
another site that we did where it didn't have any
backs, and that was on Georgia Avenue. M. Pichon,
there's no blank walls on this, at least |I don't see
it in the renderings.

MR PICHON: No, there are not, because we
have access to air and light on all sides, so we're
accommodati ng ventilation, air, w ndows, penetration
all around the buil ding.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: G eat. Thank you. And
again, | think it's an excellent design for an
excel l ent spot. W just want to nmake sure we flesh
out the requirenents that are being asked for for
relief because, when | first started |looking at it,
it was going to go into the RA1, and | said, well,

what is there in the encroachnent? Then when |
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| ooked at the photos, | said, okay, so there's no
encroachnent .

M. Sol onon, |let ne cone to you about the
bi ke | anes -- not the bike | anes, the bike parking
and the bi ke park, and nmaybe the applicant is nmaybe
the person | need to ask. |Is there a nessaging for
peopl e who would like to go in a facility about no
cars because you're asking for -- you're not
provi di ng any parking, and, unlike a |ot of cases,

It would be very difficult to park in the

nei ghborhood. Well, it's not difficult. But, you
know, nobody's going to really park in the

nei ghbor hood.

What type of nessaging, M. Solonon, has
been done? And | know we're not putting in the
| eases. We've been down that road about putting the
| eases about you can | ease here, but you can't have
a car. Kind of walk nme through that and expl ain how
t hat wor ks because what you're asking for, you're
asking for relief fromparking. So how does that --
what's the nessagi ng? Let nme just ask that.

M5. TEMPLIN:. M. Sol onon, do you want to
take that? 1'll just chinme in and say that it's a
little prelimnary, and |'msure that there wll

definitely be that nessaging. | nean, | think when
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residents cone to this building, they will be aware
that there is no parking | ocated on site, and yet

there are bicycle facilities and there is very

near by bus and train options. So | think that that
will just kind of be in the marketing for the units.

"1l et M. Solonmon add anything. Do you
have anything el se?

MR. SOLOMON: No. That's a great question.

| think part of what our proposal is trying to also
add by creating that curb extension and narrow ng
the very wide |anes on Sheridan is to create a curb
side | ane where parking can go. So we'd be
effectively, as part of this project, adding parking
to the nei ghborhoods that potential residents of
this building could use as well.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. Thank you for that
answer. We've heard this quite a bit. If there's
ever atime | think | could probably go along with
Subtitle C703.2 is now, and | think this is well
done. It's well polished. 1| know others may have
ot her questions, but, again, | like the design. |
i ke what you're working wth, and it |ooks good.
And | think it neets all the requirenents,
especi ally under the special exception and under the

par ki ng request.
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Al right. That's all | have, Madam Chair.
Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. One nore
question. M. Solonon. You probably said earlier.
The wal ki ng di stance to the Metro, what was that?

MR SOLOVON: | think it's less than 0.1 of
amle. It's across the street.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Very good. That's
excellent. | think we'll go fromhere to hear the
report from--

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. My apologies. Can |
ask one nore question? There was a |letter that
commented quite a bit on the project in the record.

| think it's Exhibit 23. | just wondered if the
appl i cant coul d address sone of the concerns that
were raised.

M5. TEMPLIN.  Yes, of course. So sone of
the concerns that were raised in that letter by, |
believe it was Christopher Coner, the first was the
failure of a nmeaningful transition to the RA-1 zone.

And we woul d point out that there is no requirenent
that there be a transition to the RA-1 zone. In
addition, the extension is very mnimal. The
building wll only extend about 10.5 feet into the

RA-1 zone, when the density is only about 1,780
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square feet of density into the RA-1 zone.

Also, the lot to the rear of this property
Is vacant federal land. | believe the letter m ght
refer to sone lowdensity residential that's
abutting, but there is vacant |and that abuts this
property.

The letter al so has concerns about the
flexibility notes, and we would just state that
flexibility is pretty par for the course for orders
like this. The application is really focused on the
relief, the two special exceptions we are
requesting. Another point that the letter makes is
that, in terns of the detail of the facade, and |
woul d say, you know, this is, again, we are focused
on the special exception for the vehicle parking and
the zone boundary lines, and we believe that we've
presented sufficient information for both of those
t hi ngs.

The letter al so addresses the nmassing
I npacts, and we believe the massing is entirely
consistent with the nei ghborhood. |f you | ook
across Sheridan Road, there is the Sheridan Station
devel opnent. | believe it's about 5 stories across
14 acres. | think there's about 344 units that were

approved for that devel opnent that's there today.
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And then a little bit to the northeast of this
property is the bridge, which is another five-story
multifamly building. So we believe the massing
really is consistent wwth the nei ghborhood.

The letter also nentions the TDM pl an, and
| believe -- | can't renenber if the letter cane in
before or after, but the TDMplan is in the record
now. So we do have that, and, as M. Sol onon has
spoken to, we are agreeing to that, as well as the
| oadi ng managenent pl an.

Finally, the letter also, | think, hits on
a lack of a landscape buffer, and we are sendi ng
back about four extra feet in response to a request
from DDOT fromthe MK frontage, which wll expand
that sidewal k and make that sidewal k nore usabl e.
And | believe those are the main points of the
letter, but please feel free to ask any ot her
speci fic questions.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  No, that's hel pful.
| mjust curious, have you had any direct
comuni cation with this individual?

M5. TEMPLIN. We have not. W were
expecting to have sonme or for himto conme to the ANC
neetings, but | don't believe he did or, if he did,

we did not have direct conversations with him
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VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. [|I'm
sorry, Madam Chairperson. Please continue.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.

Gol dstein. That was a good followup. So why don't
we, if there are no other discussion right now from
t he board nmenbers, we'll hear reports fromthe
various offices. | think | see Joshua Mtchum here
fromthe Ofice of Planning.

MR MTCHUM Yes. Thank you, Madam Chair,
and good norning to the fellow board nenbers. MW
nane i s Joshua Mtchumw th the O fice of Planning.

We are in support of the application. W believe
that the applicant has net the burden of proof to
get a special exception fromthe m ni num vehicle
parking requirenents of Subtitle C, 701.5, as well
as a special exception for the zoned boundary I|ine
crossing the lot requirenents of Subtitle A 207. 2.

And we're ready for any questions that you may
have. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU.  Ms. Lindsjo, any
questions for OP?

MEMBER LINDSJO None at this tinme. Thank
you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. M.

CGol dst ei n?
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VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  No, thank you. |
think it was a good report. Thank you for
addressing the relief.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Very good. M. Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | have no questions either.

M. Mtchum thank you again for a well-done
report. Thank you, Madam Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Are there
ot hers present fromthe governnment? And thank you,
M. Mtchum Please stay on in case if we have any
followup. | appreciate you. |Is anyone else from
t he governnment here to give a report? M. Lindsjo?

MEMBER LINDSJO.  No, none at this tine.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ms. Maynard. Nobody
here. Okay. |Is there a report fromthe ANC? |Is
t he ANC present?

MR. YOUNG The ANC is not present.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Are there
ot her parties who have signed up to testify that we
coul d hear from now?

MR. YOUNG W had one w tness signed up,
but he is not on and our staff was unable to get in
touch with him So, no, we do not have anyone to
testify.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  kay.
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ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair, | would just
suggest that we call his nanme so it will be in the
record that we did call for him so we don't have to
come back next week and have anot her hearing.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: Al right. So what |
see is there was a public witness, M. Christopher
Comer, signed up to testify today. He was to speak
I n opposition, and, as was just recorded, we've
tried to reach out to him and he has not conme on as
of yet. So we'll assune he decided not to testify.

|'"d like to then go back to the Board for
any final discussion. What |I'mhearing at this
point is that the two options give ne a | ot of
pause. The option with the entrance on MK sounds
particularly difficult for transportati on access,
but | understand the difference for the devel opnent.

| think the other questions have been answered
satisfactorily, and |I'm pleased with hearing that.

Board nenbers, |'mfeeling like | don't
want to choose an option for the applicant, and M.
Gol dstein has kindly asked the applicant if they
could select an option. Maybe I'd like to ask the
applicant again is there an option you're wlling to
sel ect today?

MS. TEMPLIN  Yes. | believe that the
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Board, if it depends on whether or not the Board
noves forward today, | believe we would go with the

option wth the additional unit and the | obby

frontage on Sheridan Road. | would just point out
that the genesis, | think, of this flexibility cane
fromconversations with OP back early, | think it

was even before we filed, where we had a different
ground floor and they asked for sone rearrangenent.

So that's just where the two options came out of.
But, again, if the Board is willing to nove forward
based on a decision, we are willing to nake that
deci si on t oday.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. M. Mtchum can you
speak to that, please?

MR MTCHUM | would ask Ms. Tenplin, did
t hose di scussions take place?

M5. TEMPLIN. Yes. | think it was prior.
So it was with Jennifer Steingasser and Joel Lawson.

So | think it was maybe | ate summer. So it was
prior to filing, though. Early days.

MR MTCHUM Ckay. | was likely not
privy, as ny tenure with OP started January of | ast
year. So |'m separate to that.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. Ckay. So I'ma little

confused, Ms. Tenplin. Can you clarify? There were
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earlier discussions. You then went about com ng up
with two options, but, since then, you didn't

sel ect, even though it sounds |like two options
weren't on the table in continued di scussions.

M5. TEMPLIN. Correct, yes. Wen we cane
to actually file the application, we brought those
back to OP to address their conmments. | believe it
had to do wth the |location of the trash room and
there was anenity space, as well, that kind of got
shifted around to address their comments. But we
went into the application hoping to preserve sone
kind of flexibility to allow for these two
alternatives. And, again, we don't think that they
are very material. They are entirely interior and
typically wwthin flexibility that is allowable for
the zoning admnistrator, as Vice Chair Goldstein
poi nt ed out.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: So |'ll ask again,
woul d you like to select an option at this tinme? |If
not, I amnot hearing that we are able to nake a
deci sion for you.

MS. TEMPLIN. | nean, so, yes, we are
prepared to go with the Sheridan | obby entrance
| ayout if we need to choose one.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:.  And is that option
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two with the 37 units? |'msorry, pardon ne.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: No, go ahead, Board Menber
Gol dstein. Go ahead.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  I'msorry. Just to
clarify, is that the option two with the 37-unit
devel opnent ?

M5. TEMPLIN:. That is option two, and |'1|
let M. Pichon weigh in just to confirm

MR. PICHON: That is correct.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair, did | hear --
|"'mtrying to remenber what M. Utz said about the
options were there due to continued conversations
with the community, or was it conti nued
conversations with OP, or did | mshear that, M.

U z?

MR UTZ. Yes, thank you. It is continued
conversations nostly wwth DDOT as part of public
space. So OP will be involved to a degree, and the
community will be involved to a degree as well, but
it's primarily so that there is an ability to
respond to the public space permts that are
approved for these adjacent spaces, you know, the
curb cuts and then the | oadi ng zone and what ever
el se needs to happen as part of the hardscapi ng of

those areas. W were trying to have the flexibility
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to respond to that.

ZC CHAIR HOOD:  So if we nail down, | think
option two or whatever, | don't necessarily like to
get into nailing down and picking projects, but if
we nail down option two and you go -- and what M.
Gol dstei n nentioned happens at the public space,
what happens? Do you have to cone back? |'mtrying
to figure out how you don't cone back here. That's
where I'mat. Not that we don't |ike seeing you,
but I"mjust trying to figure it out.

MR UTZ: W appreciate that. So we woul d
try to utilize the flexibility under the
regul ati ons, as Vice Chair Coldstein was
referencing, that relate to the flexibility of the
zoning adm nistrator to sign off on a permt that is
comng in subject to BZA. But if not, if the change
Is too significant to live wthin that safe harbor
we woul d cone back as a nodification, likely a
nodi fication wthout a hearing for sonething |ike
this if it inpacted the exterior. So that is why we
wanted to build that in as kind of that additional
| atitude so that there wasn't a need to cone in and
take up nore of the board's tinme during a public
meeting. That is what would ultimtely happen if

it's just beyond that scope, flexibility purpose, on
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ei ther of those here.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: M. Utz, | think in recent
years the Board has not really allowed a whol e | ot
of flexibility. |Is that a correct statenent?

MR UTZ: It is true, yes. W were trying
to make this very narrow. W were trying to, with
t hat awareness, kind of live within what coul d be
al lowed. So we weren't changi ng uses or anything
like that. It was neant to be a really kind of
bespoke arrangenent, and that's actually why it's so
distinct. There's an option one and an option two,
but not kind of a qualitative or sort of kind of
descri ption of what can happen. W wanted to show
you exactly option A option B, and |leave it at
that, so that we didn't run afoul of asking for too
much flexibility.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Okay. Al right. Mdam
Chair, | wll leave it up to you all, but | just
want to nake sure that we don't put an extra burden
and waste not just the Board's tinme but the public's
time in dealing wwth sonething like this. So | wll
yield to what the Board chooses to do. I'mfine wth
it either way. But | do not |ike picking projects,
and that's where |"'mat. Thank you, Madam Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. And so
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that's why | opened up -- | asked Ms. Tenplin about
if they were willing to nake a sel ection thensel ves
today, and so | need to know procedurally. She said
and the architect agreed that the option two would
be their selected option. | don't know, Ms.

Mehl ert, how would we proceed with that in terns of
the record or the notion? Wuld that have to be

i ncluded in the notion?

M5. MEHLERT: You can clarify, if the Board
w shes to approve the application, you can include
in your notion to clarify that it would be, |
believe it's sheet A 13 in Exhibit 24A for the
| obby | ocation. So you can just include that.
That's what we would include in the order.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. M. CGoldstein and M.
Li ndsjo, are you all confortable with proceeding in
that way, or are there other itens that you still
m ght have sone questions about on this?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, | feel
confortabl e proceeding that way. To M. Hood's
comments, I'mnot trying and | hope not creating any
addi tional burdens for the applicant. | just think
there's a benefit in having sone certainty of which
plan we're approving. And | certainly can't

prej udge what DOD or QZA could viewit, but | think
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this sounds |ike a reasonabl e approach.

So | think the applicant is -- this is a
terrific project that the applicant is proposing.
think they've net all the standards, and | woul d be
confortable with voting on it. And then just |
think there's going to be nore than one condition,

i ncluding conditions related to the DDOT TDM pl an
and the |ike, but just specifying which is the

sel ected option that the applicant has said that

t hey have offered as the one that they prefer. And
fromeverything |I've heard, they're willing to nove
forward today with that selection.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ms. Lindsjo.

MEMBER LINDSJO | also agree with that.
think that we can nove forward with having them
stating a preferred |location noving forward for the
| obby.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Excellent. M. Hood
al ready expressed. Wuld soneone like to enter a

notion for the Board on this project?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | can get us
started, but | don't know -- please fill in the gaps
for me that | mght mss. | vote to approve -- oh,

l"msorry. Go ahead.

MS. MEHLERT: No, that's fine. |If the
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Board is concluding with the hearing and deciding to
nove into deliberations, you can see if there's any
closing fromthe applicant and then excuse the
w t nesses, and then the Board can nove into
del i berati ons.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so nuch.
Yes. Are there any other itens the applicant woul d
i ke to discuss before we nove to deliberations?

M5. TEMPLIN. No. [|'Il just reiterate that
we believe the application neets all of the criteria
and that the project offers inportant new housing on
this transit adjacent corner in Anacostia, achieving
a nunber of district goals, and we really appreciate
t he support from OP and ANC, AC, and the no
objection fromDDOI. And we thank the agencies, the
community, and the Board for their time and
consideration. So thanks so nuch.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. | want to thank you,
M. Narain, M. Pichon, M. Sol onon, great
presentation, wonderful project, and hopefully we
can get this one noved. W |ook forward to working
w th you.

MR. NARAIN. Thank you, Madam Chair, M.
Gol dstein, M. Hood. Excellent, excellent. Thank

you very nmuch. And to give us a goal at this stage,
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really, really, really appreciate it. And this is
sonmething |'ve dreanmed about getting done in
Anacostia since the early days, so we | ook forward
to getting it done. Thank you again.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Al right. M.
Mehl ert, shall we nove to deliberations?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes. | will just let -- Pau
Young, our admnistrator, our Webex adm nistrator,
has sone technical issues, so we just need to give
hima second to conme on and excuse the w tnesses.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Ckay. Thank you.
Okay. | think everyone has been excused. Al
right. So we can have further deliberation now, or
we could proceed with a notion. Do we want to talk
about it alittle nore? M. Coldstein, you seemto
be ready to offer a first option, so naybe that's a
good place to start. Thank you.

| think I junped the gun earlier. | think
It's a trenendous project. It's a great site for the
project. | think they've net the criteria of 701.5
for the m ni num vehicle parking requirenments subject
to 703.2 and 901.2. The record was robust. There
was a good presentation that explained the project
and relief needed.

| also think that the applicant has net the
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burden of 807.2, which is to extend the zone
boundary line. It's a pretty m niml anount of
extension, and they've net the criteria of 901.2.
l"msorry, I"'mkind of |eading to nmaking a notion.

| would nmake a notion to approve the project --
you'll have to correct me if | am saying things out
of order as I'mkind of learning this -- conditioned
on the plans that were submtted into the record, |
don't have the exhibit nunber, but specifically the
option that the applicant indicated as the one they
want to go with, which has 37 units, | believe,

unl ess soneone can correct nme otherw se, as opposed
to 36 units, which is the caption of the case and

al so subject to the condition of the applicant's TDM
pl an.

| hope that's a robust enough notion for our

pur poses.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. |s there a discussion
on that notion? WelIl, | guess, is there a second on
t he notion?

M5. TEMPLIN.  Seconded.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: |s there a discussion?

| do want to ask -- go ahead.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Further discussion. It's

been noved and probably seconded, so I want to give
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further discussion. | would agree with Board Menber
CGol dstein's nmotion. The only caveat | would add --

| think he hit all the necessary relief requested.
The only thing I would add is that it's always good
to see soneone fromthe community when they're doing
this type of devel opnent, and | want to conmend the
devel oper on this and this team |It's always good,
when t hey know the community, they can cone in and
nmeet the needs of the conmmunity and work with the
conmunity in that fashion.

That's all | have to add. Thank you, Madam
Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. I n discussion,
realized we didn't see the ANC. There was no
community present, but it |ooks |ike they' ve been
doing a lot of work there, as you said, M. Hood, so
that's great. |If there's no further discussion, M.
Li ndsjo, did you have anything el se you wanted to
of fer?

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Not at this point.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. Good. I'd like to
call the vote. M. CGoldstein, you offered the
notion. How would you -- oh, | turn it over to Ms.
Mehl ert now?

ZC CHAIR HOOD:  Yes, Ms. Mehlert will call
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t he vote.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:  Ms. Mehlert, would you

call the vote, please? Thank you. M. Coldstein,
you didn't junp the gun before. | think we're all
kind of figuring out the pace here, so | think it's
going really well. Thank you, M. Hood and M.
Lindsjo. W're all working this through well. M.
Mehl ert, thank you.

M5. MEHLERT: Sure. And just to clarify,
so the Board is including both the TDM condition and
t he | oadi ng managenent plan in its notion to
approve?

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Yes. Should we say
DOT report? W' re saying those two things. That
i ncludes all of the recommendations from DDOT.

M5. MEHLERT: Yes. So you're nmking a
notion to approve the application with the condition
of the TDM and the | oadi ng managenent plan and DDOT
report in the record.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you.

M5. MEHLERT: Al right. Wen | call your
nane, please respond to the vice chair's notion to
approve the application with condition. Chairperson
Pour chi au.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  Yes.
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M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair ol dstein.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Board Menber Lindsjo.

MEMBER LI NDSJO.  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: And Chai rman Hood.

ZC CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would report the vote
of 4-0-1 to approve application nunber 21406 with
condi tions on the notion nade by Vice Chair
ol dstei n and seconded by Board Menber Lindsjo.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, Ms.
Mehlert. So this session, this application is
closed now, and it's okay to nove to the next agenda
item Thank you very nmuch. Wuld you proceed?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes. The next case is
application nunber 21415 of Robert Kyle Bivens and
Jose Duron MIlla, as anended. This is a self-
certified application pursuant to Subtitle X
Section 901. 2, for special exceptions, under
Subtitle E, Section 5201, fromthe rear yard
requi renents, Subtitle E, Section 207.1, and under
Subtitle U Section 320.2, to allow the conversion
of an existing residential building existing on a
| ot prior to the May 12, 1958 to a three-unit of

apart ment house.
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This is for a two-story plus cellar rear
addition to an existing three-story sem -detached
princi pal zone and conversion to a three-unit
apartnment house. It's located in the RF-1 zone at
1300 Grard Street, Northwest, Square 2860, Lot 68.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you, Ms.
Mehlert. |Is the applicant ready to proceed?

MR, SULLIVAN. Yes. Hi, Madam Chair. M
name is Marty Sullivan. |'m zoning counsel for the
applicant. And also with ne is Dave Bloom He's
the project architect. And we have a Power Poi nt
presentation, if M. Young could |oad that, please.

And we' Il take you through the application if
you' re ready.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  Yes, thank you.

MR, SULLIVAN. Thank you. The property is
1300 Grard Street, Northwest. And next slide,
pl ease. The request is special exception for two
areas of relief, and the property is in the RF-1
zone. |It's inproved with a three-story plus cellar
single-famly road dwelling. It's on a lot that's
5,152 square feet in area. And the applicant is
proposing to construct a two-story plus cellar
addition at the rear of the building and to convert

it fromone to three units. And the addition wl|
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reduce the rear yard to 16 feet where the required
rear yard is 20 feet.

So, accordingly, we are requesting speci al
exception approval pursuant to U 320.2 to convert
the building to three units and fromthe rear yard
set back requirenments of Subtitle E, Section 207.1.
The O fice of Planning has reconmended approval in
their report, and DDOT has submtted a report wth
no objection. And ANC 1A has unani nously supported
the application, as well.

Next slide, please. And here's a photo of
the building, 1300 Grard, here. And that's the
| arge building on the corner, and it's a |ot of open
space in the property between the building and
Grard Street there along 13th Avenue.

Next slide, please. Here's a viewfromthe
corner at the building. Next slide, please. Here's
a view of the side of the building on Grard Street.

And there wll be, after the project is done, there
wi Il be two parking spaces on the property at the
rear of the property behind the building.

Next slide, please. |[I'll take you through
t he special exception criteria, and then M. Bl oom
can take the Board through the plans. Special

exception will be in harnmony with the general
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pur pose and intent of the zoning regul ations and
maps and will not tend to affect adversely the use
of nei ghboring property. The granting of the
speci al exception will be in harnony with the
general purpose and intent of the zoning regul ations
and zoning maps. And the zoning regul ations permt
the conversion of a single-famly dwelling to three
units in accordance with the special exception
criteria.

And the regul ations also note that the RF
zones are residential zones, which provide for areas
devel oped primarily with road dwellings but within
whi ch there have been Iimted conversions of
dwel I ings or other buildings into nore than two
dwelling units. Therefore, the proposed three-unit
conversion is in harnony with the general purpose
and intent of the RF zone and zoni ng regul ati ons.

Next slide, please. The criteria for the
speci al exception criteria necessary to approve for
the conversion of the building into three units, the
bui | ding has to be in existence, which it is. And
the applicant is only proposing three units, so the
fourth dwelling unit as an ID unit doesn't cone into
play. And then the third requirenent is that we

have 900 square feet of |land for each proposed unit,
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whi ch woul d be 2,700 square feet. As noted earlier,
this lot is 5,152 square feet in area.

Next slide, please. Regarding the special
exception criteria for the rear yard relief, and,
again, we're asking for four feet of rear yard
relief for two stories in the back. The architect
will take the Board through a shadow study, which
denonstrates that the addition shall not have a
substantial inpact on the light and air of
nei ghboring properties. And also the addition does
not propose any w ndows on that south side, so there
woul d be no inpact on privacy for abutting nei ghbors
in the back. And also, as denonstrated by the
el evations that you'll see, the addition is
consistent with the character, scale, and pattern of
devel opnent along Grard and 13th Street because
we're only adding four feet again just to two
stories. And so it does not substantially visually
I ntrude on character, scale, and pattern.

Next slide, please. And | think we'll be
into the plans here, and I'lIl turn it over to M.
Bloomto take the Board through the plans. Dave,

t hanks.
MR BLOOM Thanks, Marty. Could we

actually go to the next slide, please?
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BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: M. Bloom |'msorry.
M. Bloom | need to interrupt for a mnute. | see

that, | believe, M. Sullivan is not registered. |
wanted to ask Ms. Mehlert if there's anything we
need to do. | nean, he's already presented. |Is
t here anythi ng here?

M5. MEHLERT: He did register alittle
earlier today, so after that |list had been sent out.

So he is registered. But if soneone is not

registered, | wll flag for you and we can give them
t he oath.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. | appreciate that.
Thanks so much. Go ahead, M. Bloom |'msorry.

MR. BLOOM  Thank you. No problem Could
we go to the next slide, please? So here you have
the existing site plan. You can see the subject
building in gray. It is attached to the building to
its south but is open to the north. It has a pretty
substantial front yard. W are proposing to renove
a small wood-franed rear addition that you can see
dashed to the left of the building.

And then, if you go to the next slide, you
can see that the addition is being replaced and
extended, as Marty nentioned, to give a 16-foot rear

yard. There are al so sone other general site
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| nprovenents, including | ead wal ks, stoops, and the
two parking spaces, which are to the left of the
property.

Next slide, please. This is just a
bui | di ng section. The proposed addition is to the
left at the [owest level, which is the cellar. The
addi tion does not extend into the 20-foot required
rear yard. It only extends at the first, second
| evel s.

Next slide, please. To the left, you have
the view from 13th Street. You don't see the
addition on that one. To the right is the front
el evation on Grard. You can see the addition on
the right side in that image.

Next slide, please. And then there is the
rear addition of the addition. Next slide. And one
nore. So here you have the shadow study that we
did. On the left side is the existing conditions,
on the right is the proposed. Also on the right, to
hel p you see the inpact, the red dashed line is the
exi sting shadows superinposed on the proposed
desi gn.

Since this building is the northernnost row
house in this section of row houses, and the sun

cones fromthe south, there's very mninmal inpact or
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addi ti onal shadows being cast. But we did | ook at

it three tinmes, the summer and w nter solstice and

t he equi nox, and then three tines during the day, 9
a.m, 12 am, and 3 p.m

So really at any tine in the norning, when
t he shadows cast to the left, to the west in this
case, is when you would see any inpact. But you can
see in the summer that there's virtually no inpact.

Next slide. At noon, where the sun is directly to
the south, the only inpact is on the subject
property. Next slide. And then, again, any inpact
during the afternoon is limted to the subject
property.

And we can go to the next one. So those
first three were in summer. Then we | ooked at the
equinox. Simlar story. There's basically no
I mpact in the norning. Next slide. And then only
sonme mnor inpact on the property itself during
noon. Next slide. And, again, just sone m nor
I npact on the property itself in the afternoon.

Next slide. This is in wnter, where the
shadows are the longest. Again, no inpact. And
next slide. Simlarly, just a mnor inpact on the
property itself. And last slide. Wnter at 3 p.m,
it's basically the sane. And | think that is the
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| ast slide.

MR. SULLI VAN: Thank you, M. Bloom Just
one final note. The applicant did connect with and
reach out to both of the adjacent neighbors, and
t hey had no objection. The one nei ghbor was in the
process of selling their house, and the other
nei ghbor wasn't interested in getting involved but
had no issues with this. And, in fact, the ANC
asked us to nmake sure that we did connect with those
nei ghbors, and he has done so, they have done so.

So that's what |ed to the unani nous support fromthe
ANC.

And that's it. | do want to nention, too,
also, M. MIllais here fromthe applicant, if you
had any questions for himpersonally. But that's
all we have for the Board, and thank you. |[If you
have any questions for nyself or M. Bloomor M.
MIlla. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so nuch
Good presentation. | appreciate that. ['d like to
open it to Board nenbers to see if they have any
questions. |I'Il start wth M. Col dstein.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N.  Thank you very mnuch.

Thank you for the presentations. | think it | ooks

|i ke a great project. | don't have any additional
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questions to ask the applicant. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.
Gol dstein. M. Lindsjo.

MEMBER LI NDSJO.  Thank you. Thank you for
this presentation. | appreciate the project, and |
don't have any questions for you at this tine.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so nuch.

M. Hood, do you have any questions?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: |'mjust going to ness wth

M. CGoldstein on his first day. If M. Goldstein

don't have no questions, | shouldn't have any. But,
no, I"'mreally nessing with him
| wll say that | do like the design. | do

know, M. Sullivan, across the street, there's
sonmething simlar to what you all are trying to do
here. | do know across on 13th Street on the 1200
bl ock. | know that house was redone and | al so know
on the Fairnmont Street side. So all these corner
lots in this nei ghborhood are kind of taking on the
same -- they differ, but they're kind of taking on
t he same devel opnent type and enhanci ng t hose
projects. So | think that whole corridor is going
to eventually evolve on that.

So that's all | have to say. Thank you,

Madam Chair. Excellent presentation, and thank you,
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Madam Chai r.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Before we
go to any agency conments, was there any other
di scussion right now wth the applicant? | don't
think so. So why don't we go on to the Ofice of
Planning. It looks |Iike Joshua Mtchum may be here
to present the OP report.

MR MTCHUM Yes. Hello again, Madam
Chair, nenbers of the Board. Again, Joshua Mtchum
with this application. W are in support of the
application. W believe that they have net the
burden of proof for special exception uses for the
RF zone and the conversion of an existing
residential building. And we're also in support of
the special exception relief for rear yard. And
we're avail able for any questions. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Are there
any other district agencies present and ready to
present? |'mnot hearing that there are any here,
so we'll nove on. D d the ANC show up? Are they
offering testinony today?

MR. YOUNG They are not signed up to
testify.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Ckay. Was there

anyone el se signed up to testify, M. Young?
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MR. YOUNG W did not have anyone el se.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so nuch.
Hearing that, | think we'll close the presentation
part of this agenda item and nove into di scussion
and deliberation. | want to thank the applicants
for a great presentation and what |ooks Iike a nice
project on 13th Street.

MR. SULLI VAN: Thank you, Madam Chair, and
wel cone to you and to Board Menbers Lindsjo and
Gol dstein. Thank you very nuch.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you. Ms.

Mehl ert.

M5. MEHLERT: Yes. | believe the witnesses
have been excused.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. So we're ready for a
del i berati on now?

ZC CHAIR HOOD:  Yes. | think we're ready
to deliberate, Madam Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. So that seened
pretty straightforward. It seens like there's no
outstanding itens, no further questions. | would
like to put a notion forward that we approve that
application and submt it. |Is there a second?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: |'Il second the notion.

|"msorry. Let me be quiet. Go ahead, Vice Chair.
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VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: | second.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. |s there any
di scussion? You go ahead, M. CGoldstein. No one
was sayi ng anythi ng about it.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, | think the
record is full. | think the applicant has net their
burden for the relief requested, and the O fice of
Pl anni ng report al so addressed how t he project net
the relief needed. |'mconfortable in noving
forward to the vote.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: M. Hood, would you --

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | would agree. Again, as
we know, this is an RF-1 zone. Subtitle E, 5201,
has been net for the rear yard. The requested
Subtitle U 320.2, to allow the conversion of the
existing residential building prior to May 12, 1958
has been net, as well as our typical standard of
Subtitle X, 901.2, for the special exceptions as
requested for this two-story re-addition to an
exi sting three-story sem -detached princi pal
dwel ling in conversion to a three-unit apartnent
house. And as was nentioned, the IZ unit does not
conme into effect because it's not four units.

So | think they've net the test, as the

vice chair has nentioned. And with that, |'ll be
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voting in support. That's all | wanted to put out.
Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Thank you
for that conplete description. M. Lindsjo, do you
have anything you'd like to add?

MEMBER LINDSJO No, not at this tine.
Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you. So with
that, | think we're ready to vote, Ms. Mehlert.

M5. MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the chair's
notion to approve the application. Chairperson
Pour chi au.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair Col dstein.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Board Menber Lindsjo.

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Chai rman Hood.

ZC CHAI R HOCD: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote
as 4-0-1 to approve Application No. 21415 on the
noti on made by Chairperson Pourchiau and seconded by
Vice Chair ol dstein.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Before we

proceed, | want to ask sone questions. W're
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hal fway through our agenda, maybe a little nore than
hal f, but about hal fway through our agenda, and it's
kind of lunchtine. And there has been sone
additions to sone of the cases we haven't heard yet
that | see have popped up. M. Mhlert, is there a
suggestion you have about proceeding? | know the
next case may be a little nore difficult, so |

t hought it mght be good to take a break before that
one. And is there anything you have to offer on,
think 1t's 21446, our |ast agenda iten?

MS. MEHLERT: No. |If the Board would |ike
to take a break for lunch, then that's within your
purview and just at a specific tinme of when you'd
i ke to return.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Al right. You all
want a break for |unch?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Sounds |i ke a good
plan. How | ong should we take?

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:  Yes. Can we take 40
mnutes? |s that too short?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: So can we just conme back at
1 o'clock and that's the 40 m nutes, so | think
we'll be good if we say 1 o' cl ock.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  You think? That's
what | thought. Okay. So we'll cone back at 1
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o' cl ock. Thanks, everyone. See you soon.

(Wher eupon, the above-referred to matter
went off the record and resuned follow ng a brief
recess.)

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Wl cone back. It
| ooks |1 ke everyone is present. M. Mhlert, do we
reopen the record?

M5. MEHLERT: | can just call the Board
back. The Board is returning fromits |unch break
and returning to its hearing session.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Very good. |I'd like
to take up two itens before we go to the next case.

It's been brought to ny attention that itens 4 and
6 on our agenda, the Eastern Avenue Hol di ngs
applications, have the sane presenters, and so we'd
like to take those together or sinultaneously. So
what 1'd like to do, if it's okay, is nove up nunber
5, and then, after we conplete nunber 5, we'll go to
4 and 6.

Ms. Mehlert, is that appropriate?

M5. MEHLERT: Correct. So I'Ill just
clarify what the case nunber is. Application No.
21418 the Board will do next, and then foll owed by
21416, and then foll owed by 21420.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Very good. And the
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second iteml'd like to discuss is a cl osed session.
And let me find -- 1'd like for us to vote on
havi ng a cl osed session. The next item on our
agenda is to vote for the Board to hold a cl osed
session neeting on June 10th prior to the next Board
neeting. This session is being held in order for
the Board to receive legal advice fromits counsel
regardi ng the cases noted on the agenda for the June
10th neeting and to preserve the attorney-client
privilege between the Board and its attorneys.
Pursuant to D.C. Oficial Code Section 2575(b)(4)(a)
and to deliberate but not vote on the contested
cases under D.C. Oficial Code Section 2575(b)(13),

| wll ask the secretary to provide a list of cases
on t he agenda.

M5. MEHLERT: So the cases schedul ed for
June 10th include 21419, 21423, 21424, 21386, 21428,
21431, 21433, 21451, and 21440.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU Ckay. So | will now
make a notion to enter the closed session on June
10th into the record. |Is there a second?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: |'m happy to second
t hat .

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. |Is there

any further discussion? W'Ill do aroll call.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

115

M5. MEHLERT: To clarify, you wanted to do
it on the 10th or the day before the hearing on --

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:. On the day before the
hearing, on the 9th. So I'll clarify that. So the
notion has been seconded to have a cl osed session on
June 9th regarding the June 10th agenda itens.

M5. MEHLERT: Sorry. And this would be at

2 p.m?

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU Yes.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair, let nme just
add, | would suggest that we -- and | know M.

Mehl ert has just went over that, but | know that
Vega has watched us with a fine-tooth conb havi ng
negoti ated the way that we're doing it. Even though
she called the case nunbers, we probably, for the
record, should say what the cases are.

M5. MEHLERT: | can do that.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Thank you. Thank you, Ms.
Mehl ert.

M5. MEHLERT: So the cases schedul ed for
the June 10th hearing to be discussed at the cl osed
session on June 9th. 21419 of PMG Md Atlantic,
LLC, 21423 of 2210 5th, LLC, 21424 of Mestawet
Dej ene; 21386 of AMWN Associ ates, LLC, 21428 of

Dani el Al exander Payne Comrunity Devel opnment
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Cor poration; 21431 of Eastern Avenue Hol dings |11
LLC, 21433 of Eastern Avenue Holdings II1l, LLC
21451 of Rayon McKnight; and 21440 of Paul and
Kat heri ne Rosenbaum

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Well, the notion has
been entered, seconded, clarified, and di scussi on.
Are we ready to take a vote now? So, Ms. Mehlert,
woul d you call the vote, please?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes. Chairperson Pourchi au.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair Col dstein?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Board Menber Lindsjo.

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: And Chairnman Hood.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes. And thank you, M.
Mehlert, for calling that out, yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Geat. The notion passes 4-
0-1 to hold a closed session June 9th at 2 p.m

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Very good. So | think
we're ready to proceed with 21418 of Al exandra Bl oom
and Aron Szapiro.

M5. MEHLERT: kay. So, yes, the next case
I's Application No. 21418 of Al exandra Bl oom and Aron

Szapiro. As amended, this is a self-certified
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application pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901. 2,
wi th special exceptions under Subtitle E, Section
207.5, to allow the rear wall of a row building to
extend farther than 10 feet beyond the floor of its
rear wall of an adjoining principal residential
bui | ding on an adj acent property under Subtitle E,
Section 5201, fromthe | ot occupancy requirenents of
Subtitle E, Section 210.1, and under Subtitle E,
Section 5201.2 fromthe requirenents of Subtitle E,
Section 5000.1© to all ow an accessory buil di ng
occupying nore than 30 percent of the |land area of a
requi red rear yard.

This project is for a second floor rear
addi ti on above an existing one-story portion of an
existing two-story attached principal dwelling and
new one-story accessory structure at the rear yard
| ocated in the RF-1 zone at 1427 D Street,

Sout heast, Square 1062, Lot 0104.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:. Thank you. Are the
applicants ready to present?

M5. FOALER Yes. Hi, this is Jennifer
Fower. [|I'mhere to present the project.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU.  Hi, Jennifer. Thank
you.

M5. FOALER Ckay. Shall | go ahead and
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get started? Okay. First of all, welcone to the

new Board nenbers. It's nice to see sone new faces.
M. CGoldstein and | have worked for years together

on projects, soit's nice to see you on the Board,

as well. So thank you.

| think the record' s pretty full on this
project, but I'lIl just kind of run you through kind
of what we're asking for and kind of the inpacts of
the project. So there's two conponents. There's a
rear addition. Currently, there's a one-story
screened-in porch at the back of the house, and the
idea is to expand the house with a second fl oor over
the existing porch, so it wll have a second fl oor
ki nd of bedroom encl osed space. That addition has a
set back on the side with 1425 so that we can
mai ntain [ight and air on that side.

The rear addition is not triggering |ot of
occupancy relief. The only thing we need for that
conponent of the project is the rear yard set back,
meaning that it's going 16-foot 6 beyond 1425. It
is lining up with 1429, so it's aligned with that
project or that house on the other side, which is on
t he east si de.

Then there's the second conponent is the

one-story accessory structure, and it's basically
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like a simlar mapping to the garages that are next
door, and that is what's kind of pushing us above
50.5 percent occupancy to the 70-percent occupancy.

It also sits in the required rear yard, which is
the 5,000 foot one, so that's why we're asking for
that relief. If it was a garage, | believe we
woul dn't need that relief because a garage can sit
in the rear yard. |It's basically a simlar
structure except that it's living space instead of
garage, so that's why that relief is getting
triggered. And it's also less than the 450 square
feet maxi mum as well.

1429 has a three-story -- actually, a third
floor with a rear addition that was put on a few
years ago, and | believe that one al so went through
zoni ng probably maybe | ess than 10 years ago, a |ong
time ago. So they are also kind of at their 70-
percent occupancy, and so we're lining up with that
house. So there really will be no inpact to them
due to the addition on the house, as far as lighting
or air is concerned, as well as privacy because
there will be no additional views into that house.
And, currently, there's an open deck on the second
floor, which offers unlimted views into their vyard.

So now it would be an encl osed bedroom space with
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W ndows, so there will be an inprovenent in privacy
for that neighbor.

The garage does cone forward in the yard
about al nobst 15 feet closer to the house than the
garage at 1429, but they're pretty nmuch identical
hei ghts, so we actually matched the hei ght of that
garage in simlar massing to the garage next door.
So, again, any shadows cast there are going to be
types into the very far rear yards and not inpacting
the mai n house at 1429.

At 1425, which is to the east, there wll
be some i npact because we are extendi ng beyond that
rear wall as far as the addition is concerned.
However, it's a nodest inpact, and it's really only
going to be in the afternoon hours because of the
orientation of the house.

Agai n, the garage is bigger than the garage
at 1425. However, the facade on the yard side
actually aligns, so it's not comng any further into
the yard than the garage at 1425. And, again, it's
a simlar massing to what they have next door. The
privacy will be inproved to 1425, again, because
we're reducing it froma full-size deck on the
second floor to really just a small space in the

st ep-back of the addition.
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We have a | ot of support for this project.
ANC has supported it unaninmously. W also have
Capitol H Il Restoration Society sent in a letter of
support. W presented to them And we al so have
| etters from ei ght neighbors, so I'mvery happy and
proud of nmy clients for all their outreach. W have
1419, 1421, 1423, 1425, which is the adjacent
nei ghbor, and then we have 1429 on the other side,
1431, 1433, and 1437. So, again, it's very well
received. It's a famly that wants to stay on the
Hi Il and keep continuing raising their kids there
and hope to be able to add the extra space to nake
it work for them

So, with that, I'll leave it open to
questions, and thank you for your tine.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. That was a
cl ear and conci se presentation. Appreciate that.
We'll start with you, M. Coldstein. Do you have
any questions?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Not so nuch
questions, but clarifications. Thank you, Ms.

Fowl er, for your kind words at the beginning. |
just wanted to say, for the record, Ms. Fower, |'ve
seen her projects as an agency representative with

the Ofice of Planning or DOD, but not beyond ny
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of ficial capacity.

And just to clarify, | think you had
mentioned the rear yard relief, sonething to the
extent of whether it was a car garage versus a
living space. |'Il just say what ny understandi ng
Is, and the Ofice of Planning can also chinme in at
their earliest opportunity, is that your lot is an
irregular lot, which has produced a certain way of
nmeasuring the required rear yard fromthe valley
side in, and your accessory building occupies in
excess of 30 percent of that required yard. It's
irrespective of how the accessory building is being
used. The relief would be required either way.

It doesn't affect your application or the
zoning relief required, but that's ny understandi ng
of what triggered the required rear yard relief for
the accessory building. You can comment on that or
not, but | can certainly have the O fice of Planning
address that, if needed.

| think the project |ooks terrific, and |
echo the appreciation for your outreach to the
nei ghbors. | think that's excellent, and that's all
| have.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Ms. Fow er, do you

want to speak to the first remark?
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M5. FOALER No, | appreciate that. |
don't think I've had this type of relief cone up
before, and you're right. | renenber now that, when
we filed it, they suggested that it had to do with
the irregular lot, so thank you for that rem nder.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:. Ms. Lindsjo, do you
have any questions for the applicant?

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Thank you. It was a very
clear and informative presentation. | have no
questions or concerns at this tine.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. M. Hood,
woul d you like to add anything for the record,
pl ease?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: No, | don't have anything
to add. But thank you, Ms. Fower. Geat job as
always. And | don't have any comments as of yet.
Thanks.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Ckay. | want to share
how nice it |ooks to see so nuch support and the ANC
saying they enthusiastically support, so that's very
nice. So |l think we'll nove on to reports, and |
see Philip Isaiah is on fromthe Ofice of Planning.

Woul d you like to give your report now, please?

MR. | SAIAH.  Thank you, Madam Chair. For

the record, this is Philip Isaiah on behalf of the
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Ofice of Planning. | will remark that Vice
Chai rman Goldstein is correct in the fact that for
an irregular lot, which is generally considered that
which is not rectangular in nature, the subject
property has a notch in the rear yard as caused by
the curvature of the alleyway that has caused an
I rregul ar-shaped | ot for purposes, thus causing the
rear yard to be neasured not fromthe rear of the
dwel ling towards the rear lot Iine, but in contrast
fromthe furthest rear lot line to the dwelling,
which, for this sake, did trigger the need for
relief for the accessory structure standards for
nore than 30 percent of the rear |ots.
O her than that, staff recomends approval
of the application on all accounts and rests on the
record of the report, containing this Exhibit 33 of
the record dated February 20, 2026. Thank you.
BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. |sai ah.
Are there any other governnment wtnesses for this
application today? | didn't see any that signed up.
All right. Has the ANC signed up to speak today?
| don't think so. Any other parties in support of
t he application who would |ike to speak?

MR. YOUNG W have no one signed up.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. No one el se has signed
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up. ay. Thank you so nmuch, M. Young. So with
that, | think we will nove to close the hearing and
nove to deliberations.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair, we probably
want to offer, we always want to nake sure we offer
Ms. Fowl er any closing remarks before we -- okay.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Yes. Thank you so
much. There was so nuch conplinenting going on, |
think we all decided just to go with that, right?
Ms. Fowl er, would you lIike to make any cl osing
remar ks, pl ease?

M5. FOALER |'m happy to offer nore
conplinments, but | think we're all good on that.
Thank you for your tine, and | appreciate your
efficiency and for also taking it before the other
case. Very nmuch appreciated. | don't have anything
el se to add. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Ckay. Very good. So
we'll nove to close this part of the application
section and nove to deliberations.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. |I'm happy to start
us off with the deliberations. | think the
subm ssions to the record by the applicants and by
the Ofice of Planning create a strong, robust

record for support of this application.
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Additionally, the ANC submtted a letter of support,
as well as the Capitol Hill Restoration Society, in
addition to both adjacent nei ghbors and additi onal
nei ghbors in support. |'msupportive of this

proj ect.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ms. Lindsjo, do you
have any comments you' d |like to nake?

MEMBER LI NDSJO. | have no additional
comrents. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. How about you,
M. Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | would just say that |
appreci ate you, Madam Chair, bringing up the
ent husi astically. |'ve only seen two letters from
ANCs in 20 years with the word enthusiastic, and
today was the second one. So | don't have anything.

| concur, plenty of support. Thank you, Madam
Chair.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: Al right. So let ne
give a shot at nmaking this notion. It seens |ike
we're ready. |1'd like to nake a notion to approve
Application No. 21418 of Al exandra Bl oom and Aron
Szapiro, as captioned and read by the secretary, and
ask for a second.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Second.
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BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. |s there any further
di scussion on this application? Everyone's quiet.
That's good. M. Mehlert, would you please call the
vot e?

M5. MEHLERT: Please respond to the chair's
notion to approve the application. Chairperson
Pour chi au.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair ol dstein.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Board Menber Lindsjo.

MEMBER LI NDSJO.  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Chairman Hood.

ZC CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote
as 4-0-1 to approve Application No. 21418 on the
noti on made by Chairperson Pourchi au, seconded by --
who seconded -- by the vice chair, | believe. Yes,
by Vice Chair Goldstein. The notion passes.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. | guess we
can get started with agenda item --

M5. MEHLERT: Sorry, Madam Chair. | think
you broke up briefly. Are you ready to nove up to
t he next case?

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  Yes. Thank you.
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M5. MEHLERT: The next case is Application
No. 21416 of Eastern Avenue Holdings II1l, LLC. As
anmended, this is a self-certified application
pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901.2, for special
exceptions under Subtitle U, Section 421, to allow
new resi dential devel opnents, and under Subtitle F,
Section 201.4, to allow 1.084 area ratio in a
vol untary i nclusionary devel opnent.

This project is for the creation of nine
additional small units in an existing 15-unit
apartnment house with a three-story rear addition to
an existing three-story detached building. It's
| ocated in the RA-1 zone at 1342 Eastern Avenue
Nort heast, Square 5172, Lot 809.

There are a few prelimnary matters.

First, the applicant has submtted a notion to waive
the filing deadline to submt a revised self-
certification formand burden of proof in Exhibits
23A and 23B. Also, ANC 7C submtted their report
this norning, which is in the record in Exhibits 28
and 28A. There are also two filings that canme in
earlier today that are not in the record. One is a
letter in opposition fromJahnavi Jagannath, who had
signed up to testify, and then a letter or

resolution fromthe Deanwood Citizens Associ ati on.
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So those are before the court right now

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. |I'd like alittle
clarification. There seens |ike a significant
anount of late entry, and we haven't had the tine to
reviewit. How has the Board handled this
previously or what the next steps m ght be?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes. So there's a notion
fromthe applicant, which was just to waive the 30-
day filing deadline, and that information is in the
record. And then there were just a couple of things
that were submtted from like, the Gtizens
Associ ati on and anot her person interested in the
case that cane in after the 24-hour filing deadline.
So we're not able to enter those into the record
unl ess approved by the Board.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. M. Hood, could | ask
your gui dance on this?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Typically, we would al ways
bring it in because it would add help to the case.
| know in the Zoni ng Conm ssion we always add it.
It won’t prejudice anything, | don't believe,
because we haven't even heard anything. So | woul d
suggest that we accept it and bring it in, and then
we just have to kind of read through it as we're

havi ng our discussions with M. WIIians.
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BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you for that.
All right. So we should proceed with the case. And
If the applicant is ready to present, they begin
their presentation.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: So, Madam Chair, before M.
Wl lianms begins, so we're accepting all the files,
right?

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: Yes. Do we need to
vote on that?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: We can do that by general
consensus. |f everybody just consents to it, we do
it.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Very good.
Thank you for that clarification. The applicant can
proceed now.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: M. WIllianms is on nute or
he's havi ng sone probl ens because we can't hear you,
M. WIIlians.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. M. Young, | don't
even see M. Wllians. | see himthere. M. Young,
do you know what's goi ng on?

MR. YOUNG Yes, he just needs to switch
his m crophone settings on there. So if you go to
your audi o options under m crophone, there should

be, like, a drop-down list. And if you just try
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sel ecti ng whi chever one you don't have currently and
test it. W cannot hear you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. |Is there anyone that
can go ahead of hin? W'Ill give hima mnute.

MR WLLIAVMG: Ckay. How about now?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN. Perfect.

MR, WLLIAMS: Ckay. Sone technical
difficulties here. | actually will say, and | was

speaking with Zoning earlier, Ofice of Zoning, for

about the first hour of the hearing, | actually
couldn't see any of you all. | didn't even know the
hearing was happening. |'ve never had that happen

before, and |'ve been doing this for 10 years. And
apparently from speaking with zoni ng, that was
happening to sone other folks, too. So I don't
know. Hopefully, that's not inpacting any speakers
or any other applicants, but just wanted to put that
out there that Wbex glitches are going on today.
| m not sure what's happeni ng, but, hopefully, we
get it figured out.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.
Wlliams. We'll followup on that. So | think we're
ready to start the clock now.

MR WLLIAVMS: Sure. So, ny nane is Zack

Wlliams. |I'ma |and use attorney with Venabl e.
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VWhat | was saying earlier, which you all didn't

hear, was that it's great to be back with you today,
Madam Chair. Good to see you. Good to see the new
nmenbers of the Board. W're very happy to be,

agai n, having these proceedings, and |I know that the
applicant is, as well.

Along with ne today is Matt Medvene with
the applicant, as well as Ryan Petyak, who's the
architect on the project. M. Young, can we pull up
on the presentation? Geat. Thank you so nmuch.

So this application today is 1342 Eastern
Avenue, Northeast. This is one of four related
applications that the Board is going to hear today
and next week. |If we go to the next slide, please,
M. Young. This slide shows these four rel ated
Eastern Avenue projects. Today, you'll be hearing
1342 Eastern Ave., which is right now we're hearing
this case, and then directly thereafter we'll be
hearing 1106 to 1112 Eastern Avenue, Nort heast.

Al'l these properties were purchased by the
devel oper in a bundl ed transaction out of a
bankruptcy. These properties were owned by a single
owner. Previously, they fell into a significant
state of disrepair. There were |iens and other

types of violations on the properties. Utimately,
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It was purchased out of bankruptcy with

col l aboration with the city, which M. Medvene can

get into once we get into the discussion.

Next slide, please. A quick summary of
these projects. There's simlarities here. They're
all zoned RA-1 and currently-approved existing
apartnment houses. As | already nentioned, they all
fell into a state of disrepair, | nmean just falling
apart, basically unlivable conditions. They were
negl ected for years by the previ ous owner.

The idea here is to renovate and expand al
the properties in a different extent. For 1342,
which we're hearing right now, this is currently a
15-unit building. The proposal is to add 9 units,
and we' Il get into the next case after this one.

But you can see that these are sim/lar cases,
simlar vintage, as you wll see. These are very
simlar buildings and properties, and so we've
treated this as sort of a collective bundled
transaction, bundled effort, sort of fromthe
begi nni ng.

Next slide, please. This is 1342 Eastern
Ave. as it exists today. You can see this is an
existing three-story apartnent house. Here's sone

photos of the front and the rear. Next slide,
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pl ease. Here's another of the projects, 1218. Just
to give you the sense, these are, you can tell,
these were built at the sanme tinme, very simlar
vintage. Next slide, please. Sanme with 1206. Next
slide, please. Sane with 1106 to 1112, which we'll
hear next. Next slide.

And that's just the rear of 1106 to 12.

Next slide, please. So going back, today,
wel |, right now, we're going to be tal king about
1342 Eastern. Part of the reason |I'mtalking about
all these things at once also is because, in our
comruni cations with the community and with the
Deanwood Citizens Association, that's how we tal ked
about these projects, really collectively, as well.

And | think you'll see the result of that. W do
have support, as we'll get into, fromthe comunity,
ANC, and the Deanwood Citizens Associ ation.

Next slide, please. This is the proposed
project for 1342 Eastern. This is a single corner
lot wwth a little over 16,000 square feet of |and
area. As | nentioned, we'll be adding 9 units to
the existing 15-unit house. This wll include three
new | Z units. The proposal fromthe buil ding
standpoint is to raise the roof slightly by just a

couple of feet. There will also be a very m nor
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rear addition. Oher than that, the building is

going to stay sort of alnpbst exactly as it is today.
There wi Il be four parking spaces provided, which
meets zoning requirenments; and everything el se about
the project wll be permtted as a matter of right

w thout further BZA relief.

Next slide, please. The relief that we are
requesting today is a special exception to add
additional units in the RAL zone, pursuant to
Subtitle U Section 421.

As | already nentioned, everything else is, by
right, permtted in RA-1.

Next slide. Walking through the speci al
exception standards for the relief that's requested,
the relief nust be in harnony with the general
purpose and intent of the zoning regulations, and
here it indeed is. The RA-1 zone is a zone that
all ows for and encourages exactly this type of
devel opnent, low to noderate-density devel opnent,
including lowrise apartments like this. As |
al ready nentioned, we'll be neeting all the
devel opnent standards in the RA-1 zone.

Next slide. The next prong of the special
exception test is that the relief should not

adversely affect neighboring property. And,
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typically, we think of light, air, and privacy. In
reviewi ng this standard here, the project building
only be changing by a couple of feet. It shouldn't

I npact in terns of shadow, light, air, things |like
that. The very mnor addition that's proposed, as
wel |, shoul dn't have an inpact on nei ghboring
properties. The renovations will minly be
occurring inside the buildings.

It's also very common in this nei ghborhood
to see apartnment and nmultifam |y buildings of this
type. 1In fact, you saw the other three Eastern Ave.
buil di ngs that we are going to be bringing forward
are exactly this type of building. If you go up and
down Eastern Ave., you'll see that these |owrise
apartnment honmes are conmon in the community here.
It's al so appropriate in this location. This
| ocation is just a quarter mle fromthe Deanwood
Metro Station, so exactly where we want to see | ow
rise, higher-density, multifamly apartnent I|iving.

Next slide, please. As | already alluded
to, there is community support, as well as Ofice of
Pl anni ng support. W nmet with ANC 7C, both the
general body and the executive commttee, on
mul ti ple occasions. W also net with the Deanwood

Citizens Association on nmultiple occasions. ANC 7C
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voted to support the project, and the letter is in
the record. The Deanwood Citizens Associ ation
supports the project, and a comunity benefits
agreenment was entered into with the applicant. |
believe they also filed that for the record. And
his was a collective effort, again, to ensure that
all four of these projects, since they're all on the
sane tineline, were acceptable to the community. W
wanted to make sure we net the community's concerns.
You saw there were sonme concerns about the existing
tenants and how those fol ks woul d be taken care of;
and if there's questions about that, we can get into
it. But we wanted to ensure that really the
comunity was confortable with all four of these
projects, starting with 1342, but the others as
wel | .

And to conclude, Ofice of Planning al so
recomended approval of the application. So that
concl udes ny presentation, and thank you for your
consi derati on.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so nuch. |
appreci ate the presentation, M. WIIlianms, and
putting in context for us howit all fits together.

|'"d like to see if there are questions from our

board nenbers. M. CGoldstein, would you m nd going
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first, please?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Sure. Happy to.
And thank you very much for your presentation. |t
did help to see the context of what we're going to
have com ng before us, and | think that wll be
useful .

| do have sone questions, and | would |ike
to start with the tenant relocation information. |
see a fair anmount of it in the record, including the
CVA. \What is the relevance of this for this zoning
case? I|I'mreally happy to hear that there's been
agreenent and outreach and conmuni cation with
tenants, but are you viewng this as in any way
related or subject to the zoning regul ations that we
have before us for consideration today?

MR, WLLIAMS: Not technically. |
appreci ate the question. That being said, it still
was a concern of the community and the ANC, and so
we wanted to nmake sure that we addressed that. And
we do have a good response on it, too, which, again,
we're happy to get into. There's been considerable
efforts to make sure those tenants are taken care
of, that they're relocated if they want to be, and
that they're given an opportunity to live in the

comrunity where they are.
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So it's not technically about zoning, but
it was a big concern of the conmunity, so we
addressed it.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Is the community
under standi ng of the agreenent that it wll, in ny
view, not be part of an order and enforceabl e as
part of the BZA case, that these are separately
enf orceabl e agreenents outside the scope of the
Board? Speaking for nyself, that would be ny
perspective. Wat is your understanding of the
expectation wth these being put into the record?

MR WLLIAMS: That's a good question, M.
ol dstein. So you mi ght have noticed that it wasn't
the ANC that put the CVAinto the record. It was
t he Deanwood Citizens Association. And so | thought
that was inportant because the ANC s vote was not
subject to a CVA. The ANC voted to support the
project. The Deanwood Citizens Association is a
separate civic group that doesn't have -- it's not a
party in the case, obviously, and they don't have --
they aren't given great weight, as is the ANC. |
mean, that's ny understanding. | believe that they
understand that, too. It's a separate agreenent
bet ween t he devel oper and the Deanwood Citizens

Association. | think they put it into the case just
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to reflect that discussion. They didn't talk to ne
about it before they did that, but, obviously, you
can see it's been executed by both parti es.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN.  So ny readi ng of the
ANC |l etter is that their support was only contingent
on the presentation of the plans and the pursuit of
approval of the Deanwood Citizens Association. |Is
t hat your understanding as well?

MR. WLLIAMS: Yes. The ANC fol ks, they
wanted us to neet with and get confortable with the
Deanwood Citizens Association. Al the folks on the
ANC are al so part of the Deanwood Citizens
Associ ation, simlar |eadership, but the Deanwood
Citizens Association is just alittle bit broader
community group. And by the way, great
organi zation. They've been absol utely amazing
t hr oughout this process.

So they wanted to nmake sure that, you know,
we didn't -- they had an opportunity to neet with
us, even though they weren't required to. W
weren't required to neet wwth them They wanted to
make sure that we did that, and we got their
support, and so that was part of their letter.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay. |'ve got a

few ot her questions, but, just in case any of our
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Board nenbers want to ask about this topic, |I'm
happy to pause or | can continue noving on through
my questions if that's preferable.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: So let ne just help you a
little bit, Vice Chair. | knowthis is your first
day, and you picked right up on it. This is nothing
new froma comm ssioner. He's the president of
Deanwood, so M. WIllianms is exactly right. | have
talked to himin public about this on nore than one
occasi on because they include CVA packages like it's
a PUD and it's not. W have been through this with
them They continue to do it, and it nmakes them
feel good, but there's no enforceability as far as
the BZA is concerned. It's really not part of the
record they submtted because it gives thema
confort level, and I'"'msure that M. WIlians and
we’'ll follow through what they said they're going to
do while it's not necessarily germane to our
proceedi ng.

And | know Chai rman Hol nes now, he was the
president at one tine of Deanwood, but Chairman
Hol mes now al so understands it because this is a
conversation we've been having over the past two to
three to maybe four to five years. So | wanted to

shed sone light on that. So thank you, M.
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Wl lianms, for doing that. WlIl, | know you're not
necessarily required in this particul ar case, so
t hank you.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN. Thank you for that.
That was very hel pful information. Wth that, |
think 1"'mgoing to nove to a few other topics. One
is DDOT and the O fice of Planning raised this issue
of a curb cut that's in public space. There is a
preference recommended for, | believe, a narrow ng
of that curb cut. | would like to hear fromyou. |
don't believe that's related to any particul ar
zoni ng request or issue, but 1'd like to know how
you are or intend to address it.

MR WLLIAVMS: Thank you. That's a good
guesti on.
So you're correct that DDOT has nmde that request,
and, to the extent there is a public space commttee
neeting and hearing, that, | assune, would be taken
up then. W are not proposing to alter that curb
cut as part of the zoning application, so you are
correct that the project and the relief that we are
seeking is not inclusive of that. And so our
preference would be to not take that up now and | et
that be a subject for the public space hearing with

DDOT. | think that's where it would be the better
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venue for that discussion.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. |'mjust
probably going to ask the Ofice of Planning, |
don't know if there's anyone from DDOT who is
attendi ng today, just to discuss that. | think the
O fice of Planning al so noted their concern about
the location of the HVAC units, and I'd | ove you to
address that concern and its relevance to the zoning
anal ysis that we have to do.

MR. WLLIAMS: Yes, absolutely. And
believe we did nove the units at |east once for this
application, and so we did hear that concern, and we
nmoved themas a result. Correct ne again, Ryan and
Matt, if I"'mwong. | believe they were closer to
the property line, and we noved themto the rear of
the property, if I'"'mnot mstaken. So we did do
that, and, you know, we feel |like they're
appropriate at this tinme and we haven't heard any
objection to that fromeither the ANC, the Deanwood
fol ks, or any of the nei ghbors.

So, Ryan, Matt, let nme know if |'m m ssing
anyt hi ng there.

MR. MEDVENE: No, that's correct.
Oiginally, the outside air units were |ocated al ong

the property line, and that was a request to renove
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themfromthe property Iine. So we placed them at
the rear of the building in essentially an outside
air unit grid, an array at the back, to pull it
further away fromthe adjacent property.

MR WLLIAVMS: And it's also worth noting
that the inpetus for this was that OP originally
asked us to put it on the roof, and we are
converting the building to go fully electric, and
we're putting solar panels to be in line with the
city's DOE goals. And that was the inpetus for why
they weren't on the roof in the first place because
that's obviously the easiest, nost out-of-sight
| ocation. But we have a solar array on the roof, so
we had to bring them down to the ground.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. So the
concern was about the adverse inpact on nei ghboring
properties. That was the original concern, so you
pulled it back in for the devel opnent itself. |
read and they also pointed, and you can correct ne,
| read their report to say that they're now
concerned that they're too close to the devel opnent
and to the cellar units. 1'll ask Ms. Roberts,
Acting Director Roberts, to comment on that. Can
you address that issue? | understood it correctly.

MR WLLIAMS: | think you've understood it
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correctly in terns of what OP has stated in their
report, and | think, to the point that M. Medvene
made, as well as ny prior point, there's a couple
di fferent places they could be on the site, and
where we put themnow is, we think, the nost
appropriate given the options that we have.

MR MEDVENE: Yes. And it's inportant to
note, too, Zack, that egress has been provi ded out
of both area walls, so that's sustained. Qoviously
there is not a setback regulation fromthe outside
area units fromthe building as it relates to the
bui |l di ng code, and so that array area seened to be
the nost reasonable |ocation to satisfy the other
aspects of the zoning regul ations for parking,
circulation, trash, et cetera, as well as obviously
setting it back as far as possible fromthe adjacent
| ot .

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Just to ask, the
next followup is that | suspect the Ofice of
Pl anni ng, and they'll comment on it, is there's a
concern about the noise or the inpact on the tenants
of those closest units. Do you foresee there being
any inpact on tenants of those units?

MR, PETYAK: The general building code

requires |am nated glass. QOobviously, the exterior
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wal | assenblies are FCC rated with appropriate

i nsul ati on and continuous surface rigid insulation.
| do not foresee major adverse inpacts on the

adj acent units.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  And by maj or adverse
| mpacts, do you anticipate sone noi se i npacts but
not of a substantially inpactful manner?

(Si mul t aneous speaki ng.)

MR. MEDVENE: W have designed it to the
bui | di ng code and industry standards, so the noise
and inpact at this juncture shouldn't be any nore
t han what you hear outside your house when you have
your HVAC condenser kick on. You mght hear a | ow
runmbling just because when it starts up it mght be
| oud, but it's not going to be anything that
deviates fromthe norm That is the key there.

So this is a standard. W built it or
designed it per code. There is no encroachnent or
uni que situation here that woul d provide any
exceptional shaking, |oud noises, et cetera, beyond
what one m ght hear generally when a condenser kicks
on outside their house. The w ndows, as Ryan put
It, everything' s been designed per code wth SCT and
so on and so forth. It's a common situation we have

across the city with all the buildings, and it's not
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sonet hing that we are uni quely concerned about or
worried will present a unique scenario to cause
pr obl ens.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN.  And based on your
review of the site and the possible |ocations that
funnel ed that array to this specific spot on the
site, is that correct?

MR. MEDVENE: That is correct, yes. As
you' Il see on the site, we're tied in between sone
exi sting structures outside already. And you al so,
froma building perspective, you can only go so far
fromthe building as the condensers have |ine sets
that run fromthemto the interior furnaces. The
third point, while it is technically feasible to run
line sets over 100 to 200 feet, that becones
extrenely expensive and nuch nore prone to
mai nt enance errors and issues as it is an
exceptionally long run for the units, which is why
there is a building code [imt as to how cl ose you
can get it because you want to get it as close as
you can to the building for functionality purposes.

The last thing we want to do is sacrifice
the functionality and have tenants not be able to
get the units cooling to what they want in exchange

for it maybe being mnutely quieter than what you
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woul d otherwise find in a typical instance.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN. | think there was,
as part of a prelimnary matter, | believe,
sonmet hing put into the record expressing concerns
about the project. Have you had a chance to review
t hat subm ssion? Have you seen it? |Is there
anything you can say to address it? It canme in
| ate, so | haven't even reviewed it. But |'mjust
wondering if you have and if there are any points
that you're able to address at this nonent.

MR WLLIAMS: So, because it cane in |ate,
it came in -- | haven't seen it either. | see it
now in the record, but as of prior to this hearing,
it wasn't there, so we have not had a chance to
revi ew.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. Those are al
t he questions | have at the nonent. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.

Gol dstein. M. Lindsjo, do you have any questions?

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Thank you. No, | think
Gol dstei n brought up ny question that was nostly
about the opposition letter that we received.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  kay. M. Hood, do
you have any questions for the applicant?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | don't have any at the
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nmonent, | may have sone before he does closing if we
get to that point. Thank you, Madam Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  You're wel cone. |
would just like to add a question about -- it seens
that there are two itens. Well, first | want to
ask, in the presentation you said the height is a
couple of feet and in the presentation it said
several feet higher, and | didn't get to |look at the
draw ngs to see what the actual difference in height
Is. Could you tell nme what that is, M. WIIlians?

MR WLLIAMS: | believe -- was it three
feet for this one, Ryan?

MR. PETYAK: Yes, it's just under three
feet.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Then the second
item |'mconcerned that, you know, if we approve
this and it's -- it's got this |language in there
about the conmmunity agreenent and tenant rel ocation
and curb cut issue, that there may be an expectation
that those itens have been approved as presented or
are, you know, officially a part or is a preference
of the BZA, and that's not the case. So | would
just Iike when we discuss this further that we
clarify how we -- how we deal with sonmething |ike

that to ensure that we're not sending m ssed --
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m xed nessages.

Al right. |If that's all the questions for
t he applicant, why don't we nove on to the Ofice of
Pl anning and we'll see you again after we hear from
others who are here to testify.

MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: Good afternoon, Madam
Chai rman and nmenbers of the Conm ssion. M nane is
Maxi ne Brown- Roberts fromthe O fice of Planning.
would like to say on behalf of the Ofice of
Pl anni ng that we extend our hearti est
congratul ations to your appointnent to the BZA, and
we do |l ook forward to working with you.

Regardi ng BZA 1, Now 21433, OP is in
support of the proposal to renovate and expand the
building from1l5 to 24 units. The applicant has
al so requested to do voluntary | C by providing three
units. Since there are currently tenants in the
bui | di ng, the applicant has al so provided a
rel ocation plan for the tenants during construction.

And this is sonething that the O fice of Planning
has al ways asked about just to make sure that we are
| ooki ng and nmaki ng sure that tenants are protected,
even though it's not, you know, would not be part of

the order, but that's -- that is sonething that we
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al ways |i ke to know about.

So as outlined in our report, the
application neets the requirenents of speci al
exception allowed on the Subtitle U421 for all new
multifamly projects in the RA-1 zone in Subtitle F,
201.4 for the special exception to pursue voluntary
| Z devel opnent pursuant to Subtitle X, 901. 2.

So, generally, OP is supportive of the
proposal, but as noted in our you know, report, and
there was sone di scussion about it earlier, that we
have sonme concerns about the HVAC units that woul d
be | ocated close to the air wells of the cellar
units. Yes, we did have a discussion with the
appli cant when they were -- when they were on the
side of the building adjacent to the -- to the
adj acent nei ghbor's house, but the applicant spoke
about, you know, the noise generated froma regul ar
house, which would be one unit. These are 24 units
close to the air wells of the cellar units. So
that's where ny -- that's where our concerns lie.

Second, | will also note that Peter has
requested the condition that the existing curb cut
should be imted to a maxi mum wi dth of 14 feet.
Again, this is not a --- the zoning issue, it's a

public space issue. So | do agree that that issue
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can be addressed at permtting.

So in general, the Ofice of Planning
beli eves that the proposal would be in harnmony with
t he general purpose and intent of the zoning
regul ati on and zoni ng map and shoul d not adversely
affect the use of the neighboring property or the
nei ghbor hood in accordance with the zoning
regul ation and map. And we do recomrend approval.
Thank you, Madam Chairnman, and |'m avail able for
guesti ons.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. Brown-
Roberts. | know that Conmmi ssioner CGol dstein

ment i oned sone di scussion with OP. Conmm ssi oner

ol dst ei n?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Sure. | think two
of the issues | -- | wanted the Ofice of Planning
to touch on, she just did. | would like to ask,

were you satisfied with the applicant's response
concerning the |ocation of the HVAC units? It
sounds like it still is of concern to you. |[Is that
correct?

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: Yes, as | said that,
you know, the -- one of the responses of the
applicant was that you know, having HVAC unit

outside of a building or nore likely I think he was
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nostly referring to a single-famly dwelling is

sonmething that is usual, and | do agree with that.
However, in this case, there are 24 units

outside of these cellar units, so that's a much

hi gher noise, | think fromyou know, just having one
-- just having one unit there, so -- so that's what
ny concern is. | do understand that you know, where

t hey tal k about, you know, relocating themfrom you
know, relocating them further may be nore costly, |
do understand that. But | do think that the
appl i cant should work on, you know, m nim zing the
noi se and really denonstrating that the noise on
these units will be |ess.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay. | would Iike,
before we close the record, for the applicant to
once again address this issue and any possible
mtigation that they -- they can propose. If | can
ask a few nore questions about this -- this tineg,
Madam Chai rman, | see for the U421 anal ysis that
both OSSI and DPR do not have anything in the
record, but it's the Ofice of Planning's position
t hat based on your analysis, the conditions have
still been satisfied for the purpose of U 421. |Is
that correct?

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: That is correct, yeah
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We | ooked at -- we | ooked at the schools that are
in -- inregards to OSSI, we | ooked at the school s
that are nearby and we think that they have capacity
to accommodate kids. This is just an additional,
you know, nine or so units, so we're not expecting
that they would generate so many kids that would
adversely affect the -- the school's capacity.
Regardi ng DPR, we al so | ooked, and there is a
community center and school close by that has
recreational facilities.

One thing that we are sonetines a little
concerned about is for you know, having sone
recreational facilities on-site, especially for
smal | er kids when we're providing three-bedroom
units, because those are usually for famlies. And
so we would ask -- but | don't think that this
property has enough space really to accomodate sone
outside recreational things for the kids. And
again, the recreation center that is close by does
have a variety of recreational things that these
children can use. So | feel confortable with that.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. G eat. Thank you
for the answer. Two nore questions for you. The
first is that nowwth the benefit of seeing

multiple of these cases today fromthe applicant,
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we' re about to have another one right after. In

that case, the Ofice of Planning conditioned its
approval on the | andscape plan. | see that you did
not, and | just want to nake sure, is that a

pur poseful decision fromthe Ofice of Planning?

"' mnot necessarily encouraging it in one way or the
other, it's just the difference between the Ofice

of Planning recommendation in this case versus the

next case.

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: Yeah. Cenerally, | --
| think the applicant has provided -- it's on the
pl ans -- shown on the plans. The plans are going to

be part of the record when they go for permtting,
sol -- 1 don't really see the necessity for having
a condition for that. |It's already taken care of.
It's not, you know, having that condition is not
mtigating anything, so | think that's fine.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Okay. Thank you.
And one final question, and | think |I know the
answer to this. If you don't mnd | ooking at the OP
report at the chart that you provided on page 3, and
| et me know when you are able to navigate to that.
This is the OP supplenmental report. M apol ogies,
["m putting you on the spot to get to it.

M5. BROWN-ROBERTS: |I'mtrying to get to it
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but | can't --

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN.  Ri ght when you need

M5. BROMN- ROBERTS:  Yeabh.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | don't mean to drag
al ong the suspense. On page 3 of the report in the
chart, there's a reference to a variance being
requested for side yard relief. And I just want to
make sure that that's probably an inadvertent
reference --

M5. BROMN ROBERTS:  Yes.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: -- and it's not
actual | y sonmet hi ng bei ng request ed.

M5. BROMN- ROBERTS:  Yes.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Ckay.

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: You're correct. That's
that -- yes, that's just -- there.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you very mnuch.

Terrific testinony. | really appreciate it.

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: You're wel cone.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, Ms. Brown-
Roberts, for your presentation. Let's see if there
are any other questions fromany other board
menbers. M. Lindsjo, do you have any questions

for OP?
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MEMBER LI NDSJO Not at this time, thank
you.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. Al right. M. Hood,
do you have any questions?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yeah, | do. And | don't

know how nuch -- is germane to what | know we do on
t he Comm ssion, Ms. Brown-Roberts, did you -- well,

l et me ask you two questions. Does Ofice of -- I'm
trying to renenber -- does O fice of Planning go

out, and talk to the community or did the applicant
just do it in this case? You all going to do -- you
all going to go out to the community tal king about
this case? GCkay. |I'mtying all this stuff up with
the COP Plan, so I'm-- |I"mgetting confused. Ckay.
The rel ocation, did you have a chance to | ook at
the applicant's relocation -- tenants' relocation?

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: Yes, | did ook at it,
yes.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: And - you all think it's
sufficient for the -- well, I'"mgoing to tal k about
just this case for now, but you all think it's
sufficient for this case and you all have anal yzed
It and agree with what has been proposed?

M5. BROAWN- ROBERTS: | wouldn't say that we
analyzed it. W |ooked at what was being
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recommended and were satisfied wth what they were
proposi ng. Yeah.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. All right. Thank
you, Ms. Brown-Roberts. Madam Chair, when we get
back to before -- | guess closing, | do want to
expand a little bit wth M. WIllians on the tenant
relocation. [I'll leave it at that. Thank you.
Thank you, Ms. Brown-Roberts.

MS. BROMN- ROBERTS: You're wel cone.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Ms. Brown-
Roberts, did you include -- did you have the DDOT
report when you did your report, where -- did they
reference the issue of the curb cut wth -- was that
I ncorporated in your report as well?

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: Yes, | did nmention it
in my report.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Al right. And
so are they -- the curb cut is currently greater and
the request is to shorten it; is that your
under st andi ng - -

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS:  Yes.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. -- but that wouldn't
be necessarily a condition of this application?

M5. BROWN- ROBERTS: That's correct.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. kay. |It's okay.
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That's it, | just wanted clarification on that.
Thank you. | don't think we have any nore questions
for you.

MS. BROMN- ROBERTS:  Ckay.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. But if you could stay
on just in case if anything conmes up later in the
di scussi on.

MS. BROMN- ROBERTS: W I do.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Do we have any ot her
gover nnent agenci es?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair -- Madam Chair
if I can just -- we also want to nmake sure that the
appl i cant doesn't have any questions of Ofice of
Pl anning as wel | .

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Oh, okay. Thank you.

Is there -- | didn't hear, do you have any
questions?

MR. MEDVENE: No questions, thank you,
Madam Chai r.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Thank you so
much. Al right. Let's nove on to any ot her
district agencies. Are there any district agencies
that are here to present?

It doesn't -- there doesn't seemto be

anyone. Al right. Let's see if there -- the ANC
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is here, | don't believe they are here, or any ANC
W t nesses? Doesn't seemto be any. All right. So
are there any parties in support of the application
that would like to speak now? So | see on ny |ist
that there are public witnesses in opposition and
declared. Are they on the site now and prepared to
give their presentations?

MR YOUNG Yes, I'll bring themall up
Now.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. Young.

MR YOUNG |If you have the list of nanes,
you can call whoever you'd like first and ask them
to start.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Al right. The first
person to speak is Ms. Cassandra Phillips. M.
Phillips, would you pl ease introduce yourself and
provi de your testinony?

M5. PHI LLIPS: Yes. M nane is Cassandra
Phillips and I reside at 1342 Eastern Avenue,
Apartnment 305. | have been a dedi cated nenber of
this community and living in this rent-controlled
apartnment over 40 years now. And not just staying
Is to have a conpany cone in, buy the property, put
a bag on our doors with a letter introducing

thensel ves and inviting us to a town hall neeting

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

161

where we were told that we had three nonths to
vacate the premi ses for renovation. And if we
wanted to cone back, we had to reapply and qualify.
That was very insensitive. Al while comng into a
gover nnent shutdown where | was prom sed | eni ency
but couldn't get in touch with anyone during that
tinme.
VWhat are our rights in this situation?

Because now they're saying they offered us $10, 000.
There's nothing conparable to what |'m payi ng now
inthe D.C. area. | haven't found anything
conparable to this, and I work in D.C. So how --
and then howis it good for the nei ghborhood when
conpanies are allowed to cone in with these kind of
tactics and strip us of our affordable housing and
sone or nore -- or nore decent nei ghborhoods just to
l'ine their pockets. | just don't understand how
they can cone in -- and they're |ying about
relocation planning. Were am | going? | haven't
had any -- anybody talk to ne about relocation.

They -- on their letter it said that they had a
conpany called Equally who wll work with us. W
have to pay application fees, and then we'll --
they'll have a list of properties where we can apply

for. | haven't gotten one list of properties. |
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haven't tal ked to anybody since then, and that was
Sept enber, COct ober.

So | just want to know ny rights. | nean
you want to renovate the building, you don't want us
to cone back because you want to put these
astronom cal prices on these buildings so you can
make nmoney and forget about the tenants. So | don't
know who GCA or AMC tal ked to, but I'mnot in
agreenment with it because |'ve been over here for 40
years. And to have sonebody cone in and tell ne |
got three nonths to | eave out of here, | just don't
understand that. Were are ny rights?

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  Thank you, Ms.

Phillips.
M5. PHILLIPS: Were are ny rights?
BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.
Phillips. | -- I'msorry --

M5. PHILLIPS: | just hope that the Board -
- really consider the tenants that nmake up this
nei ghbor hood before making a decision to allow this
to go forward.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. So I'd like to open it
up for the Board to ask you questions if they have
any questions. |s that okay?

M5. PHILLIPS: Sure
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BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Al right. W'd like
to-- I'dlike to start with --

ZC CHAIR HOOD: WMadam Chair, | -- | --

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  Yeah?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | know we' ve been going to
Vice Chair CGoldstein, but I"mgoing to go first this
tinme because --

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Ckay. Thank you.

ZC CHAI R HOOD: Because when | go down for
confirmati on hearings and when | go down in front of
the Council, and you'll see too when you start going
wth nme, one of the things that cones up a lot in
this city is displacenent. |'mvery disturbed, M.
Medvene, of what |'mhearing fromM. Phillips.

Don't think -- this is not a made-up story. |

don't, you know, believe that Ms. Phillips would get
on here with her concerns -- | know she lives in one
of the units. | don't think she would get on here
wi th those concerns and just give us a fal sehood.

So that's why | want to know nore about the
rel ocation, because this is not ny first rodeo.
Peopl e cone down and they tal k about these el aborate
rel ocation plans, and nunber one, they don't know
where the residents are when it's tine for themto

cone back. They -- so I've been to relocations
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quite a bit inthis city. One of the issues that
|"'mhaving is it sounds like we're getting ready to
set up for another displacenent. And | realize that
the BZA has certain statutes and certain
limtations, but | represent the Zoni ng Comm ssion
and we don't. So | have to also wear that hat, a
certain degree.

But | wll tell you this, that before |
nove forward, Madam Chair and Board nenbers, that
relocation -- unless |I'm m ssing sonething, because
this is very disturbing, that's why | was asking,
unl ess |'m m ssing sonething, we need to fine-tune
that and find out ways that the people who Iive
there through this tine are able to return to the
good tinmes. Unless, M. Medvene, that's not the
intent. And | want to know how are you going to be
able to help those that want to return to qualify?
That's what it's all about.

So I'"'mgoing to give you an opportunity, |
know I m ght put sone dispersions out there, but I'm
going by the testinony that I've heard. This ain't
the first tinme |I've heard that kind of testinony,
and I wll tell you, for ne, that's a non-starter.
So | don't know if you want to respond to ne or

you're going to prove to ne later that maybe you
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need to work sone nore wwth Ms. Phillips and the
ot her nenbers as well to be able to return. You
tell -- walk ne through it. Howis that going to
| ook? What are you all doing to nake sure we don't
just put a bag with a letter on Ms. Phillips' door,
tell her to nove out in three nonths, and you got to
qualify to cone back? Explain to ne how we're
wor ki ng all that out.

MR. MEDVENE: Geat. Sorry, | just wanted
to make sure to let you finish. So, to start,
cannot begin to stress the inaccuracies of a |lot of
the statenents. | prefer not to get into
guestioning the integrity, 1'll stick to the facts.

So, first and forenost, it is now nine
mont hs or eight nonths since the first town hall was
hel d and the tenants were infornmed of the new
acqui sition out of bankruptcy. W also inforned
them of the process that we were planni ng on worKking
through -- the three nonths that she's referring to
Is incorrect. |It's 120 days, which is four nonths.
And we infornmed all of them as | said, about eight
mont hs ago, telling them what the intent was.

The standard URA rel ocation process is 120
days, which is four nonths. Again, we are eight

months in, and there are still a few tenants
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remai ning. They're not kicked out, so the notion
that -- themthat they have three nonths and then
they're on the street, is clearly not a factual
statenent, validated by the fact that we are eight
nmont hs and counting in, they're still in their
honmes, we are still -- a majority of them-- a | ot
of the federal tenants are not paying their rent.

"' mnot saying that Ms. Phillips is one of
those, but regardless, the buildings are still being
kept up, which is not an easy task given the
condition that they are in. So first and forenost,
|"mgoing to clear the air on the fact that -- or
the notion that -- that people were given three
nmont hs and then out on the street.

The process that was foll owed was upon
purchasi ng the buil ding, as Zach had noted, these
bui | dings are barely staying standing. Two of them
are already condemed, fortunately, those are
al ready vacant, but all of the buildings are --

dil apidated is an understatenent. And there is no
possible way to bring these buildings back up to
proper code and living standards with them bei ng
occupied. As such, we -- that is the main reason
why the District worked wiwth us prior to purchasing

the property.
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There were extensive conversations with
mul tipl e governnent agencies, DOB, QAG et cetera,
there are VCAs, which is a Voluntary Conpliance
Agreenent, that is tied to all of these properties
that the District signed wwth us, that basically
suspended all but life safety violations on the
bui | di ngs, because they acknow edge that these
bui | dings are not sustainable to be brought up to a
I i vabl e and code-conpliant condition with the
occupants in it. They are -- literally falling
apart is not an understatenent. That is not
stressed enough, the condition these buildings are
I n.

So as such, going into this endeavor, all
of the parties involved, the governnent included,
whi ch is evidenced by the VCA and gover nnent
contract, everything that is docunented and
reported, that was all out there. Through
rel ocation services, the nonent we bought the
bui | di ng out of bankruptcy, we engaged Equally
Crafted Managenent, ECM which Ms. Phillips
referenced. They, along with the property
managenent conpany, hosted town hall to get all the
remai ni ng tenants. There were 36 tenants across the

five buildings that remai ned when we purchased the
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building. They net wwth them outlined all of the
pl ans, what's going to happen, along with all the
rel ocation resources and efforts that -- that
equal Iy crafted managenent via our contract with

t hem are bei ng provi ded.

A lot of those resources is finding new
| ocations, it is assisting themto apply to new
platforms or prograns. W have -- as it stands now,
we have 22 of the 36 have been successfully
rel ocated. This endeavor has included taking them -
- literally DCMliterally driving tenants to
different apartnments and -- and properties to | ook
at, make sure it's sonmething they want, it's
I ncl uded getting them signed up and applied and into
the IT program it is getting theminto voucher,
Section 8, ERAP, et cetera, to provide themthe
resources so that they can qualify to find a new
honme, which in turn would also allowthemin that -—
vis-a-vis that programto return when they want to -
- if they want to apply in the back end.

The remaining -- if I'"mnot m staken, there
are 14 remaining tenants in the building. O the
14, there are only eight that have not signed these
rel ocation agreenents, and it is boiled down to

requesting -- and it's not -- sone of them not
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necessarily Ms. Phillips, but sone of themjust
strai ght up demandi ng nore noney, saying that after
everything that they have lived through for the | ast
X many years of m smanagenent, dil api dated housi ng,
et cetera, they feel that they deserve a higher
payout than the nonies that we have offered.

As we have conveyed on numerous occasi ons,
we can't speak to what happened before we got here.
All we can do is provide the resources that we have
paid a significant sum of noney to put towards
assisting them but unfortunately, as everyone here
knows, you can throw as many resources at soneone as
you want, but unless they are wlling to take them
up on it, it's not going to matter. Again, we get
reports on a weekly basis fromour vendors that have
stated -- and Ms. Phillips is on that |ist of people
t hey have knocked on the door, and they have stated
--and | can pull up the report now, stating that
she wants to buy out of $60,000 or she will not
| eave.

M5. PH LLIPS: That's a lie.

MR, MEDVENE: |Is a statenent --

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ms. Phillips, this is what
|"mgoing to do --

( Si mul t aneous speaki ng.)
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M5. PHILLIPS: That's a lie.

MR. MEDVENE: No.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Well, M. Phillips, M.
Phillips, |I'masking the questions right now M.
Medvene, hold tight, hold tight. You' ve given ne
enough i nformati on.

Madam Chair, |'mnot going to take over
this neeting, but I'mgoing to kind of guide the way
| need to do it to get things done.

M. Medvene, | wanted to kind of know,
because | did not see, typically, | know on the
Comm ssion, and I think the BZA too, | stand to be
corrected, | always like to see outline. |[If it's in
here, M. WIllians, if you can tell ne where | need
to |l ook because | like to see them VWat | do want
to ask M. Medvene is, if you could -- because
peopl e' s perception becones their reality.

Now, |'mnot taking a side, | just want to
make sure, because this -- at |east the Comm ssion
and the Board, gets accused of displacenent all the
time. So I'mgoing to do ny necessary due diligence
to make sure |'ve exhausted -- nake sure everything
under the law, you nentioned OCAG and DOB and all
t hose who are involved, which | think is clear, but

| want to make sure that the due diligence has been
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done, to work with the -- and, Ms. Phillips, | don't
-- I'"'mgoing to ask you, please do not respond right
now because | need to try to figure this out.

But 1'"mgoing to ask you, M. Medvene, if
-- if there's sonething in the record, M. WIIians,
that you can point nme to that shows the rel ocation
pl an, | know t he BZA doesn't get too nuch into it,
but with displacenent and under the Council's
regul ations, we actually should, and we have to. So
we want -- | want to make sure that people are not
bei ng di splaced, | want to know what the plan is.
And | will tell you, Madam Chair, | will not be
moving forward with this, I'mnot taking a side
until I'm-- |'mseeing what the plan is.

| know you have sone people that are
successful, and | do know peopl e hold out for other
reasons. But everybody don't hold out for other
reasons. They m ght have to hold out because they
m ght not be able to qualify, which puts them up
under -- and |I'mnot tal king about Ms. Phillips
ei ther, but puts them up under the case of being
di splaced. And that's a big thing that this city is
tal ki ng about, making sure residents are not
di spl aced.

So | need sone assurances. Then they say
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always go to the zoning, but that's part of wh

what this Board and what the Conm ssion is --

at --

st ands

for, so if you can help ne get through that M.

Medvene, I'd really, really appreciate it.

Madam Chair, | wll not be noving fo

| will not be voting in favor of this anytine

today. So I'll leave it at that. And thank y
M. Medvene and Ms. Phillips, for explaining.
know I got off, we were dealing with Ms. Phil
but | needed to hear that because of what | he
So that's all | have. [I'll give it back to yo
Madam Chair. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Mk.
Phillips and -- Ms. Phillips and M. Medvene,

rwar d.

ou,
I

| ps,

ard.

u,

can

you reference what part of the application that's

in, please?
MR WLLIAMS: Madam Chair may | res

briefly to Conm ssioner Hood? Because he brou

pond
ght up

a couple of points that | think I can hopefully help

himwth. First of all --
BZA CHAIR POURCIAU: M. WIIlians?
WIIlians?

MR WLLIAMS:  Yes?

M.

172
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t he question about where we can find that
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information in the application package, if it's in
t here?

MR. WLLIAMS: The relocation plan?

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:  Yes. \Which exhibit is
that in?

MR WLLIAMS: That's not part of the BZA
appl i cati on.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Ckay. Thank you.
Ckay. Go ahead.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: And | agree it may not be,
but you renenber, M. WIllians, | sit on the Zoning
Comm ssion, and it's always part. And for ne to
participate in this, and when you tal k about
di spl acenent, | would like to see a copy of it. And
you can do it, and you all can send it. You can do
t hat .

MR WLLIAMS: Comm ssioner Hood, we did
provide it to Ofice of Planning, Ofice of Planning
asked us for that information early in this process,
and we did provide that to them It wasn't filed
since it's not part of the zoning application, but
It was sonething that Ofice of Planning engaged
with us on. | will also say it's referenced in the
Deanwood Citizens Association CBA. This was the

nost di scussed topic with the Deanwood Citizens
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Associ ati on.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: M. Wllians, let nme cut
you off. M. WIIlians, because you're saying what
|"masking for is not referenced, not pertaining to
zoning, and then you're not -- not going to get a
di sagreenent because at the end of the day | have to
be confortable wwth how !l vote. Also, the CBAis
not a part, so we got one part already, | also want

the ot her part.

| want the other part. | want the -- |
want the relocation package. | nean, what you can
give ne within legal bounds, | want that. | want to

be able to read the process. That's what | want.
Just like the CBAis in there, | want that to be in
there. And | have -- so thank you, M. WIIians.
Thank you, Madam Chair. | don't think I
need any nore discussion on that, M. WIllianms. And
we can -- and anything el se you have, we can talk
about it later, but | nean, we can tal k about it
another time, but I want to keep things noving for
the rest of the board nenbers. | want to be
consi derate of them But we can't tal k about the
CBA, and you got that in there, which shouldn't be
in there, and won't -- won't submt the relocation

ER process.
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MR. MEDVENE: |If | could also interject one
other element to point out that | didn't get to in
ny whol e expl anation and everything. There is an
affordability covenant on all these properties.

It's recorded with the deed, that is 60%AM. So
the notion that we are -- we are |looking to cone in
here and pad our pockets and nmake this a new
bui | di ng that excludes existing residents and makes
It market with exorbitant -- that is factually --

al so factually incorrect, as these properties are
all going to be affordabl e under the existing LURA
covenant that is -- that is place on all the
properties. So any rent that is going to be charged
Is going to be limted to 60% AM .

And furthernore, the displacenent concern
is a valid one. And as Zach had nentioned, that's
why | brought up the fact that we have -- through
ECM we have done it -- our vendor has specifically
assisted and facilitated several of themthat do not
qualify for a ot of other places, whether it be for
| ncone- based reasons, age eligibility reasons, et
cetera, and that is why they've gotten it into the
ERAP voucher or, |Z program They filled out it,

t hose program applications with them gotten them

into it, and gotten theminto those buil dings.
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There's also a nunber of seniors that |ived
in the buildings that did not want to nove to a
regul ar apartnent. So they got a nunber of them
into the, | want to call this Delta sonething, but
there is a senior-specific assisted living facility
t hat they have noved into.

So there is -- eight nonths into this,
there is no forcible displacenent, and we wi ||
provide -- as | can get with Zach, we can see what's
t he nost expeditious and efficient manner to get you
the plan. But the plan outlines everything that we
just -- | just discussed, which is essentially that
we are providing themthe resources vis-a-vis ECMto
apply to any prograns needed at their disposal, show
themall these -- any available apartnents, as well
as providing themthe physical relocation, the
noving services, all of that is part of the package
that is given to them and has been executed on for
now over, whatever it says the nunber is two dozen
of these tenants that were in the building at the
time.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: M. Medvene, thank you,
because everything you just said is what |I'm| ooking
for. That's it. It's not hard. It's not rocket

science. | didn't have to get a doctoral degree to
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get what you just told ne you have. | just need to
see it in witing. So thank you, M. Medvene,

t hank you, M. WIllianms. Back to you, Madam Chair.
Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Thank you. 1'd like
to call on M. Coldstein nowto see if he has any
guestions for the applicant?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. | don't
have any additional questions.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Thank you.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Oh, I'msorry. The
applicant or the individual ?

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU Oh, I'msorry.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Al right.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: |I'msorry. Thank you
so nmuch, M. CGoldstein. For M. Phillips, do you
have any questions for Ms. Phillips?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | don't have any
gquestions for Ms. Phillips. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you. M.

Li ndsj o, do you have any questions for Ms. Phillips?

MEMBER LINDSJO | do not, thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Let ne add to
the discussion that |'mso glad M. Hood is with us

t oday because he has a breadth of experience in this
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area. | -- | raised earlier that I was concerned
about a potential perception of this being included
In our report, and -- and it gives ne pause because
It's not sonething that we have and that we have
been able to do anything with. And so | appreciate
M. Hood's coments and I -- | hope Ms. Phillips,
that that gives you sense of what we're trying to do
in this regard.

M5. PHILLIPS: Yes, it does. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. You're wel conme. There
-- | think with that, I'll nove on to the next
person signed up on the list. Again, thank you so
much, Ms. Phillips, for comng in today and sharing
your concerns. The next person on the opposition
list is Maryan Ali, would you |ike to speak now, and
you have three mnutes to give your presentation

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Madam Chair --

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Yes?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: -- before we nove on, can

we make sure we afford M. WIlians the opportunity

to do cross on the witness, which is Ms. Phillips?
If he -- if he has questions of Ms. Phillips,
that's -- that's the process where, you know, you

can do cross-exam nati on.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. (Ckay. I'msorry. So
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| et's back up and proceed with that. M. WIIlians,
did you have anythi ng?
MR WLLIAMS: | do not have anything.
BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. kay. Thank you
Thank you, M. Hood. So again, Ms. Ali?

M5. ALII: Good afternoon. M nanme is
Maryan Ali. | reside at 1542 Eastern Avenue
Nort heast -- 303 Washington, D.C. 20019. | also

work in D.C. The new owner of my building is the
Scope Goup of the United States. This devel opnent
that they are pursuing is having a significant
negative inpact on us as a long-termtenant in the
District of Colunbia. Property managenent i nformned
us that once the devel opnment is conplete, we will be
required to apply as a new tenant rather than being
all owed to continue as a tenant. W're not provided
with sufficient notice or adequate tine to secure
alternative housing. Additionally, we are not
of fered any rel ocation assistance or buyout package
that will help offset the cost and chall enge
associated with finding a new -- This situation has
created substantial uncertainty and hardship for ny
househol d.

| was wondering, in this situation, what ny

rights are. What rights do | have as a tenant? Are
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we able to get nore tine under this circunstance?
Are we able to get better buy out so we can go
before a court?

| can also add that the representatives of

this conpany spoke about that none of the tenants

accepted the offer unless, you know, they -- they're
still having a hard tinme. Those who are not paying
the rent, they are still struggling finding a place

to go. W were told if you do not accept what we

offer you, we will evict you. So at this point,
Ms. Phillips and | are waiting for that eviction.
That's where we at. So | -- fromny place, please

state again that what are our rights in this
situation? | lived here since 2015.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. Ali.
Thank you so much. [|'d like to ask the board

menbers if they have questions or a discussion that

they would like to offer Ms. Ali. M. Hood, can |
call on you first again, please?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Well, | heard Ms. Ali. |
don't necessarily have any question. M. Phillips

kind of represented what Ms. Ali has said, but | do
want M. WIllianms and M. Medvene to be able to just
provide ne -- and you see, that's inportant because

the Comm ssion and the BZA, we get accused all the
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time of displacenent. And not doing our due
diligence. So | want to nake sure we do our due
diligence, | want to nmake sure that they are
prot ect ed because again, their perception. People's
perception becones the reality. And | wll tell
you, a lot of times -- and |I'm not taking sides but
alot of times there's a lot of truth to what's
being said. And | don't want to get into what M.
Medvene -- | heard what M. Medvene represented, and
that's typically what we | ook at on the Comm ssi on.
And again, we want to make sure that people are not
-- it's a big push about not displacing people in
this city, and that's one of the things that | have
been -- it's been brought to ny attention. And as
t he newer nenbers today, as you' re around a whil e,
you'll see that's a big deal in the city. | know
M. Goldstein knows about it, and you and others,
Madam Chai r, know about this, but that's a big push
about justification in putting people out of the
city, and I don't want to be a part of that.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. M.
Gol dstein, did you have any questions or discussion
with Ms. Ali?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | don't have any

further questions. Thank you very nuch, Ms. Ali for
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your testinony today.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ms. Lindsjo?

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Thank you for your
testinony. No questions at this tine.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. M. Al
think what we're trying to do here is see what the
process has been outlined. | don't feel that we'r
t he peopl e who coul d speak on your rights in this
hearing, but what we are | ooking at deliberating
about is we've heard the presentation of what has
been done and sone of the itens that here seem
notable, | would say, and so we m ght want to see
little nore to feel nore confortable that due
diligence process is being followed. And if there
can be anything else done. 1s there anything el se
can help you with, Ms. Ali, at this point?

M5. ALI: That's all at this point.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. M. WIllians, didy
want to respond to the testinony?

MR WLLIAMS: Not to Ms. Ali, no. Than
you, Madam Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Thank you.

t hank you again, Ms. Ali. W wll nove on to the
next public wi tness, which is Javier Mil.

MR MJL: H, yes, it's Mil.
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BZA CHAIR POURCI AU.  Mul, I'"'msorry. Thank
you.

MR MJL: No worries. Good afternoon and
t hank you everyone for this opportunity to provide
the comunity, you know, their testinony and ny
public testinony. M nane is Javier Mul. | ama
property owner across fromthe Eastern Ave.
devel opnent, as | can actually see fromny w ndow
t he devel opnent across fromny property at 1121
Eastern Ave. The, you know, as we have here, |
think the major concerns are the tenant displacenent
that the previous w tnesses have testified, and
that's sonething that is really very, very
enotional, especially if one has lived in that house
or space for along tine. | definitely concur with
Conm ssi oner -- Conm ssioner Hood who has -- who
would like to see a witten plan, so.

Also, | want to say that because of the
| ack of communication from Eastern Avenue Hol di ngs
in terns of site maintenance control neasures, |
woul d Ii ke to oppose the granting of this special
relief due to site construction. You know, the
devel oper has not brought forth a, you know,
conprehensi ve plan on, you know, securing the site,

you know, as far as mai ntenance or, you know, during
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construction. And also, you know, it wll cause,
you know, public general, you know, prevention of
the roads. For exanple, the Eastern Ave corridor
Is a very, very high traffic you know, corridor.

You know, besides we have, you know, accidents,
even, you know, tragically deaths by, you know, cars
t hat speed up and down Eastern Ave. And so to this
day, the devel oper has not brought forth a you know,
a plan to like mtigate you know, traffic or

di sruption to traffic, you know, especially in the
you know, in the afternoons when there's a | ot of

vehicle traffic at Eastern Sheriff Road D vi sion,

Sso.

And al so, to this day, you know, there has
been no official notification that the -- this site
wi |l be, you know, developed. | think | understand

that the devel oper reached out to other property
owners that is abutting the site, but to this day I
have not officially gotten any postal mail fromthe
devel oper, so --

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. M. Ml we nmay --

MR MJL: |I'msorry?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: W have sone techni cal
Issues. We'll be back M. Miul. Gve her a mnute,

pl ease.
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MR MJL: Ckay.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. | think ny sense is
she may have been getting to the point of asking you
to conclude your testinony if possible just since we
have exhausted the tine.

MR MJL: OCkay. No worries. And also the
other matter is the environnental inpact. So
there's a lot of trees that -- |ong-standing trees

up and down the eastern corridor. we're fearful that

t he devel oper wll, you know, just sinply cut the
trees on the public sidewal ks -- on the sidewal ks
there. And so because of that, |'m opposed to this

devel opnent. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. | think ny internet
was in and out, so | mssed a little bit. And | saw
that M. Coldstein was speaking. Did you wap up
now, can we go to questions, are there nore
questions fromthe Board for this presenter?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  I'msorry, | don't
have any additional questions. Thank you very nuch
for your testinony today.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay, thanks.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: WMadam Chair -- |'msorry.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. | was going to ask M.

Lindsjo if she had any questi ons.
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MEMBER LINDSJO | do not. Thank you for
your testinony.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. M. Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | don't have any additional
questions, but Ms. Mul, | want to thank you for your
testi nony and com ng down to present your views, but
that even clarifies even nore -- confirmation even
nore why | need -- we want to see that relocation
so thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. Mil.
It was very conprehensive and we appreciate you
spending the tinme. |'d like to nove on to the next
public witness. That's an opposition, Dan Del
Pi el ago.

ZC CHAI R HOOD: Madam Chair, you al ways
want to make sure you give the applicant a chance.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Oh, yeah. Thank you.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: They wll call this out.
Yeah.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. |I'mso sorry. |If we
can back up to M. Mul. M. WIllians, did you want
to respond to the presenter?

MR WLLIAM Just a couple of points.
First, and | don't necessarily want to cross-

exam ne, but just a couple of points for M. Mil.
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First, | want to nmake sure that he has seen or is
aware of the Community Benefit Agreenent signed with
t he Deanwood Citizens Associ ation because it
addresses, | think all of the points that he brought
up. And so that's sonething very inportant because
iIt's been executed by the civic association as well
as the developer. That's nunber one. Nunber two, |
believe M. Mil was at | east one Deanwood Citizens
Associ ation neeting. So | think he would know - -
hopefully knows who to reach out to there to get
further information about that agreenent and the
efforts that went into it, which were significant.
So that -- that is it. The only other question
about notice | was going to ask is whether M. Ml
resides in DC or on the Maryl and si de, because that
woul d probably inpact whether notice went out as
well. But that doesn't necessarily matter, it was
just a thought that occurred to ne while | heard his
t esti nony.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you. And thank
you again, M. Hood, for the rem nder. So we'll
nmove on to M. Pielago. |s that how you pronounce
your nane, please?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: I'msure | hate to keep
interrupting, but | think M. WIIlians asked M. Ml
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a question that has not gotten answered, so --

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Yeah, if he has the --
that's correct.

MR. MJL: Sorry, what was the question?

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. If you have a copy of
t he Tenant Rel ocation Agreenent, the -- what's the -

MR MJL: No, | don't.

MR WLLIAMS: The community benefit --

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU.  Yeah.

MR. MJL: Nope.

MR. WLLIAMS: Yeah

MR MJ: And | think the other question
was about the official notification?

MR, WLLIAMG:  Yes.

MR. MJL: No, |'ve not received that.

MR. MEDVENE: He asked because he noticed
you nmade a comment earlier on that you can | ook at
the building across the street. Across the street
technically is Mryland.

MR MJL: Yes, Maryland. W are
technically Maryl and, but --

MR. MEDVENE: You woul d not have received a
notice because all the notices formally go out to DC

residents. That's just for clarification purposes.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

189

That's why he was asking the question. So all --
we have certified mail receipts and records of all
notifications going out to all DC residents,
unfortunately, in this instance given the proximty,
t hat does not apply to Maryl and resi dents.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: And that's correct. W've
been through that before. | shouldn't say this, but
Maryl and don't give us notice, so we don't give them
notice. But anyway, stay engaged, M. Medvene, |'I|
turnit off. I'msorry, Madam Chair, | don't want
to take over.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M. Hood.
Your experience is invaluable here. M. Mil, |
t hi nk your conments are right on point, and as you
can hear, we are working on the sane thing you are
wWith getting that agreenent and seei ng where we go
Wi th next steps. Thank you again for presenting
today. M. Pielago, | want to --

MR PIELAGO Hell o?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Looks like you're on the
line. WMake sure you step out, yeah?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Yeah. Sure. Wy
don't we -- M. Pielago, please begin presenting
your testinony. Please be mndful if you can of the

three-mnute tinme limt, we'd really appreciate it.
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Thank you.

MR PIELAGO. | will. Thank you. Good
afternoon. M nane is Daniel Del Pielago and | work
wi th Enpower DC. W recently began supporting the
tenants who are nostly seniors and | ow to noderate
I ncome district residents at these Eastern Ave.
properties being redevel oped by the Eastern Ave.

Hol dings 11 LLC

At a recent neeting of the Deanwood
Ctizens Association, Mitthew Medvene, the new owner
of these properties, shared that he was undert aki ng
these properties to help inprove these | angui shing
properties. However, a direct result of these
pl anned redevel opnents has resulted in, wll
continue to result in displacenent of long-term
district residents. As we understand, even the
tenants who have accepted the buyout that Eastern
Avenue Hol di ngs offered are having difficulty
finding a new place to relocate, so they have not
recei ved the negotiated buyout in hand as of yet.

Anot her big concern is the confusion this
process has created for the remaining tenants. W
understand fromtenants that they have been told
they have to relocate by March -- they would have to

rel ocate by March 17th. It appears that tenants
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recei ved the conbi ned notice of relocation
eligibility for URA, relocation assistance, and the
120-day notice to vacate on different dates, and
sonme did not receive themat all.

Furthernore, the rent adm nistrator
confirmed that it has no record of a 501 petition,
whi ch nust be filed with themin the Ofice of the
Tenant Advocate in these types of redevel opnent
projects, and issued void orders of the conbi ned
notice to vacate dated, Novenber 17th, 2025. W can
submt these void orders if you'd like to see them
i f you would just let us know how.

We do not support the approval of this and
other projects related wwth the Eastern Avenue
Hol di ngs LLC. These projects will have an adverse
I npact on the community. It purports to want to
hel p and i nprove. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. M. Coldstein, ny --
Is going in and out. Could you please guide us
t hrough the remainder of this, | think it'll be --
and I'Il be able to hear. Thank you.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Do any -- |'Il

start. Thank you. | don't have any additi onal
guestions. It sounds very much as it's in the sane
-- in your -- sane tone as other things we've been
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hearing. | want to ask if any other board nenbers
have questions or feedback for -- related to this
t esti nony.

MEMBER LI NDSJO | --

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Yep, sorry, go
ahead.

MEMBER LINDSJO No, | do not at this tine.

Thank you for your testinony.
ZC CHAIR HOOD: Thank you, M. Vice Chair.
Let me just ask M. Pielago, and | can't renenber,
| think you mght have said this, did you attend
some of those ANC neetings and the Deanwood Civil
Associ ati on neeting?

MR Pl ELAGO | have.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: (Ckay. And, so -- okay,
that's all | need to know. Thank you. Thank you,
Vice Chair.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. M. WIlianms, do you
have any questions for the individual testifying
now.

MR WLLIAMS: | don't have any questions
but we wll have a response and we can either do it
now or at the end of this.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay. Thank you.

Unfortunately, | can't see it in front of me, Madam
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Chair --

MR. MEDVENE: | do actually have one
question, if it's all right. M. Pielago, did you
have any know edge of ECM reaching out to Enpower DC
on numnerous occasions, both via calls and emails

attenpting to contact?

MR. PIELAGO. | did receive a call, |
cannot recall the person's nane. | was actually
away when those calls canme through. | did respond.

| was unable to reach that person, |, also, tried

several tinmes to reach them Wen | was able to
finally connect with them they said that they were
just | ooking for sonebody to help with rel ocati on,
and | said that's not what ny organi zati on does, and
that's where the conversati on ended.

MR. MEDVENE: (Kay.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Thank you.
Unfortunately --

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Can you hear ne now?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | can hear you.
Unfortunately, | can't see who's next in line. |If
you are able to take back.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Jahnavi Jagannat h,
next in line. Could you hear that?

M5. JAGANNATH: Yes. Hi. Thank you both
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for your tinme. M nane is Jahnavi Jagannath, and
| "' man Enpower DC staff attorney and a DC resident.
|"mhere to support the current tenants of Eastern
Avenue and draw t he nexus between the tenant
relocation i ssue and the zoni ng case.

So, as you all know, Section 901.2 states
that the BZA can grant a speci al exception when the
relief is in harnony with the general purpose and
intent of the zoning regs. And 901.3 puts the
burden to prove the adverse inpact on the applicant.

| woul d argue that the burden of proof is higher
than just show ng a plan for relocation, so | know
that's conme up. W would request that you all
acknow edge a hi gher burden of proof than just
showi ng a plan. And while the applicant has
referenced the subsection in their submtted papers,
they do inconpletely state the purpose and intent of
the zoning regs. So Subtitle 101.2D states that the
regs in this title and the MAP are designed with
consi deration of the requirenent that zoning shall
not be inconsistent with the Conprehensive Plan for
the national capital. And the Conp Plan states that
every effort should be made to avoid |ong-term
di spl acenent of existing residents; if the project

IS reconstructed, build affordable units first to
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m ni mze di splacenent and maxi m ze return of
residents to the community; ensure every effort
possible is nmade to avoi d permanent di spl acenent of
residents; and recognize vulnerability of conversion
to market-rate housing to include at a m ni nrum an
equi val ent nunber of affordable units, additional
mar ket-rate units, and neasures to avoid
di spl acenent of onsite residents.

And as a rem nder, zoning shall not be
I nconsistent with the Conp Plan, and BZA has a
responsibility to pronote harnony with the Conp
Plan. Section 901.4 does allow the BZA to inpose
requi rements to ensure conpliance with the intent of
the zoning regs.

And while these requirenents that we are
about to recomend m ght not be the npbst conmmon
pl ace, they are all aligned with the CBA that the
applicant has already entered into. And we call on
BZA to use its authority laid out in Section 901.4
to encourage the application's harnony with the
general purpose and intent of the zoning regs.

So, the requirenents that we are
recomrendi ng are: nunber one, give remaining tenants
an additional 120 days to find alternative housing;

nunber two, on conpletion of the renovations, give
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original tenants who want to return first right to
apply for newunits in the building with no
application fee and a guarantee that their
application be accepted; nunber three, nake these
units available to these tenants at a rental rate
consistent with the original rent as of June 2026,
subj ect to proportional increase in rent for

I ncreased square footage; and nunber four, provide
rel ocation assistance out and back into the building
for the remai ning tenants.

Bef ore conditional approval, BZA nust
conpel the property owners to also cone into
conpliance with DC | aw. The owner of the property
did not submt a petition to the rent adm nistrator,
they were in violation of 42-3505 and failed to neet
requi rements on providing valid notice to vacate,
havi ng a business |icense, proper registration.

So lastly, if Eastern Avenue Hol di ngs does
cone into conpliance with DC | aw and BZA
subsequently chooses to consider this application,
we recommend that approval be nmade conditional upon
these four requirenents, consistent with Section
901.2, to prevent ongoi ng displacenent of |owincone
DC residents, and deni al unless these substanti al

requi renents are net. Thank you for your tine.
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BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so much.
Can you hear nme now? M/ -- ok, hello, can you hear
me? You hear nme now?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. | can hear you. |
can hear you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: (Ckay. Good. Sorry.
So thank you so nmuch for your sunmary. It was
great. It was clear, concise with specific
questions. Board nenbers, do you have any questions
for Ms. Jagannath, is that how you pronounce it?
Thank you.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  No, | don't have any
questions, and | believe your testinony has been put
into the record; is that correct?

M5. JAGANNATH: It has. And apol ogies for
only uploading it today.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. W appreciate
your testinony and your subm ssion. Thank you very
much.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. M. Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Thank you, Ms. Jagannat h.
| appreciate your testinony. And yes, the bar is
hi gher than just a plan. | agree with you. But if
| don't have a plan, | don't even know what the

process is. So that's why I'mstarting there, and
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then we can go fromthere. And you're right, the
bar is higher than that conprehensive plan. | get
it. So thank you for your testinony.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Ms. Lindsjo?

M5. LINDISO. Thank you for your testinony.

| don't have any questions. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. | think
with that 1'll go to the applicant, M. WIlians or
M. Medvene. Did you have any cross-exam nation
for this witness?

MR WLLIAMS: Nothing fromne, Madam
Chair.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Al right.

| -- that -- it's the list of wtnesses. Are there
-- Is there anyone el se that has been added? Any
organi zation? No? Ckay. So, this is the part.
So, having heard all of the witnesses, |I'd like to
ask the applicant if there's any rebuttal or closing
remar ks that you would Iike to present.

MR WLLIAMS: Yes, Madam Chair. | have a
few notes that |I've witten down. First, | just
want it to be known for the record, and | think the
record probably already states that these
appl i cati ons were del ayed about three nonths due to

the ECAs | acking a quorum That was unfortunate for
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t he devel oper. However, it gave us three additional
nmonths to work with the Deanwood Citizens

Associ ation and the ANC. | think Conm ssioner Hood
menti oned that he knows Comm ssioner Hol nes, who is
our ANC SMD Conmi ssioner. He's also a | eader at
Deanwood Citizens Association. He is a very strong
community advocate. He did not let us off the hook
easily. It took all of those last three nonths to
make sure that the ANC, the Executive Comm ttee, and
t he Deanwood Citizens Association were confortable
supporting these cases.

Deanwood Citizens Association is one of the
strongest civic groups | have ever worked with in
DC, and kudos to them because it is a tireless,
difficult job and volunteer work to do what they do.

They did their due diligence, and if you know t he
fol ks there, you know what |'mtal king about when |
say that these fol ks are amazi ng conmmunity servants.

They went and did their due diligence on these
questions that have cone up today. Al of them
And that is why you see them even though | know the
CBA is not part of the BZA's order, it is in the
record. It is evidence of these discussions
happeni ng and is evidence that the Deanwood Citizens

Associ ati on considered these matters and felt them
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resolved to the extent that they were willing to
support these projects.

So, | would say that if anyone speaks for
the community here, it is that civic association and
the ANC. And we are proud to get that support. W
wor ked very, very hard to get it. W went to
countl ess neetings at night and in the evenings. |
nmean, | don't know how many, M. Medvene, it was,
but it was at least 10 to 15 neetings that we went
to in order to make sure these folks felt
confortabl e supporting these cases.

And so, now what we need is we need to be
able to nove forward because, Mster -- these
bui l dings are falling apart, and they are life
safety problens at this point. So that is --
there's a concern about timng here. | understand
Comm ssi oner Hood wants sone additional informtion,
and that is conpletely reasonable. Qur concern is
havi ng al ready been del ayed three nonths, we want to
make sure we can -- we can get that to you
I mredi ately. What we don't want to have happen is
| ose anot her couple of nonths where there's
continued to be a life safety issue with these
bui | di ngs, and we can't get noved -- noving wth

getting these buildings repaired, dealing with this

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

201

-- the public safety issues that revol ve around
bui | dings that are in disrepair, which was anot her
huge concern of the community. These are things
that we have to deal wth as soon as we can. And
so, we're hopeful that if we can get that
i nformation satisfactory to Conm ssi oner Hood and
t he nenbers of BZA, that we can nove this forward to
get a decision to nove forward with these projects
so that there isn't an additional delay built into
t he process. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.
Wllianms. | cane off canera hoping |I'd have
bandw dth at this point. | believe that we've heard
everything for the public record at this tine.
Having said that, | think I1'd like to close the
public record, thank the w tnesses who showed and
the applicant, and nove forward into deliberation
about -- and discussion about this case. And if
after deliberation we're ready to vote, we'll notion
to do so, but Madam Secretary, can you advise how
woul d we --

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Before we go to the

Secretary, Madam Chair, | amnot ready to vote on
this case. | ' ve asked for sonme information, and |
heard M. WIIi ans. | know -- | don't know if it
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neets the schedule. | don't know if others agree
with nme, | nay be by nyself. And if we vote today,
| wll be voting against this for the nere fact of
what we need to go -- what | think we need to avail
ourselves to, at |least having the conplete record
and conpl ete information.

But | hear M. WIllianms, | heard M.
Medvene and ot hers, and al so heard fromthe -- those
in opposition. But | think for us to do our due
diligence, that we would need -- I'd like to see the
redevel opnent, the return of what's been proposed in
the process, and then | would -- because to ne
that's a start.

And yes, M. WIllianms, | do know M.

Hol mes, and |'m sure -- | know he's done his due
diligence. | have been know ng himfor sone years,
but | also have to do -- at least fromny
standpoint, | have to do ny due diligence. And

that's not checking behind them but that's just
showi ng that | have a confort |evel of what we're
going to do as a participating nenber today on the
Board of Zone Adj ustnent.

So | know that M. WIlIlians and them were
trying to get this done, and I'msorry it took three

nont hs, but things do happen. People have ot her
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things they want to do in |ife, and again, even
board nenbers, this is nore or |less a volunteer job
to a certain degree, but | think that the -- and
that's what the office is trying to do, trying to
catch up, especially on the BZA cases, and to help,
M. WIllianms, | don't have -- if they're able to
submt it and if it works out with Ms. Mehlert's
timng, | don't have a problem com ng back next week
to vote in a special neeting unless ny coll eagues
di sagree and it does not work on the tine.

If you all want to nove forward with it

today without getting the rel ocation, process, then

| wll be voting against it for that very reason.
So anyway, |'Il turn back to you, Madam Chair, but
that's -- as far as deliberation, I'mnot ready to
deli berate. | don't know what others feel, but |

just think that right nowit's inconplete.
BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:. So, | don't know if
" musing incorrect termnology, it seens |like there
Is a-- we need to discuss this a little nore.
Maybe there's a continuation of the hearing. |Is
that the appropriate next step since there's
addi tional information we could use, and so is it
not deliberation now, but it's actually asking for a

conti nuance, assum ng that the other board nenbers
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are aligned with that?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | certainly -- |
don't believe that we're ready to vote on it now |
think the question in my mnd is whether we close
the record subject to asking for certain material s,
certain evidence that has been referenced today, as
opposed to a -- | don't know, a continuing hearing.

Per haps Ms. Mehl ert can help us sort of navigate
t hose options, and we can deci de what is nost
appropriate in this case.

M5. MEHLERT: [|f the Board still wants
addi tional information fromthe applicant, you'll
al so want to give an opportunity to the ANCto
respond as a party. They get seven days to respond
to that material. And typically, it's recommended
to just -- to keep the record open, have a conti nued
hearing if there's additional information so that
you have the ability to ask questions at the next
heari ng about the information. O sorry, did | keep
you from tal ki ng?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  For schedul i ng
pur poses, if we went down that path, what kind of
schedul e could we be | ooking at as far as how soon
we coul d have a hearing?

M5. MEHLERT: Well, if the applicant can
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submt their request for information pretty quickly,
say by tonorrow or Friday, | don't know which one
woul d work best, but then we could give the ANC
until a week to respond, and then if possible, the
soonest to cone back would be on June 17th. | don't
know if that's too tight of a tineline.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Well, we can
certainly ask the applicant if that tineline works
for them Mdam Chair, did you -- do you have a
sense of kind of where you'd like it to go, and then
| will also say that I1'd like to talk a little bit
nore about what we want themto submt before we
concl ude.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Can we hear
fromyou, M. WIlIlians, or soneone fromthe
appl i cant about the tinme you'd |like to submt the
requested i nformation?

MR WLLIAMS: Yes, yes, Madam Chair, and |
will just note we al so have two nore Eastern Ave,.
cases next Wednesday. And these are all obviously
going to be, | think, simlarly considered. W also
have anot her one right after this one. And so, |
think the -- I"'mjust trying to think in terns of

| ogi stics about this, because ny suspicion, | expect
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that the sane information is going to be relevant to
t hose cases as well next week.

| mean, we could submt today if we needed
to. | nean, we can get everything to the record as
soon as possible. I'mnot sure to what extent the
ANC is still to have, and the ANC has al ready
submtted a letter of support on record. So, |
don't know -- | don't recall, but | feel |ike we've
done this before where we've closed the record,
per haps we' ve cl osed the record except with the --
with one itemthat's requested. But nmaybe |'m
m srenmenbering that we didn't have to keep the
public hearing open if it was just to -- for the
recei pt of one mssing docunent. | know in the past
we've i ke done revised plans that we had to submt
by a decisional neeting or sonething |ike that. |
know this is a little different fromthat.

M5. MEHLERT: It's up to the Board to waive
any of the provisions in Subtitle |I. So, if you
woul d Ii ke to waive the response period, things |ike
that, that's at the Board's purview.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: So what | woul d suggest,
Madam Chair, is we get the information asked for
unl ess ny col | eagues ask for nore things. | know

the Vice Chair nentioned he wanted to tal k sone nore
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about it, but I know what | need right nowis the
rel ocation process. And also, we can have the

rel ocation process, that's what | want. Then, we
can also | eave the record open for the ANC response.
And M. WIllianms, | think we always do that out of
what we should do, not just close it once you send
it in, even though | know that Conm ssioner Hol nes
and them have probably went over this 100 ti nes.

But we have to again do our due diligence and | et
him-- give himan opportunity to respond. And once
they respond, then | will probably pretty nmuch be
ready to deli berate.

Now, whet her stays an open hearing or not,
we can decide at that tinme for the sinple reason
that I think the subm ssion should suffice, and if
not, then we can always go back and say we want to
have a limted scope hearing. There are a nunber of
ways to finagle it, we don't want to spend three
hours tal king about how to nove forward. Then we
coul d have used that for our other cases. But
anyway, and then Ms. Mehlert will give us the
schedule of that. That's the way | see it, but I'm
only one vote, so | guess we'll hear from ot hers.
"Il turn it back to you, Madam Chair. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU: kay. | like that --
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and it seens that M. WIllians could get docunents
quickly. So at this point, it |ooks |ike the
schedule Ms. Mehlert sent may be doable, but | want
to go back to M. Coldstein to hear what additional
items he is interested in, as well.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Sure. Thank you.
And this feels like a lifetime ago, but | renenber
t he HVAC di scussion. And | continue to wonder
whet her the applicant can take another |ook at it
and | ook at the site plan and see if there's a newer
solution in your mnd that may thread the needl e
bet ween not adversely affecting any nei ghboring
property, yet providing additional confort with --
for future tenants and to help alleviate our concern
about that. So I would like to ask the applicant to
go back, take another look, if it has to be this,
then you can explain that it has to be this again.
But | would prefer that maybe there's another option
to consider. Thank you.

MR WLLIAMS: M. CGoldstein, we will do
that and | think we've already got a solution. So,
we'll include that in the subm ssion.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:. Thank you. So, Ms.

Mehl ert, with that, | believe we're looking to
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continue this hearing wwth a request for additional
information and to hopefully be able to schedul e the
next hearing on June 17th. Can you gui de us through
this process, please?

M5. MEHLERT: Yes, so to clarify, would you
-- does the Board prefer Comm ssioner Hood's
conmments to close the record except for the
requested filings and response from ANC s deci si on,
or would you like to keep the hearing and record
open and schedul e for a continued hearing?

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. | would like to keep
the record open. Are there others who would like to
weigh in on that?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. -- My viewis that it
should really be a limted scope hearing and that
it's not rehash, but really focus on these issues
for determnation. That would be ny view of it. |
do want to make sure one of our board nenbers
think may not be there on June 17th, and | just want
to make sure that that -- and Conm ssioner Hood, |
don't know what your availability is that day, so |
want to nmake sure that scheduling-w se this nmakes
sense.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yeah, | would be able to

fit whatever tine. | just -- | always try to avoid
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three or four zoning conm ssioners being on one

case. That's the way we always have done it. But

what ever this case conmes back, I'll be back with it.
So thank you for your consideration, Vice Chair.

Appreciate it.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU. | think there's a
concern about Ms. Lindsjo, as well.

MEMBER LI NDSJO Yes, | wll be not
avai |l abl e on the 17th.

ZC CHAI R HOOD: Ckay, okay.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Yeah, so in that
case, | guess we have two options. W can proceed,
or we can see if there's a different date that m ght
be nore agreeabl e.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: But here's the situation.
Ms. Lindsjo, | know you want to be here, but if it
gets to a point that you have to do a -- and | know
you may have sone ot her obligations that may | ast a
little while, but if it gets to a point, you nay be
able to do a absentee ballot. Wuld you be anenabl e
to doing that, or do you want to be here for the
di scussi on?

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Yeah, that's fine. | can
do that.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: kay. So that'll solve
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that problem So whatever day we cone up with --

and that's for all of us, if | won't be out, | wll
do absentee ball ot. | should be able to do one, but
['I] be here.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. Ckay. M. Mehlert,
you -- so what's the next thing | do here?

M5. MEHLERT: So, just to go back in terns
of the requested information, so I'll do a quick
tineline. So fromthe applicant to by, we could say
tonorrow i f that works for the applicant's
I nformati on about the relocation plan and the HVAC
| ocation. And then, we would give the ANC until
Thur sday, June 11lth for any response. And then this
woul d go on the schedule for continued hearing on
June 17th. | will note, if a board nenber isn't
able to participate in the continued hearing and
there is a decision that day, then they wouldn't be
able to submt an absentee for that decision if it
Is a continued hearing just because of the decision
meet i ng.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yeah, | thought we was
doing a -- Madam Chair, | don't -- | thought -- so
you all are doing a continued hearing. You're
right, the absentee vote wouldn't matter. But

typically, sonething when we're asking for
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additional information to nove things al ong, we
woul d ask for the -- what the information required.
W would -- and if we needed one, then we could go
back and say we'll have a |imted scope hearing.
It's done that way as opposed to -- but either way,
you know, it doesn't matter. | just -- | know we're
relatively new, so |l will -- however you all want to
doit, I will work around it.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU: So -- all right. W -
- it looks like that --

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:.  Looks |ike we may
have | ost her tenporarily. | think she was going to
say -- oh, oh, there you go. |'msorry.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. | think I'm back. No,
["msorry. M internet is crazy. Wuat | was -- it
| ooks Ii ke we m ght be able to get everybody on the
24th. Is that -- and it would just be better to
continue it until the 24th. That the docunents
continue to be submt tonorrow, you know, as soon as
possi ble. You know, the two days that |'ve been
doing this, there's been |ong stretches in between
t hi ngs and submission is kind of late. So, let's
get those docunents in and then let's get the
conti nuous schedul ed for the 24th.

MR. WLLIAVMS: Madam Chair, |'m not
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avai | abl e on the 24th unfortunately.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Okay. All right. All
right, Ms. Mehlert, what do we do now?

M5. MEHLERT: It's up to you. |If Board
Menber Lindsjo feels strongly about participating,
then you can push it to -- well, | don't think she's
actually available on July first, either. Correct,
yeah. So, you could do a decision on the 17th, and
I f you feel that there isn't enough information or
you have questions, as Chairman Hood said, you could
just schedule for a future day for a limted scope
hearing when all the board nenbers can participate
in that, but it's up to you

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. You had stated that on
the 17th, to clarify, Mss -- that a absentee vote
could not be done. Can you clarify the neaning of
t hat one?

M5. MEHLERT: So, if you had a continued
hearing on the 17th, then a board nenber who wasn't
present for that hearing would not be able to submt
an absentee ballot. However, if -- for a decision
based on what's in the record and testinony that's
occurred, and the record is otherw se cl osed, the
board nenber could submt an absentee ballot with

their vote. It's up to you
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VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Ch, if it's all
right, | think it would nake sense just to do a
decision on the 17th. And we've asked for specific
pi eces of information, it would allow the absentee
vote, as well. And it's alittle bit incunbent on
the applicant to provide us wth the information
that we're looking for, and if for some reason it
doesn't seemlike it's been fulfilled, we would then
have a limted scope hearing as Chairman Hood -- |'m
sorry, Comm ssioner Hood had suggested. That woul d
be ny suggestion to keep this noving. And hopefully
the filings will be sufficient for us to cone to a
final resolution.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Let's see, thank you.
Thank -- I'"min and out again.

MR. MEDVENE: Question, if | mght ask the
Board, out of procedurally, if we have two nore
cases next week, and as M. WIllians noted in his
earlier comments, there's going to be simlar
coments and questions regarding the plan as this
has all been treated as one project, if we get this
docunentation in the next 24 hours -- should be |ess
than that, is there any reason why we woul dn't be
abl e to address everything next week when everyone's

present, you'll have had the information for a week
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roughly, and as Zach, also, noted, we have the ANC
| etters of support, so just out of procedural
curiosity, because ny concern is as |'m seeing,
we're trying to shuffle up calendars and trying to
juggle a | ot of people and spinning plates as sone
m ght say, and it's hard to | and everything all at
once, and we can't afford to have this continue to
slip. And next thing you know, and it's in July,
and then if sonmething comes up then, then everyone's
recessed to August and so on and so forth. So, we
can get the information within 24 hours. So | guess
the question is, we just want to nake sure that this
doesn't becone a slippery slope where it keeps
slipping. So the hope would be that --

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Thank you,
M. Medvene. | think I'"m nmaking the flow even worse
by having this inconsistent connection. But | agree
with M. CGoldstein's recoomendation. It seens to be
In keeping with getting the information next week,
providing for the public notice process, and -- |
mean getting the information within 24 hours,
providing the public notice required, and then
nmeeting the next -- which would be the 17th. And
woul d al so provide for the absentee vote since it

woul d be based on a decision neeting. And so, we
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woul d nmake a decision in that neeting on the
information that has been presented. That seens

| i ke the best-case scenario. And so with that, M.
Mehl ert, can we proceed to -- can you speak to the
record of how this process wll work?

M5. MEHLERT: So, just to repeat, so the
appl i cant subm ssions are due by tonorrow, June 4th.

Any response fromthe ANC i s due June 11th. And
then, the Board will return for a decision at its
public nmeeting on June 17th. And then with that,
you can close the record and the hearing except for
t he requested information.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. So | would
now like to close the record. | just -- | want to
make sure the applicant doesn't have anything el se
they want to say before we do that because |'ve been
going in and out, but | feel like this is a good way
to proceed. So, hearing nothing here, we wll --
uh-huh. Yeah.

So, we'll proceed wth closing the record
and noving to hearing for this application. And
t hat decision neeting will include information that
w il be submtted tonorrow wth tenant rel ocation
and HVAC pl acenent details, and wll also include

provi ding ANC notification and hopefully getting
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sone responses fromthemin tinme, and then neeting

again on June 17th to nake the deci sion.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | think that's a
good recitation of the timng. |f we have
concluded, | would like to request a short break, if

possible, if there's nothing el se to conclude the
case.

BZA CHAIR POURCIAU: | would too. Is that
-- do you have anything to conclude, M. Mehlert?

M5. MEHLERT: No, that's all. The
W t nesses can be excused.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Thank you. So
can we take about a 15-m nute break, return at 3:45?

ZC CHAI R HOOD: kay.

M5. MEHLERT: WMadam Chair, | was going to
suggest maybe going in and out also, |ike com ng
back to the Wbex and seeing if that hel ps your
connecti on.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. So maybe | should --

yeah, log off and cone back in. | appreciate that.
(kay. Thank you so rmuch. 1'll see you all at
3: 40.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went
off the record and resuned follow ng a brief

recess.)
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M5. MEHLERT: Yes. So the Board is back
froma quick break and returning to its hearing
session. Next case is Application Nunmber 21420,
Eastern Avenue Holdings I1l, LLC. It's a self-
certified application pursuant to Subtitle X
Section 901.2 for a special exception under Subtitle
U Section 421 to allow a new residenti al
devel opnent. This project is the consolidation of
two existing apartnent houses, each in a three-story
detached building wwth 29 units total, wth a three-
story addition to create 18 new units for 47 units
total .

Located in the RA-1 zone at 1106 and 1112
Eastern Avenue Northeast, Parc 5201, Lots 800 and
801, there are prelimnary matters. The appli cant
has filed a notion to waive filing deadline to
submt revised architectural plans and Exhi bits 2481
and 2482.

Also simlar to the previous case, there
are two letters not yet in the record that were
filed late, a letter of opposition from Jahnavi
Jagannath and the Deanwood Citizens Association. So
just let us know if staff should enter those into
the record.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Yes, please enter
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those in. M. WIlIlians, are you prepared to begin
the -- your case for your application?

MR WLLIAMS: Yes, Madam Chair, |'mready.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. (Ckay. Pl ease proceed.
Thank you.

MR WLLIAMS: And | will just note for the
Board that unfortunately | have a very hard stop at
4:00 p.m, but that should give ne tine to do the
presentation and then the applicant, M. Mdvene and
Ms. Petyak, who you all know well now, will be able
to be on to the extent that there are additional
di scussions. M. Young, can we pull up that
presentation? Geat, thank you.

For the record, ny nane is Zach WIIi ans.
I"ma land use attorney with Venable, representing
the applicant in this case, 1106 to 1112 Eastern
Avenue Northeast. Next slide, please.

This slide, which is the sane slide we saw
In the previous application, represents the eastern
projects that we've di scussed previously that have
been collectively reviewed and wll be collectively
devel oped. 1106 to 1112 Eastern Ave Northeast is
the largest of the four sites. It involves
consolidation of two separate |ots, both of which

have two separate apartnment houses on them now
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today. Next slide, please.

Sane slide we | ooked at previously for 1106
to 1112, the case we're considering today, right
now. These two |ots have two apartment houses wth
a conbined 29 units. As part of this application,
we're seeking to add 18 units and conbine into a
singl e apartnent house. Next slide, please.

Wal ki ng through, if we can continue to nove
forward, this is 1342 Eastern, next slide.

1218 Eastern, next slide again.

1206, one nore, thank you, M. Young. And

1106 to 1112, which is the focus of this case.
These slides show the existing conditions of these
three-story apartnment homes as they currently exist
today. This is the front view from Eastern Avenue
Nort heast. Next slide, please.

And this is the rear view of those
apartment houses. Next slide.

Again, just to reorient everyone, this is
the RA-1 Zone. This -- these properties are the
sout hernnost of the four Eastern Ave sites that
we'l |l be discussing as part of these four projects.

Next slide, please.
This is a proposed project, whichis to

conbi ne the two existing apartnment houses into a

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N T N I T S R N I R R T e o
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N P O

221
singl e house -- a single apartment house, | should
say, and in so doing, renovate all of the interior
of the existing units, adding units as well in the
m ddl e of the buildings in the new conbi ned buil di ng
across two consolidated lots. This slide shows
sonet hing that we discussed in the |ast case, which
Is that this building also wll have a solar array
on the roof. Next slide, please.

So the project involved consolidation of
two lots for a total |and area of just under 29, 000
square feet. W'I|l be connecting two existing
apartnment houses, again with 29 units, adding 18
units for a total of 47. That will include five |IZ
units. We'll be raising the roof by |ess than two
feet. 15 parking spaces will be provided, which
neets the zoning requirenents and all the other work
and construction proposed is permtted by Ray in the
RA-1 zone. It does not require further zoning
relief. Next slide, please.

Here's sone el evations, renderings of these
projects, what they may | ook |ike once they're
conpl eted, just to give you a sense of how the
project will look as the two existing apartnent
houses are conbined in the mddle there. You can

see the new part on the right-hand side that area in
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the mddle is the new building. That'll be

conmbi ning the two existing buildings. Next slide,

pl ease.

The relief requested is to add additi onal

units to existing apartnent houses in the RA-1 zone.
Al'l other work, as | nentioned, is by right
permtted in the RA-1 zone without further relief.
Next slide, please.

Wal ki ng t hrough the special exception
standards for special exception relief pursuant to
Subtitle U 421, and Subtitle X, Section 901.2, the
first general standard is that the relief nust be in
harnony with the general purpose and intent of the
zoning regulations. Here, like with the other
Eastern Avenue projects, this is -- property is
zoned RA-1, which is a zone that's intended for this
type of noderate to | ow density devel opnent,

i ncluding these types of lowrise apartnents. So
the project is in harnony with -- with the -- the
intent of the RA-1 zone. The project as | also
nmentioned will neet all the devel opnent standards of
that RA-1 zone. Next slide, please.

The next general standard is that the
relief should not adversely affect nei ghboring

property. And typically, we look at light, air, and
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privacy when considering this elenment. As |
mentioned, height will only change by several feet.
The lots will be consolidated and the two buil di ngs
wi |l be connected, so all of the new construction
wi || be happeni ng between these two existing
properties rather than on the sides. The applicant
again, wll be renovating all of these units in
t hese buil dings and bringing these buildings up to
current standards, and inproving the |iving
conditions, the public safety, other issues that
have unfortunately becone an issue in this area.
Many of the properties surrounding the site are al so
i nproved with apartnent and nultifam |y buildings
just |like these, and these properties in particul ar
are | ocated about a half mle fromthe Deanwood
Metro Station. So still wal kable, still appropriate
to have this type of density and lowrise
residential apartnent living in this area. Next
slide, please.

The applicant has received both community
and O fice of Planning support for the project. As
we di scussed in the |ast case, we net with the ANC
7C as well as the Deanwood Citizens Associ ation on
mul ti pl e occasi ons and received support from both.

Evi dence of that support is in the record. Wth
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respect to the Deanwood Citizens Association, there
Is a comunity benefits agreenent that was entered
into. And while that's obviously not part of the
BZA's decision, it is in the record, the evidence of
t hose di scussions and neetings between the civic
associ ation and the applicant team

Finally, the Ofice of Planning reconmends
approval of the application. Thank you very nuch
for your consideration.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.
Wlliams. |1'd like to open it up for questions from
the board nenbers. And first I'd like to ask, do
you -- do we feel that the -- -- are there new
guestions in addition to the types of questions we
asked in the previous case? So could we start with
that, M. GColdstein, if there are questions that
woul d be | ayered on top of the ones we asked in the
| ast case. | think maybe what | should do is kind
of summarize what those were. They were around
tenant relocation and HVAC pl acenent. And naybe
"1l just ask this question to start out with is,
should -- as a -- should we assune that it's a --
okay for us to assune that tenant relocation and
HVAC i ssues may have simlar concerns in this

application? M. Wllianms, | think that's for you.
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MR. WLLIAVS: |'mnot sure about the HVAC
concerns, but the tenant relocation | assume is
going to be the sane issues that we di scussed

previ ously.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU: Ckay. Al right. M.

Gol dstein you want to start with any additional
questi ons?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. | -- |
don't think -- I -- 1 think you sunmari zed sone of
the things | was going to ask, and I'm going to ask
the Ofice of Planning about the HVAC as well, if
they made a determnation that it was not worth
conditioning in their report. It appears they did
not, so maybe there aren't the sane concerns in this
particul ar application. They did raise the question
of the condition of |andscaping and trash placenent,
which | asked the Ofice of Planning in the previous
case, and they declined to say that it needed a
condition. In this case, the Ofice of Planning has
recommended support subject to conditioning it on
t he | andscaping, site plan, storage -- trash storage
| ocation and the like. 1'd |ike the applicant to
address how they view the condition that's being
recommended by the O fice of Planning.

MR WLLIAMS: So, | actually agree with

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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what O fice of Planning said in the | ast case, which
Is that the plans are -- the Board' s decision is
subject to the plans anyway. And that is a typical
condition of the Board's approval, and the | andscape
plan is part of the plan submtted by the applicant.
Soinmnm view, that's already a condition of the

Board's approval, so there's no issue with it in ny

eye.
VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. Well, thank

you. |I'm-- I'mgoing to also ask the O fice of

Planning to address that. | don't -- oh, there is

one additional itemthat perhaps we shoul d have | ed
off with, thinking about it now. There's a question
of notice. And this is related to ny understandi ng
that notice was sent -- notice gets determ ned the

| east by distance froma particular lot. And ny
understanding is that notice was based on one of the
two lots in this developnent. | can't recall which
of the two it was, and that there's a potential that
the radius did not extend quite as far since both

| ots were not used to determ ne the distance for
notice requirenents. First, M. Wllians, 1'd |like
to ask if you were aware of this issue, and if not,
you know, what -- whether you are or aren't, you

know, could you describe how notice was given and
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what the level of notice is in the comunity?

MR. WLLIAMS: Yes, | can. And that would
surprise ne if that was the case because the notice
Is typically determ ned by the radius map that we
received fromOIR  And so, I'mlooking in the
record right now and --

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | believe Exhibit 6
m ght be the best one to review for this issue.

MR WLLIAMS: Ckay. | see that. So we
can take a look at this. And | have to study -- |
have to see what actual notice went out because
Exhibit 6 is not going to necessarily reflect the
actual notices.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Ckay.

MR WLLIAMS: What happens is we send a
list of mailing labels to the Ofice of Planning
after we -- Ofice of Zoning actually, after we file
the application, and that's the notice list that
goes out.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Okay. So, | think
one outcone is that you'll take a |look at it and
maybe that's information or a request that we're
going to return to as part of this hearing. Wuld
you mind just talking to notice nore generally and

comruni ty awar eness and nei ghbor awar eness of notice
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of this project?

MR WLLIAMS: | will speak to that and
unfortunately, I'mgoing to junp off right after
this. | have a very hard stop related to childcare.

So, as we discussed in the prior case, we've net
with ANC-7C on nul ti ple occasions, as well as the
Deanwood Citizens Association. Qur SMD, M. Hol nes
-- Conm ssioner Holnes -- Antoine Holnes is soneone
we' ve been in contact with since we filed the
application last fall, and he has schedul ed nmultiple
nmeetings wth his executive conmttee as well as his
community and ANC. So we've had nmany community
neeti ngs and engagenent opportunities as well as the
public notice that has been posted on the site and
reflecting in the affidavits that we have filed to
the record.

MR. MEDVENE: Furthernore, it's worth
noting that we also had teans that went out and
pol |l ed and surveyed | ocal residents and knocked --
door knocked on buil dings, we also have ACM the
vendor that we've referenced, they have canvassed as
well. As far as we know, this project has been very
broadcast -- very nuch broadcasted out there. W' ve
only heard of one incident to date, which actually

we just heard, again, for the second tinme in the
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| ast hearing, which is M. Milay (phonetic) who we
found out was because he's not a DC resident.

Everyone else is very acutely aware of this
project and there has been an incredi ble anount of
community engagenent, sone nore productive than
ot hers, but comunity engagenent nonet hel ess as
we' ve wor ked towards nmaking sure that everyone is
kept apprised of the situation and what the end
goal s are.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  And in that [|ight
al so, the close -- the closely proxi mate nei ghbors
you woul d suspect have received notice of this
proj ect?

MR. MEDVENE: W have certified mail
recei pts for everyone within the 200-foot radius.
As Zach had noted, if we go in and check to see
whi chever address between 1106 versus 1112, there
m ght be a 50-foot difference in whatever direction
you go, but if -- hypothetically if 1106 was used
and 1112 wasn't, it shouldn't really nake a
di f ference because 1206 -- the notice was sent out,
1218 was noticed, and 13 -- this project has had
such a large swath of coverage down that bl ock and
In such a close proximty that, again, as |

mentioned, there is beyond a shadow of a doubt
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certainty that notice has gone out there.

And we've had, to date, six different
meetings wth the ANC and | ocal community agenci es,
civic associations, et cetera, with very, very
active public engagenent at each hearing on top of
the -- the boots on the ground interaction. That
and resources that have been deployed for it.

MR. PETYAK: Excuse nme, if | may add,
| ooking at the exhibits posted on the case, Exhibits
Number 6 and Nunber 7 are both two separate radius
maps with each radius map carrying different nanes
as it relates to the proximty. So, | believe based
off of this, if the mailing receipts were sent based
off of those two area maps, then it |ooks |ike all
notification would be -- would have been submtted.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. Wich is
the other alternate area map that you're
referencing? |'msorry, you said Exhibit 7, but I
don't --

MR. PETYAK: Exhibit 6 and 7 are posted on
the DC OZ -- I'msorry. That's interesting. |If you
pull up the PDF fromthe exhibits, so if you go to
t he exhibit nunbers, they're both listed as 6. They
bot h appear the sanme, but if you then select them

off of the OZ file, that they reflect both
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VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. | may not be
seei ng what you're seeing, | apologize. Not to
di scount it, | just can't -- | can't seemto
replicate it in ny image of the screen. | do want

to ask other board nenbers if they have any

questions about notice and feel confortable

proceedi ng ahead, that there is sufficient notice

out there, but also subject to getting potentially
more information if needed.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: M. Vice Chair, 1'll go
right ahead. M. -- how do you pronounce your | ast

nane, |'msorry, Petyak?

231

MR. PETYAK: It's spelled |like you' ve got a

pet yak.
ZC CHAIR HOOD: Petyak. Ckay. He's

exactly right. It does show the map cone from both

sides of the property. So I think fromwhat | see,

and it's actually listed, one is two pages and o
Is three pages. And it's show ng that they cone
fromboth sides, so they |ook |ike they' ve done
their due diligence as far as notice, from what
see.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Well, that'd be

great if that is the case. | can't seemto
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replicate it on ny end, but I -- I'mglad M. Hood
that you're able to observe that.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you, M.

Gol dstein. Do you have any nore questions?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. M last question is
there was a revision in the plans that | think was
it alate filing, but could you just describe what
ki nd of changes were made in the plans and why the
filing occurred when it did?

MR. PETYAK: Yeah, because of the delay,
I"mtrying to quickly ascertain what the changes
were. | believe some of those changes is as rel ated
to the wood fence around the trash area that was
added as part of the process. And then --

MR. MEDVENE: Here's sone feedback fromthe
ANC and the Deanwood Civic Association.

MR. PETYAK: Thanks, Matt.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  I'msorry, just the
trash enclosing fence, is that correct?

MR. MEDVENE: And | believe OP requested
sonme additional screening -- a foliage screening,
and that one also, | think we relocated a nunber of
t he mechani cal units and put screening around those
units as well via | andscaping.

MR. PETYAK: That is correct, M.
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Gol dstein. Your comment previously where they were
all in one grouping, Ofice of Planning asked us to
break into the three areas.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. And so there
was no --

MR. PETYAK: [I'msorry, as for the timng,
|'mnot certain, as M. WIllians was the one
handl i ng the subm ssions of the exhibits.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. So it does
not sound |ike there was any substantial change to
previously revi ewed pl ans?

MR PETYAK: That is correct.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. | don't
have any nore questions.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Ms. Lindsjo, do you
have any questions for the applicant?

MEMBER LI NDSJO  Yes, if they could explain
alittle bit why they chose to infill green space.
And so that's taking away green space, and
potentially with the new design, it's just a nuch
| arger building, and you're losing -- residents
woul d 1 ose light fromsides of buildings that they
used to have with the two separate buil dings, and so
I f you could address why that was, if there was |ike

ever thinking about like a courtyard in the mddle
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of such a large building that you' re now nmeki ng, and

t hen al so addressi ng how you're going to protect --

| think there's heritage trees and special trees on
the property too, ensuring those are going to be

pr ot ect ed.

MR. PETYAK: Thank you. Yes. Onh, go
ahead, Matt.

MR. MEDVENE: Well, you want to start first
and | can chine in and fill in, sir.

MR PETYAK: Sure. So, currently, the
existing site has a drive |lane for the northernnost
property, which is, | believe, 1112, it is. And
then there's a parking | ot between the buildings for
1106, the sout hernnost property.

So what we tried to do was to nake an
addition to connect those two, utilizing those drive
areas to have access off of the alley to unify
access. So, taking circulation away from Eastern
Avenue by infilling the curb cut and providing it in
off of the alley for the rear.

As for taking away units, the building was
reformatted internally in terns of the unit
arrangenent inside of the building once we conbi ned
the two, so that the famly-sized units, three-

bedroomunits, could maintain -- although in this
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case -- I'msorry, this is the one building that has
a few smaller units, but all units then would be
able to have the required Departnent of Building or
the -- the D.C. Building Code requirenents of |ight
and air for those units.

As for planning arrangenents associ ated
bet ween the two, we at one point considered
potentially increasing the height of the buildings,
but as you all know, or may or may not know, when
you start to add nore height, there are issues with
the building code of this type of construction as it
relates to egress and fire and life safety
regul ati ons, so we went for connecting the two with
t hat essentially connector piece.

MR. MEDVENE: And enphasi ze -- piggybacki ng
off that, again enphasizing that the bulk of the
space that we are taking is not green spaces. Paved
| nper meabl e areas of driveways and parking, and
additionally, as to your comrent or question
regarding the protection of the trees, we have
engaged a DC-certified arborist that has put
together a tree protection plan. W have been
working wwth the UFD and their certified arborists
and ensuring that the adequate necessary tree

protections, both in preventative neasures as well
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as operational neasures are taken during the course
of the construction.

We are not taking down any heritage trees.

They're all being protected and preserved and
nmonitored by |licensed artists or arborists during
the construction process. And that goes for all the
projects. As | know there was a past comrent
regardi ng concerns about trees. W have tree
protection plans and a licensed arborist is handling
all of the buildings, and we are taking -- | don't
believe there's -- there's zero heritage trees being
renoved, and | believe there's |less than four or
five pest trees that are being taken down across all
four lots. But as it pertains to this one, there
are none.

MR. PETYAK: And -- and for the record,
pest trees are trees that are non-indigenous to this
area as well, or damaged or dying trees that the
arborist allows construction to renove.

CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. Ms. Lindsjo,
do you have any ot her questions?

M5. LINDSJO No, that's it. Thank you.

CHAIR POURCIAU. Al right. M. Hood, did
you have any questions on this one?

COW SSI ONER HOOD:  No, | don't have any

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N T N I T S R N I R R T e o
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N P O

237

questions. Thank you.
CHAI R POURCI AU:  You're wel cone. Ckay.
Vell, why don't we open it up for -- to hear the

recomrendations fromthe Ofice of Planning. |Is
Ofice of Planning here? |Is the -- M. Jurkovic?
Thank you.

MR JURKOVI C. Yeah. Good afternoon, Madam
Chair, and greetings to you and other new board
menbers today. M nane is Mchael Jurkovic. |'m
devel opnment review specialist with the Ofice of
Pl anning. OP reconmends approval of the applicant's
requested U421 special exception relief for a new
residential developnent in the RA-1 zone with a
total of 47 dwelling units. W otherw se stand on
the record of our report, and |'mhere to answer any
questions. Thank you.

CHAIR POURCI AU: Al right. M. Goldstein,
| think you had sone foll owup questions, | guess |
have a question. The -- on the -- we saw a previ ous
case on this block, and there were questions about
where the HVAC units were presented in that case.

Are there any questions about the HVAC units in this
-- in this application?
MR. JURKOVIC. There were when we initially

reviewed the filing. But as you can see in the
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first plan submttals, the now since superseded
exhibit that the original proposal did have a
significant nunber of HVAC units directly adjacent
to the property to the north. And in our

di scussions and the coments we gave the applicant,
that was one of themthat they addressed. And the
current proposal does spread out those HVAC units so
that they are not as close in proximty to the

nei ghboring properties.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: If | can -- if | can
follow up, so in the previous case, the Ofice of
Pl anning did not condition the approval on the
| andscape plan or the location of trash. |Is there a
-- a reason that you are instead recommendi ng t hat
condition in this case?

MR. JURKOVIC. Yeah, it -- it was nore so
on the cautionary side as -- as you can see the
record has several different plans that were
superseded. And in addition to that, our report
does actually reference the original superseded
pl ans since there were sone pages that did not nake
it intoto the latest submttal. So it was nore out
of caution both for the Board' s benefit and others
who may read our report that when we reviewed the

record we did reviewit in the whole, and the nost
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recent submtted plans are the ones that are under
your review. But like | said, it's generally
cautionary and we -- we are not hard set on that --
on that condition.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: | -- | think | asked
this also in the previous case. There were no
reports fromGOSSI or DPR in the record, which are
agencies that are called out for consultation in U
421. But saying that, based on your analysis, you
still -- still feel confortable that the rel evant
criteria were satisfied per U-421; is that correct?

MR. JURKOVIC. Correct. And stand on the
anal ysis provided in our report in regards to those
sections.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. | don't
have any ot her questions.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  Thank you, M. Col dstein.

M. Hood, did you have any questions?

COWM SSI ONER HOOD:  No, | don't have any
questions. Thank you, M. Jurkovic.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  Thank you. Ms. Lindsjo,
we heard your question. That's correct. | think
that m ght be all the questions we have for you now.

["ll go to others who are on about this case. In

the | ast case we had a | ot of questions in the end,
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sonme that went back to Planning again, so M.

Jur kovic, please stay on so that if we need you over
here. Are there any other governnment w tnesses that
are online to speak? | don't -- okay, so it |ooks

|l i ke no governnent wi tnesses. The ANC -- does not

| ook I'i ke the ANC has signed up to speak. Parties

i n support, there doesn't seemto be.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: Looks like -- oh,
there you are again. | -- 1 think we may have | ost
you for a nmonent.

CHAI R POURCI AU: Can you hear ne?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Yes, | can hear you
NOW.

CHAI R POURCI AU: Can you hear ne now?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Yeah.

CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. | was calling up
Keith Ward to speak. He signed up to speak in
opposi tion.

MR WARD: Yes, M. Keith Ward is here.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  All right.

MR. WARD: Can you hear -- how are you
doi ng?

CHAI R POURCI AU. Yes, | can. Good, how are
you?

MR WARD: All right. |I'mfine today.
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Thank you.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  You have --

MR. WARD: Thank you for hearing ny
opposition against this devel opnent project. |[|'ve
been living in this apartnent building for -- since
1970. This conpany is Eastern Avenue Hol di ngs,
which | amvery upset the way they did their

agreenment with us -- the situation. They cane in as
the other tenant owner Ms. Phillips said, of --
they're holding of a -- give ne a bag on the door, a

little neeting in the parking |ot, and say, heck,

oh, we're going to renovate the place and we're
going to renovate and you get 120 days to get out
the whole situation. Since then, |I've been here
since |like six or seven nonths, they haven't done
nothing to the building. Yes, the problemis
they're going to put solar panels on the roof.
That's the only way the roof is going to get fixed,
or they're putting solar panels on the roof. These
guys really do not care about the tenants in the
buil ding. Yes, they offered $10, 000, but six nonths
|ater -- a couple of nonths later, I'msorry, after
that, they offer was from $10, 000 down to $5, 000 and
didn't give no guarantee that you can nove back into

the building. | see they are railroading us, the
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peopl e, and the DC governnent at the sane tine when
they filed for the letter of term nation because
they didn't file it properly |ike before when going
downtown to file it. They put down the DC nunber to
file in the proper paperwork and the no zoni ng, but
It does state in the paperwork, if you do nove a
tenant out at a certain rent, when you nove back in,
they got to cone back in at that sane price
I ncrease, no nore, no less. That's why they want to
get the people out of the door as soon as possible,
because they don't want to neke people cone back in
who's paying lowincone rent at the price that they
poi nt want to get into.

| can see developing the city is a good
I dea, but | cannot see developing the city to really
put tenants who are willing to pay rent, who are
retired, who got the right to pay rent, and to kick
themout. You tal k about green space? Yeah, | live
between this building. There is a green space,
there's a parking lot and it's an acre of green
space and there's three lots. So they're going to
take that out and put a building in between there,
and that green space is being filled up with a
buil di ng, which it does not need to be as necessary.

| ook at the situation. They let 1106 to go down
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because they did not want to go over and do any
mai nt enance. They haven't done any nmi ntenance to
the whole building since |I've been here. They cane
inearly in the norning, they started -- any vacant
property, they get a sl edgehamer and start busting
the doors in. Hello? Yeah, so they started to
busting the doors in say, 9 o' clock in the norning,
|"'mtrying to sleep. And this is Scope. And when
we try to talk to them they say, oh, talk to the
owner. Who is the owner? Eastern Holding. kay,
what's his nunber? You go find it on the website.
Wait a mnute, so | pay you rent but you
cannot communi cate ne to who's the owner of the
bui | ding and situation, and now you want to tear
down where |'ve been living? But you haven't done
no mai ntenance to the building at all. So you are
basically saying that the building are dil api dated
IS not because the rent -- people or people who |ive
there are not paying rent, it's because the people
who own the building, they won't take ny noney and
put it into the building to keep it up properly.
That's their job. That's why | pay you noney to
keep the building up properly. But you want to take
the rent and probably go on a ski trip or buy fancy

cars and | ater you took care of yourself and
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devel oped the whol e situation, but you do not want
to take my noney to put it into the property where
It needs to be. | nean, this is the fourth conpany
you' ve gone to. Some from Scope, sone from TM
Associ ates, sone from Barte, nobody wants to put
noney into a decent building. They keep saying it's
the old building. Yes, is -- turn the old building
downt own, | ook at the Washi ngton Monunent, | ook at
the Capitol, look at the Wite House. They keep
putting noney there, but they still standing. You
got decent buildings around here. | wll tell you -

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. My apol ogi es, you're

MR. WARD: Yes?

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  -- you're over the
two mnutes. Can -- can you just give your
concl udi ng thought if possible? Thank you.

MR WARD: Sure. Well, ny concluding
t houghts, |'m agai nst this whol e devel opnent
process. | nean, | got docunents of all the
paperwork they gave ne in those situations to show
where they did everything wong agai nst the owners
and tenants in the building and the governnment. So

yes, | am against the whole process. | took it to,
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M. Davis of Enpowernent and the Deanwood Board
Associ ation. So yes, | amagainst this whole type
of process. And we -- in ny building 1112, we got
seven tenants, and | asked them why don't you nove
people fromone building to the next building to
renovate then back and forth? They want to kick
everybody out of all the buildings, and then they
want to renovate. They cannot renovate one at a
time. | don't know why they can't do that. That
doesn't nmake sense to ne. Because they don't have
that many apartnents to nove the people into the
buil ding to another apartnent. | can see that.
That's their gane plan, is to kick everybody out,

put high-rise properties up here, get the tenants to

nmove in. And hell, there's no parking for these
people on this street. None at all. So yes, that's
my reason. | would like to talk |onger, but since

we're on a tineline, and |I've been on this phone for
six and a half hours, you guys at 9:30 this norning.
So yes, I'magainst it. M. Keith Ward, 1112
Eastern Avenue. So if you have any questions, |I'm
here to answer them |'mhere. Hello?

CHAI R POURCI AU:  You hang up?

MR. WARD: No, hello?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:.  I'msorry, | think
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that the Chair may be continuing to have sone
technical difficulties. 1'd like to ask the
applicants if they have any questions for the

I ndi vi dual who's testifying on the phone?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. Thank you.
O course, | cannot see who is next on the |ist.
Madam Chair, if you're able to?

CHAIR POURCI AU: It's Daniel Ml again.

MR. MJL: Hi, yeah, | haven't spoken
before, and -- and so yeah, just want to start,
t hank you for the opportunity to speak. |'ma
property owner within 200 feet of each of the 1106

and 1112 properties. Not aware of any contacts to

of the devel opers for pending BZA cases all al ong

requi renents, Subtitle Y, Section 300.8G 402.1D
limts the notice requirenents to D.C. property

owners alone. So this really seens legally

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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MR. MEDVENE: | do not have any questi ons.

woul d -- please go ahead. Please be mndful if you
can of the -- the three m nutes, but please begin.
Thank you.

nor to the Chapel OGak Community Association for any

the border, and in ny reading, nothing in the zoning
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deficient to not informanyone who is across the
street fromall of these nassive projects.

Further, for context the nei ghborhoods that
straddl e this border, Deanwood, Deanwood Park,
Chapel QOaks, are an integrated conmunity served by
shared transit, shared nei ghborhood anenities, but
we're routinely harmed by a | ack of coordination
across the two jurisdictions, including at tines an
inability to hold devel opers on both sides of the
border accountabl e, which has |ed to additional
chal l enges in our community as well. Sone of the
chal | enges that we face, for context, include a |ack
of decent conmunity retail to neet residents' needs,
insufficient and limted traffic cal mng and
enforcenent |eading to car accidents, pedestrian
deat hs, increasing crinme and devel oper-del ayed
vacanci es across the 1100, 1200, and 1300 bl ocks,
exactly where these projects are, that encourages
nore illegal dunping, prostitution, drug -- drug
trafficking and break-ins, and then the destruction
of many mature trees in the area that underm nes
shade canopy drai nage and al so encourages sone of
t hese other deleterious inpacts as well that |'ve
ment i oned.

So all of that is really inportant context
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in considering the scale of the redevel opnent that
are being considered across these four different BZA
applications, but for this project in particular, I
want to highlight three things. First, on density
and zoning. | want to say clearly, I'"'m-- |'m not
opposed to the additional density. |In fact, it's a
shanme that the existing MJ}4 m xed-use zoning on the
bl ocks just next to the site along Eastern Avenue
were not extended to this site. Adding greater
density than what is currently proposed woul d nmake
sense given the proximty to transit that M.
WIllianms earlier highlighted, and it could better
accommodat e both current residents and m xed-i ncone
housi ng. But what those residents -- new residents
and current residents both need is additional ground
floor retail, and this is a rare redevel opnent of a
| arge site at 1106, 1112 Eastern. It's a m ssed
opportunity for m xed-use devel opnent and critically
needed retail that would neet residents' needs.
Second, trees and streetscape. Ohers have
touched on this, so | don't want to spend too nuch
time, but just very concerned that the new
construction will continue the -- the -- the ongoing
trend of destruction of so many trees in this area.

The 1100 block in particular suffers froma nunber
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of trees being cut down just in the |ast few years,
and it's contributing to greater heat and ot her --
other difficulties in the area.

And then I'd also like to say, just the
third point on construction inpacts, ny neighbors
and | have all been quite concerned about the
construction inpacts thensel ves, given that the
Eastern Ave. is the only corridor that nost people
use to access this area from 295, given the traffic
parking and crine issues, and the -- the existing
vacant | ots and buil dings nearby that create real
risk for residents. So really wondering how with
t he additional vacanci es caused by the construction,
with the additional construction inpacts, parking,
howw Il all of this be managed? Residents on the
DC side are already parking left and right on the PG
side, but wwth a greater influx of construction and
then residents, that becones harder to nanage.

So again, I'm-- |I'"mnot registering
opposition to this project per se, just a nunber of
different concerns, and these are really all issues
that could be dealt with, but it's a fiction to
assune that engagenent with PG County residents who
live right here on the border is not necessary, and

that the cunul ative inpacts of these four apartnent
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bui | di ng redevel opments within 500 yards isn't a big
deal for both -- both sides of the street that is,
again, an integrated community.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. Thank you for
your testinmony. |'mgoing to ask the applicant if
t hey have any questions for M. Ml or responses.

MR. MEDVENE: | don't have any questions.
Responses are -- are the same that we've provided
both in the earlier answers to OP and Conm ssion as
well as in the Deanwood -- |ast Deanwood Citizen
Associ ation that they attended. | can go into it --

MR MJ: | did not attend any -- sorry to
interrupt, | did not attend any Deanwood Citizen
Associ ati on neeti ng.

MR. MEDVENE: (kay, sorry. Daniel Mile
did, but the questions and concerns that you raised
are the sane ones that he did. Hi gh-level -- for
parking and street interruption as | conveyed at
that neeting, the -- the course of this project,
there's very little, if any, public street work.
There's maybe two days' worth of work per building,
so you're | ooking at two days of having one -- maybe
one lane interrupted for a few hours in the mddle
of the day, that's it. W're not taking any |ong-

term spaces, not shutting the street down. Trees, |

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

251

al ready addressed the trees. W are not cutting
down any heritage trees. W've engaged an arbori st
and worked with UFD, so trees are being protected.
As for crime, we've already hired and are currently
payi ng SPGs and additional security services to --
to make the rounds through all of the properties
twce a day, clearing out any illicit activities,
unwant ed trespassers, et cetera. W have put up
security fencing up around buil dings the nonent that
t hey have becone vacated, and we have spent an
I nordi nate anount of noney boardi ng up the buildings
and now engagi ng dog doors, which are high-security
steel doors, around all of the vacant buil di ngs.
And we w |l continue to spend the npbney necessary to
secure the buildings. During construction, it wll
be secured via the contractor. After the building
Is finished, there will be 24/7 surveill ance caneras
and security neasures and lighting around all the
buil dings. This is shown both on the plans and has
been provided during our conmunity neetings that
have been shared. | don't know if | m ssed anything
el se.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Thank you
very much for your testinony today. | think that

next -- if -- I'"mnot sure, Madam Chair, if you're -
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- you're still having sone technical difficulty or
if youd like to -- to pick up here. GCkay. I'm
going to next call on Jahnavi Jagannath. M
apologies if | haven't quite got that right. It
does not look -- just to let you know, it does not
| ook I'ike our three-mnute clock is running, but I
really ask you to be mndful of the length of your
testi nony. Thank you very much, and pl ease begin.

M5. JAGANNATH: Thank you. Thank you again
for your tinme. | won't take the whole three
m nutes. M nane is Jahnavi Jagannath, and | am
Enpower DC s staff attorney and a DC resident. And
| really appreciate BZA tabling 21416 to do due
di I i gence on understanding the issue of tenant
di splacenent. So | just want to reiterate our
earlier requests, which are the sane for this case,
and rem nd the Board that Section 901.4 does allow
the BZA to inpose requirenents to ensure conpliance
with the intent of the zoning regs.

So the four recommendations that we are
| aying out are to give remaining tenants an
addi tional 120 days to find alternative housing, on
conpl etion of the renovations, give original tenants
who want to return first right to apply for new

units in the building with no application fee and a
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guarantee that their application be accepted, nake
these units available to these tenants at a rental
rate consistent with the original rent as of June
2026, subject to proportional increase for increased
square footage, and provide relocation assistance

out and back into the building for remaining

t enants.

And if these four recommendati ons are nade
into requirenents, this could be consistent with
Section 901.2 to prevent ongoi ng di splacenent of
| ow-inconme district residents. Thank you for your
tinme.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Thank you. And can
you remnd nme, is your testinony also submtted to
the record for this case too?

M5. JAGANNATH: It is submtted to the
record. | would add just one addition for our
recommendati on, nunber two out of four, | -- | added
with no application fee into ny verbal testinony,
that is not reflected in nmy witten testinony. But
that's the only difference -- the only neani ngful
difference in the two testinonies.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Thank you.
Noted. |1'd like to ask the applicant if they have

any questions or responses to the testinony that

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

254
you' ve heard.

MR. MEDVENE: No questions. | would --
response, | would ask that you engage wth the Gvic
Associ ation and the ANC as we've di scussed these
itenms. We have already agreed to give the residents
the first right of application, we -- we cannot
guar antee automatic approval, and we are al so
working with the Rent Adm nistrator and Lauren Pair
directly as we go and work through the necessary
tinmelines and rel ocation assistance regul ati ons and
so on and so forth.

It's inportant to notice that's been
brought up several tines, this notion that we are
forcibly displacing tenants, and peopl e keep talking
about the 120 days that was initially presented back
in Novenmber. It is now eight nonths after that,
which is nore than 240 days fromthat notice, and
the tenants are still in there, but it's for a
reason. W are working actively with Lauren Pair
and the Rental Adm nistrator and the OAG and DOD on
a active basis, speaking directly with Lauren Pair
and her team as we work through the necessary steps
to make sure that this stays conpliant and that we -
- we do not actively displace any tenants. So

that's the response there.
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M5. JAGANNATH. May | respond to that
response?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Just very briefly if
you can.

M5. JAGANNATH. Yes, thank you. | would
just like to point out that in order to prevent
active displacenent, which we appreciate that stated
intent, the anount of rent does play a factor in
that. And | would just recommend that you take into
account the ability of these current residents and
what they can pay, and rem nd the BZA that the
conprehensi ve plan really recommends agai nst
di spl aci ng tenants by years in advance.

MR. MEDVENE: There's a LURA covenant on
t hose properties that we nentioned in the | ast case
that is applying to this as well that restricts the
rents to 60% AM. So these are already affordable
property projects.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you. |Is there

anyone el se who is in the queue for providing a

testinony now? |'mnot sure if anyone on the Board
may have sonebody -- have a |ist of anyone el se
who's prepared. |f we have reached everyone, then |
think we'll -- we'll nove to -- pardon ne. W']l|

gi ve the applicant an opportunity to either have a
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rebuttal or a closing argunment, and then we'l|
proceed fromthere. Turning it over to the
appl i cant, pl ease.

MR. MEDVENE: Keeping it short and sweet as
we have all had a long day, at this point | think
the facts are pretty clear and speak for thensel ves.

We under stand where the greatest concerns lie. Qur
concerns echo that whether people mght agree with
that or not, fromthe beginning of the project and
I n the endeavor, we have been very clear and candid
with all agencies of the governnent to nake sure
that everything is docunented, our |I's are dotted,

T s crossed. And that we do not put ourselves in a
situation where either, A we are legally |iable and
exposed, and B, we have tenants that are displaced
unnecessarily or wi thout any resources, et cetera.
So we will be providing the docunentation that shows
the efforts and resources that have been offered.
And | stress that because that -- just because

t hey' ve been offered, they have not been received or
accepted by all.

W will provide all that evidence and
docunentation along with correspondence and evi dence
of offering said resources and conmuni cati on pl ans,

et cetera, and we |l ook forward to continuing to work

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

257
with the Board as we to get these resolved. W feel
very strongly that these cases presented as it
pertains to zoning are very tight, clean, and within
t he zoni ng bounds and regul ations of the relief
requested, and while these other factors that have
been brought up as concerns are 100% rel evant, it's
inportant to note that, as |'ve said several tines,
we are actively working with the rental
adm ni strator with whose departnent it specifically
exists to protect these tenants, and Lauren Pair is
acutely aware of this project, as is her team and
we are working with them and the tenants still
remain in the buildings until we have worked through
the appropriate process with the Rent Adm ni strator
and their division.

So, this is the BZA' s approval here and in

the com ng weeks hopefully, the tenant protections

will remain in place, as is DC s strong suit, and
the tenants will -- even wth an approved buil di ng
permt, tenants are still in there, we cannot begin

our project. So the tenants are protected until the
process is followed and all regul atory conpliances
are net, and that is sonething that we are actively
working with the Rent Adm nistrator, OGAG DOB to

successfully do. That's where we stand. Thank you.
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VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Thank you. So |
think we -- I"mjust going to suggest we've got our
roadmap for how to schedule this. | would recomend
that we follow a very simlar roadmap as with the
ot her case that we previously heard, that we | ook to
a June 17th scheduling. W're asking for the
simlar type of materials as we asked for in the
previous case. | don't think -- and I'll open it up
to ot her board nenbers, whether there's any
additional materials or if they -- if you have a
view that this should be treated in a different
manner than the previous one. But ny suggestion
woul d be to do sonething simlar in this case.

Happy to open it up for comments.

M5. LINDSJO. | agree that we should nove
forward the sanme way.

COW SSI ONER HOOD: | woul d agree as wel |
M. Vice Chair, but | also want to ask our counsel
not to let nme forget or us to forget on this. |
know that BZA is bound by the Conp Pl an, but they're
not bound by the Conp Plan as strictly as the Zoning
Comm ssion is. So | need sone clarity on that from
our | egal counsel, but | don't need that now but at
a later tinme. And | think I know the answer, but |

want to nake sure as we nove into this. But | would
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agree wth your assessnent on how we nove forward.
Thank you, M. Vice Chair.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:.  Madam Chair, it
| ooks |1 ke we see you again, which is terrific. And

CHAI R POURCI AU: Can you hear ne, can you
hear nme?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | can hear you j ust
fine.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  Okay, okay.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN.  We were discussing
sort of the scheduling, but don't know if you have
any other thoughts that you'd |like to express.

CHAI R POURCI AU. No, that sounds great. |
just wanted to ask if there were any addition -- was
there any additional information needed on the green
space issue and the -- the building placenent. M.
Li ndsjo, just wanted to nmake sure you were
confortable with that.

M5. LINDSJO  Yeah, |'mfine.

CHAI R POURCI AU. Ckay. Thank you. Thank
you, M. CGoldstein. You -- why don't you proceed
through this one, | appreciate it.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Just to ask the

applicant, are you able to sort of -- I'll also open
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this up to, Ms. Mehlert, but to the applicant, are
you able to neet the sane tineline that we di scussed
with the other case, and are you anenable to that
tinmeline?

MR. MEDVENE: Yes, it's all the sane
information. Everything -- all these cases has been
-- has been treated as one project in devel opnent.
It's made it easier, nore concise, and nore clear
for all parties involved, so it wll all be upl oaded
In the sane tinmefrane.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay.

MR. PETYAK: Wth the exception of a
revised site plan as no changes were necessary of
t he HVAC units.

MR. MEDVENE: For this specific project.

MR, PETYAK: That's correct.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Correct. It sounds
like that is not a |live issue that we need
additional information on. Thank you for
clarifying. M. Mhlert, would you help | ead us
t hrough any of the process here, that'd be terrific.

M5. MEHLERT: So simlar to the previous
case, the applicant subm ssions are due tonorrow,
June 4th. The ANC has until June 11th to respond,

and the Board will return for a decision neeting on
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June 17t h.
VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  Unless there's any -

- anything else, | think we can conclude this case.

| would al so request at least a five-m nute break,
and then we can pick up with the next case. I|I'm
open to if anyone needs additional tine beyond five
mnutes, |'mopen to that too, but that's just ny --
nmy suggesti on.

COMM SSI ONER HOOD: M. Vice Chairman, now
-- Ms. Mehlert, can we put these cases at the -- |
know we usually do. Can we put these two cases at
the beginning for the -- at the decision neeting on
the 17th? Gkay. Thank you very nuch.

CHAI R POURCI AU. | had requested the five-
m nute break because | thought | needed to | og off
and | og back on, but for sonme reason ny nute and
on/off mute button seens to be working again. So if
you all would like to continue wwth the | ast agenda
item we can. Oherwi se, we can take a break.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN.  In spite of | -- |
don't mean to break a streak of your internet being
more solid, but | wouldn't mnd having a five-mnute
br eak.

CHAI R POURCI AU: G eat.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: Everyone el se would
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I ndul ge ne?

CHAI R POURCI AU:  Yes. Thank you for
stepping up right in the nonent. So we'll reconvene
at 4:50. Thank you.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:  Thank you. Thank
you.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went
off the record and resuned followi ng a brief
recess.)

CHAIR POURCI AU. Al right. Looks |ike
we're all back. You can hear ne so far? Thanks
again, M. CGoldstein. This has been a great
experience today, so l'mglad we're tag team ng. W
were prepared to tag team right?

So we wll proceed to the |ast case on the
agenda, nunber seven, Application 21446 of S.

M chel |l e Sw nson.

Ms. Mehlert, would you introduce the case,
pl ease?

M5. MEHLERT: Absolutely. The Board is
back froma quick break. The next case is
Appl i cation Nunmber 21446, S. M chelle Swi nson. As
anended, this is an application pursuant to Subtitle
X, Section 901.2, for special exceptions under

Subtitle E, Section 207.5, to allow the rear wall of
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a row building to extend farther than 10 feet beyond
the farthest rear wall of any adjoining principal
residential building on any adjacent property, and
under Subtitle E, Section 5201, we will note
occupancy requirenents of Subtitle E, Section 210. 1.

This is for a new three-story attached
principal dwelling located in the RF1 zone at 1324
Kenyon Street Northwest, 2848, Lot 842.

As a prelimnary matter, the applicant has
filed a notion to -- the filing deadline to submt a
revised zoning adm ni strator nmenorandum This is in
Exhibit 26. Also, the applicant filed a late
subm ssion today after the 24-hour filing deadline,

i ncluding a surveyor's plan and architectural plan,
and these are not yet in the record, they are
pendi ng approval in court to be entered.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  Thank you. It |ooks like
we have Gayll Wrsley on the applicant. Thank you
for joining us, Ms. Wrsley. Wuld you like to --
are you ready to open your application and speak on
your application and who is wth you today, please?

M5. WORSLEY: Yes. M nane is Gayl |
Wrsley. |I'mthe architect. | want to say good
afternoon to the Board. You guys are troopers.

It's been a long day for you -- for you guys, so we
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appreciate you hanging in there with us. Mchelle,
the owner, is with me, Ms. Sinpson is with nme, and
so she'll be filling inalittle bit of the history
of the project, it's had a bit -- she's had a bit of

atinme in this process.

And so -- yes, so |I'd like to address the
nerits of the -- before addressing the nerits of the
application, I would like to respectfully request

that the Board permt the updated pl ague and pl ans
that we submtted based on the zoning

adm ni strator's revised nenorandum W just did
sone cl eanup, sone housekeepi ng on those plans, so
they -- very slightly but not in any significant way
to the plans that you have in front of you.

So, fromthe outside, | wanted to clarify
the limt of the nature of the work. The applicant
I's not proposing a rear addition. The existing
building footprint is -- the footprint is existing
and no changes outside of the front porch which was
denol i shed by the contractor -- the previous
contractor wi thout the perm ssion of the current
owner, Mchelle. Were they also intend to install
exterior siding, renovate the interior, it's going
to remain a single-famly principal dwelling for the

new owner, and they want to basically build a small
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front balcony in the sane | ocation as the previous

porch was -- the sane |ocation, so outside of that
scope of work to repair -- and also there's sone
repairs around the exterior as well, replacing sone

w ndows, and | think it had like a tile front which
|l ed to sone water damage on the interior. They want
to repair those things just so that the hone is

wat er - saf e.

So the -- we wanted just to basically
present the project as the exact scope of work. The
homeowner is just trying to finish the project and
repair -- replace the porch that the contractor took
down wi t hout her perm ssion and caused a total chain
reaction, and sort of, you know, it's an unusual
house, so | think based on, you know, what is
visible, it looks like it's nore work than it
actually is.

And if you have any questions, | just
wanted to keep it as brief as possible. 1've
witten a nmuch | onger statenent, but | understand
you guys have had a very long day, so | cut to the
chase, so to speak. And Mchelle -- | don't know if
you want to hear fromthe owner, if this is the
appropriate tinme, so if you'd like to hear from her,

she can follow up with sone of the history with her

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ W DN PP

N D N N MDD P P P PP PP PP kPP
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

266
and the contractor.

CHAIR POURCI AU.  Yes, if she would like to
speak on the record, now would be a good tine.

Thank you.

M5. SWNSON. Thank you so nmuch. Good
aft ernoon, Madam Chair and nenbers of the Board, and
| will follow suit and keep this very brief. W are
here before the Board today because of m s-actions
of our previous contractor. W are really honestly
goi ng through this process now because of the chain
reaction. This process here is essentially the
| egal requirenent now to renove the stop work order
so we can get back to the rehab for the permt that
we actually have for our building permt that was
al ready approved.

So we are here to get perm ssion for our
house as it is. It is an unusual house, it's an
unusual footprint, which was the appeal of the
property. And so, therefore, we are not changi ng
any of the footprint whatsoever, nothing. The only
thing that we are asking in this request is to
replace a snmaller bal cony that was previously there
before and to add exterior siding.

That is it. Thank you so nuch.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  Thank you. | think ny
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first question -- | haven't had the opportunity to
| ook at anything new that was submtted today in the

| ast day or so, so | don't know if any other board

menbers have. And if -- if what was submtted --
you say it's -- it's not a big change, but just can
you give a -- what change is there, on the new

subm ssi on?

M5. WORSLEY: What | did was | just wanted
to sort of nake it as clear as possible. | nade
sure that everything was noted as existing building
to remain. | added a bunch of just notes that you
could see this is the existing rear porch, this is
the proposed rear porch, just to nmake it as clear as
possi ble for -- because the previous subm ssion kind
of just had overall dinensions. | just wanted to
make sure that underneath everything it was noted
existing to remain. And it does extend -- the
existing footprint does extend significantly past, |
believe, the property to the, | want to say north.
But that's the existing condition. And the
nei ghbors are -- they whol eheartedly support the
repairs to this project. They're -- they've been
waiting a long tine for it, so just -- just that
ki nd of housekeepi ng and maki ng sure the plaque al so

refl ected the sane thing, that this is the existing

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealrgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N T N I T S R N I R R T e o
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N P O

268
building to remain, you know, just to nmake it as
cl ear as possible.
CHAI R POURCI AU: Ckay. Thank you for that.
Does any -- does Ms. Fenton need to speak at this
time or is this a good tine for questions fromthe
Board? M. Worsley, | amspeaking with you?

M5. WORSLEY: | don't have any questions.

CHAI R POURCI AU.  kay.

MS. WORSLEY: You can ask themto the
Board. Thank you.

CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you. M. ol dstein,
why don't we start with you? Do you have sone
questions that you'd like to present to the
applicant?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | -- | -- | do have
sonme questions. And you are thanking us for our

| ong day, but thank you all for hanging in there

with us. It's our first day and it certainly has
extended quite a -- quite a way. So thank -- thank
you for your patience. |'mhoping that you could
just fill in-- I"mreally interested in the

regul atory history and the changes in relief
requested as this case has evolved with -- in the --
In the case file. Could you speak to what happened?

And there was one referral letter and then a nore
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recent revised letter. Wat pronpted that, and how
did we land at the relief that we're at? So I'm
sorry, that's -- that's a few questions all bundl ed
together, but I'm hoping that you can foll ow that
roadmap for ne.

M5. WORSLEY: I1'mgoing to let Mchelle
because she submtted the permt application

originally, and she's had the history. She hired

the original -- I'"'mthe second architect, so |'m
going to give -- let her speak to the original scope
of work.

M5. SWNSON: Thank you. So we had a
previous architect, and we |ater |earned that the
cal culations were incorrect. And as a result of
that, we wanted to get the second opinion of M.
Wrsley so we can make sure that what we are
submtting is accurate. As a result of the first
pl aque that was submtted by the previous architect,
DOB drafted the first letter. And because of the
di nrensi ons that were | ocated on the plaque, it
wasn't clear to them They identified the
addi tional variances and everything el se that was on
the initial nenb. Once we got Ms. Gayll involved
and he -- and spoke to DOB, they understood because

there was a | ot of confusion around why we were
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here. And originally it was speaki ng about renoving
the -- the -- the balcony. Well, it had already
happened, but because it happened, they still put it
on there. They were tal king about doi ng sone
addi tional construction, so there was a | ot of
clarity that needed to happen because the way that
the meno read initially, it's as if that we were
proposi ng new construction and that wasn't the case.

But that m shap was because of the i nproper
cal cul ations that was on the original plaque from
the original architect.

So once all of that was resol ved and we
brought in Ms. Gayll, she was able to talk to DOB
and clear all of that up. They were then able to
I ssue us the new nenb. So that's where we are now.

It's nore reflective of the true scope of work

based on where we are at the nonent.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN.  I'm=-- I'm-- |I'm
sorry to hear that you've been through that. | can
only inmagi ne what -- what's been involved. | sawin
the -- the filing a lot of -- a nunber of references
to a zoning raise. And so | -- I'"'mwondering if you

can address that. Typically, in my understandi ng,
when you get zoning raises, it's that too nuch of a

wal | has been renoved, and then you need to al npost
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treat a project |like a new project, although parts

of it may still be standing. But the conseguences

Is that you kind of |ose grandfathered rights on the

property, so you need to al nost reapply for what you

once had. How does that -- is -- is that your
under st andi ng of what's happened here as well, or is
the -- | -- I've heard sort of the discussion of the

cal culations weren't quite right, and I sort of

understand that. And then |I'mtrying to understand

how a -- the references to zoning raise factor into
this. |Is that sonething that you all can address as
wel | ?

M5. SWNSON:. Well, | can speak to what was

told to us because as we started to go through this
process, that was another thing that kept rising to
t he occasi on because people really couldn't
understand all of the things that were now being
assigned to -- to this application. So has there
been an official acknow edgnent as what they are
speaki ng about, | don't know. Now you will see that
it is wapping on the front of the property and the
rear of the property. Now the rear of the property,
it's wapped because we had to refrane the w ndows
and it was totally rotted. And these wi ndows are

smal l er and they're nore conpliant, but there was
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never a renoval of a wall. So |I'mnot sure.

don't have any nore of an update than that as to how
we got to a zoning raise. As we were going through
this process and we were talking to the ANC and t hen
and Departnent of Pl anning, they were asking the
same question, so we don't know.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Thank you.

And 1'Il -- 1'"Il ask the Ofice of Planning if they
can help fill this in a bit. So just what -- what
pronpted the stop work order then, if -- if you can
say?

M5. SWNSON:. The -- once the -- the damage
was done with the contractor renoving the wall
wi t hout our authorization, the contract was
termnated. As a retaliatory action, that
contractor called DOB to say that it was ill egal
construction. So he called the work in for the work
that he did illegally.

M5. WORSLEY: And by the way it was a
porch, not a wall.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: That was for the --

M5. WORSLEY: It was the porch. It was the
porch, not the wall.

M5. SWNSON:. Yeah, the porch. Porch,
yeah.
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VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. It sounds --
sounds like there's quite a -- quite a web here of
history. | -- I think those are all the questions
that | have for now | want to ask the Ofice of
Pl anni ng a few questions about -- about it too.
Thank you very nuch.

M5. SWNSON:. Thank you.

CHAI R POURCI AU: Thank you, M. Col dstein.

It looks |ike we're new board nenbers and we got a
-- luckily, we have M. Coldstein, he's been
involved in these things in the past, so we're going
to work with you and try to work through this. M.
Li ndsj o, you have sone questions you'd |like to ask
t he applicants?

M5. LINDSJO No, | appreciate you
presenting and | have no questions at this tine.
Thank you.

CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you. M. Hood,
could you help us along wwth this a little, or any

guestions you have, or --

COMM SSI ONER HOOD: | don't -- | don't
necessarily have -- thank you, Madam Chair. | don't
necessarily have any questions. | want to thank Ms.

Wrsley for making it sinple, what's proposed, what

-- what existed, but I -- | wll say I"'msorry to
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hear that how that went down, as -- as Vice Chair
was tal ki ng about the web. Sonebody hel ps you get
to the -- get to this point and then all of a
sudden, all these new regul ati ons show up that you
have to find -- find a way to get relief for it. So

|"msorry you're going through this, but | think you

are -- personally, | think you've nade your case, or
t he case has been made, but we -- we wll continue
to nove forward. |'msorry you had to go through

all that, and I"msorry you all may have had to wait

a few nonths until we got oursel ves together.

That's all | have. Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI R POURCI AU:  Thank you. | think what
we'll dois we'll nove on and hear fromthe Ofice
of Planning and -- and -- and cone back with you to

tal k about the details nore of what we can do next,
okay? Looks |like M. Jesick is on board from Ofice
of Pl anning. Thank you for joining.

MR JESICK: Thank you, Madam Chair and
nmenbers of the Board. M nane is Matt Jesick, and
"1l be presenting OCak Peace testinony in this case.

Just to summarize our -- our witten report, our
witten report was based on the -- the nost recent
referral fromthe Zoning Adm nistrator's office,

which called for two different special exceptions,
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one for the depth of the rear addition, and one for
| ot occupancy. And we found that those speci al
exceptions net the standards for approval. And |
can get into that in nore detail if you'd like. For
any other history of the application, |'m happy to
try and answer any questions based on what | know.
But | think ny knowl edge is reflective of what the
appl i cant has st at ed.

CHAl R POURCI AU: M. CGoldstein, 1'd like
it if you can ask sone questions to nmaybe |ay out
what shoul d happen next, how we shoul d proceed, you
know, with -- in keeping with your questions for M.

Jesi ck?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N: Sure. Thank you
very much. And -- and thank you, M. Jesick for
hel pi ng guide us through this. 1Is -- so | think the
original relief involved a variance. It involved a
front porch special exception, the front porch is no
| onger needed. There's no relief in the |atest
referral for that. There's no | onger an area
vari ance, rather a special exception for the |ot
occupancy. Can -- can you help shed sone |ight on
the evolution of this relief and the current relief
that we're -- have under consideration?

MR. JESICK: Yes, sure. The original ZA
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meno as you referenced, front -- front porch relief,
t hat regul ati on however, only applies to features
original to a building. The front porch that

exi sted and in fact nost of the front facade of this
house not original to the building, | think it dates
-- the original house dates back to around 1900, and
the features that were present that have been either
renmoved or renovated did not date to that tine
period. So that relief is not necessary at all.

The ZA's office took a second | ook at both the | ot
occupancy nunber, as well as the depth of the rear
addi ti on.

As the Board is aware, a rear addition
cannot extend nore than 10 feet past the adjacent
nei ghbor's house. And they had a nmuch | arger nunber
in their original referral, but upon reexam nation
of the plans for that depth of rear addition, they
cane to a new figure of 13 feet beyond the nei ghbor
to the west, which is three feet beyond what is
allowed as a matter of right.

Simlarly, the | ot occupancy dinension camne
down -- | forget what the old nunber was, but the
present nunber calculated by the ZA's office for the
proposed | ot occupancy is 66% which falls within

t he special exception range. So | think that's --
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the ZA's office cane to their nost recent referral
meno. So that's -- again, what we based our report
on, was that nost recent neno.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN: Okay. Thank you.
That's really helpful. | don't knowif the issue of
zoning raise cane up in your discussions, but the
way it is styled is treating it as an addition, 150-
201. Do you feel confortable, just to note with
that path of analysis for this case?

MR, JESICK: Certainly, yes, that issue of
the raise has conme up. |If it is, in fact, deened a
raise, | think what you were hinting at earlier,
Vice Chairman, was that Section 5201 is really not
applicable to new construction in nost
circunstances. So if this is, in fact, deened to be
new construction, the applicant nay need to request
a variance for | ot occupancy.

| believe one exception could still be
granted for the depth of the rear additions. But
given the ZA's nost recent neno, again, we were
proceedi ng forward based on that basis. So | guess
we would need to get witten confirmation fromthe
ZA as to whether they are indeed considering this a
raise. The nenpo would seemto inply it's sinply an

addi ti on.
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VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N: Thank you. That's
the point of my confusion. It's not -- to the
applicant, it's not the project, per se. It's just
a technical issue. Are you requesting the

appropriate relief and can we grant the appropriate

relief?

So | think that, | think, cleared up quite
a bit for nme. 1'Il open it up to other board
menbers. |I'minclined -- the Ofice of Zoning

Adm ni stration has had two | ooks at this project.
They are the ones who've -- there's a stop
work order. There's engagenent with the applicant.
There's the revision into the record. |'minclined
to go wwth their recent revised referral as the
definitive area of relief and I'lIl rely on that.
| don't know if anyone feels differently.

But they've |ooked at it twce. They've done

recal cul ations. They | ooked at the relief. [|'m not
going to look -- | don't know all the facts that
t hey know.

So I'mgoing to rely on the relief that
they presented. M. Jesick, one |ast question for
you. Have you seen the plans that were submtted
today? | believe it was today by the applicant.

MR JESI CK: | have not. Wlen | checked
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the record a few mnutes ago, | don't believe they
were yet uploaded. But |I can | ook again as the
heari ng proceeds if necessary.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. | just want to --
I'"d ove to just have it if you can take a brief
gl ace and we can cone back to you just to nmake sure
that nothing in your report woul d change based on
the | atest submssion. It sounds |ike fromthe
applicant's testinony that it was really limted to
cleaning up and | abeling. But just to have it on
the record that you would remain in support based on
the latest materials put into the record.

MR JESICK: As of right now, I"'mstill not
seeing it in the record.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff hasn't entered it yet.
W were just waiting for kind of the affirmative to
enter those |lasted exhibits. W can get themin
right away if that's what the Board would Iike.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Yes, please. Can you
enter those?

M5. MEHLERT: Yeah.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:. | don't have any
further questions. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:  kay. Thank you. Ms.
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Li ndsj o, do you have any questions or coments for
the applicant?

MEMBER LI NDSJO. No, for OP. Yeah, | have
not hing for OP. Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU:  You're wel cone. M.
Hood, any questions for OP?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: No, | don't have any
questions for OP but what M. Jesick finds out.

Thank you.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Appreciate that. |
don't know. Let's see. W'Ill go down the |ist and
see if there's any ot her governnent agencies. It

doesn't seemthat any are here.

The ANC, you nentioned that everyone wants
to see the project down. No other comrents from ANC
or other ANC witnesses. No other parties to the
application. It seens |ike we've covered everything
at this point.

| do want to say being a new Board nenber,
it'"s our first day. And getting another submttal
on the day of the hearing is a little difficult,
let's say. But if we can get that upl oaded and
| ooked at, maybe we can get this one conpleted as
well. So let's give it a couple mnutes and see

what happens.
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M5. SWNSON:. Thank you. W appreciate
t hat, Madam Chair.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN:  |I'm sorry, Madam
Chair. | do have another question for the
applicant. | believe there's one letter to the

record. Just trying to see. There's the DDOT
report which is supportive, and there is the ANC
| etter of support, another one, Exhibit 28 from
Mar cus & Dar an.

There's comments fromWIIliam Panici with
attachnments. Were those -- were any of them-- |I'm
trying to refresh ny nenory. D d they raise any
concerns, or were they supportive of the approval of
the project? | don't know, Madam Chair, other Board
nmenbers if you' ve had a nore recent review of them

|f they raised any concerns, | was just hoping the

applicant m ght be able to speak to them

M5. SWNSON: | can speak to it really
quickly. M. Bill, he is on the opposite side. So
respectfully, | understand with the history of the

house he purchased with the previous owner, they
were with nonths of purchasing each other.
Apparently, the way that the construction was
handl ed by the previ ous owner was problematic for

M. Bill that it did have sone | evel s of
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di sturbances to his property, if you wll.

And so in his letter, what he wapped up to
say, okay, if we just take off the whole back of the
house, |ike, he would be okay, you know, because he
doesn't want any additional building which we're not
going to do. But outside of that, he supports
conpl eting the renovati on of the house.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you.

MS. SWNSON:  You're wel cone.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Any update on the
| oadi ng of that docunent?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: The docunent is now in.

And | will say to Ms. Wirsley, if | |looked at this
docunent and |I'mgoing to use this word | oosely.

For me, when | | ook at what the plans say, if | use
the word de mnims, would | be too far to the left?

M5. WORSLEY: No, you would be very
correct.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: That's what it |ooks |ike.

I[t's very de mnims. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU. M. Jesick, do you see
1t? Do you see the docunent?

MR. JESICK: Yes. Thank you, Madam Chair.

| reviewed as the Board was speaking the new

exhibits, 29 and 30, the plat and the updated pl ans.
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And as the applicant's architect stated, | didn't
see any physical changes to the plans, just a change
in labeling to be nore clear about what's existing

on the building to remain. So there was not hi ng
there that woul d change our recomendati on.

BZA CHAI R POURCI AU. Thank you so rnuch.
Since there are no others here to testify, I'd like
to -- and | don't think the Board has anynore
gquestions. Wuld the applicant |like to bring
anything el se up and conpl ete your presentation
t oday?

M5. WORSLEY: No, we just want to express
our appreciation. Thank you for listening to it and
trying to understand the long history. Mchelle and
Tammy both very nuch appreciate it. Looking forward
to finishing up things and noving into their new
hone.

BZA CHAIR POURCI AU:. Al righty. 1 got
your closing statenent. Wat | think we should do
at this tineis we wll -- let ne get ny words here.

W' re ready to deliberate.

So Madam Secretary, you can cl ose the
hearing and the record. Wtnesses can be excused.
Then you can -- then we wll deliberate and di scuss

the case. Al right. Madam Secretary? Because
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bel i eve we are ready to vote.

M5. MEHLERT: Ckay. You're good to go with
del i berations if that's what you' d like to do.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. Vice Chair, it's
after 5:00. So you mght want to start us off with
the deliberations. [I'mgoing to take over now.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. No problem Yeah, |
woul d say that the application neets the special
exception standards that we're based on the revised
DOD referral neno. Those are the E 207.4, relief
from 207.5 which is the rear extension of the house
and the | ot occupancy.

We certainly heard testinony about the
chal l enges that has led the applicant to this
particul ar nonent and that the construction seens --
there's generally support for the construction and

conpl etion of the project. The Ofice of Planning

I's supportive. The ANC, | believe, is supportive as
well. And | am prepared to approve the project.
MEMBER LINDSJO. | agree wth all those

statenents fromVice Chair Goldstein, and | also am
willing to support the approval of this project.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | too would agree with the
comments |'ve heard thus far. And | think our

di scovery and as delved in the case and the nerits
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of this case and all of the things that have gone on
t hroughout this case and the applicant being
responsive. They threw extra things into the

ki tchen sink and be able to prove that the relief is
war r ant ed.

Sol wll be voting in favor of this, and |
don't have anything else to add. And I think the
record is conplete. So Madam Chair, | think we're
good. Are you there, Madam Chair?

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN.  Ms. Mehlert, | can
make the notion. It |looks |like our chair may be
havi ng sone technical difficulty once again. |
don't know if that presents any conplications for a
vote in the nonent.

There's still quorumto nmake the vote. |If
we can proceed, | don't nean to deny the chair the
opportunity to vote. Kind of ook a little for your
gui dance. Should we proceed ahead in the nonment or
give it another m nute?

M5. MEHLERT: It's up to you. | nean, if
t he Board voted now with three votes, that would
still constitute a quorum

ZC CHAIR HOOD: M. Vice Chair, wth all
due respect, she's heard the case. W just need to

hel p her with her internet. You can go ahead and
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make the notion, and then we can wait for her to say
aye.

VI CE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. | nake a
notion to approve Application No. 21446 as capti oned
and ask for a second.

MEMBER LI NDSJO | second it.

VICE CHAIR GOLDSTEIN. 1'd ask for a roll
call vote, please.

M5. MEHLERT: kay. Please respond to the
vice chair's notion to approve the application.

Vice Chair Col dstein?

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N Yes.

MS5. MEHLERT: Board Menber Lindsjo?

MEMBER LI NDSJO.  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Chairman Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: And Chairperson Pourciau?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Well, we did save a little

M5. MEHLERT: Hearing no vote fromthe
chair, we can still record the vote as 3 to 0 to 2
approve Application No. 21446 fromthe notion nade
by Vice Chair CGol dstein and seconded by Board Menber
Li ndsj o.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: kay. Are there any other

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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matters before us today that we shoul d address?
M5. MEHLERT: There is nothing fromstaff.
Everyone did a great job today for your first
hearing. So congratul ati ons.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | too -- vice chair and to
all of the new coll eagues today which is three. |I'm
going to consider nyself new too. But | want to
comrend you all on this. You all did a fabul ous
job, and this shows the city and the Board of Zoning
Adj ustnment is in good hands. So you all, thank you
very much. Geat job today. Al right. Thank you,
M. Vice Chair. |'m done.

VI CE CHAI R GOLDSTEI N:.  And thank you so
much, Conmmi ssioner Hood, for your guidance today.

It was really helpful. |If there is nothing else, |
say we concl ude the hearing.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter was

concl uded.)
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CERTI FI CATE

This is to certify that the foregoing transcript was
duly recorded and accurately transcribed under ny
direction; further, that said transcript is a true
and accurate record of the proceedings; and that |
am nei ther counsel for, related to, nor enployed by
any of the parties to this action in which this
matter was taken; and further that | amnot a

rel ative nor an enpl oyee of any of the parties nor
counsel enployed by the parties, and I am not
financially or otherwise interested in the outcone

of the action.

Pet e Hol | and
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